
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Audit Committee 

on Thursday, 20 April 2017, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 
 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 

Stan Collins (Vice-Chairman) 

Joss Curwen 

Kevin Lancaster 

Matt Severn 

Ian Stewart 

David Williams 

 

 
 
 
Friday, 7 April 2017 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Inge Booth 

 

Telephone: 01539 793190 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

Committee Administration   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 12 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 1 December 2016 (copy attached). 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  AUDIT COMMITTEE 2016/17 WORK PROGRAMME  13 - 16 

 To consider progress against the Committee’s 2016/17 Work Programme.  

6  AUDIT COMMITTEE 2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME  17 - 20 

 To consider a draft Work Programme for the year.  The programme can be 
adapted as necessary during the year.  Provisional dates are shown, dependent 
on confirmation of the Council’s Calendar of Meetings on 17 May 2017. 

 

7  CHAIR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE'S ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17  21 - 32 

 To consider the Chair of the Audit Committee’s draft Annual Report which 
summarises the activities of the Committee during 2016/17. 

 

External Audit   

8  CERTIFICATION WORK FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL FOR 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016  

33 - 36 

 To consider a letter from External Audit on certification work for South Lakeland 
District Council for year ended 31 March 2016. 

 



9  THE AUDIT PLAN FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2017  

37 - 56 

 To consider the Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council year ended 
31 March 2017. 

 

10  PLANNED AUDIT FEE FOR 2017/18  57 - 60 

 To consider a letter from External Audit on the planned audit fee for 2017/18.  

11  SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE PROGRESS 
REPORT AND UPDATE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017  

61 - 76 

 To consider External Audit’s progress in delivering its responsibilities as the 
Council’s External Auditors. 

 

Internal Audit   

12  INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2016/17  77 - 200 

 To consider the progress achieved in 2016/17 in delivering the Audit Plan and 
the outcomes of completed audit reviews (Appendix 1), audit reports 
(Appendix 2) and the status of outstanding recommendations (Appendix 3). 

 

13  INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 2017-18  201 - 216 

 To consider the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017-18.  

Accounts   

14  ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT AND REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 
OF THE LOCAL CODE OF GOVERNANCE  

217 - 242 

 To consider the draft Annual Governance Statement and draft Action Plan.  

Regulatory Framework   

15  STRATEGIC RISK 12 - HEALTH AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT OF 
CONTRACTS  

243 - 244 

 Further to Minute AUD/29 (2016/17), the Chief Executive will brief Members with 
regard to the position of Risk 12 – Health and Safety Management of Contracts. 

 

16  ANNUAL REPORTING OF OPERATIONAL RISKS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE  245 - 268 

 To consider the operational risks which are positioned above the line of 
tolerance and the mitigations to manage them. 

 

17  REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT PROCESS  

269 - 296 

 To consider the changes required for the Performance Management Framework 
April 2017 and the updated Risk Management Process March 2017. 

 

Financial Issues   

18  OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES   

 To receive a verbal update from the Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 
Officer) on any other significant financial issues. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



15 
01.12.2016 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Audit Committee held in the Georgian 
Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Thursday, 1 December 2016, at 6.30 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 
Stan Collins (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Joss Curwen 

 
Kevin Lancaster 

 
Ian Stewart 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Matt Severn and David Williams. 
 

Officers 
 

Inge Booth Senior Committee Services Officer 

John Davies Performance and Risk Officer 

Anthea Lowe Solicitor to the Council 

Shelagh McGregor Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Peter Notley Chief Accountant 

Helen Smith Financial Services Manager 

 
Also in attendance were Jane Butterfield (Internal Audit) and Neil Krajewski (External 
Audit Manager). 
 

AUD/25 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes 
of the meeting of the Committee held on 21 September 2016. 
 

AUD/26 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

AUD/27 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

AUD/28 AUDIT COMMITTEE 2016/17 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Financial Services Manager presented the Committee’s Work Programme for 
2016/17.  She pointed out that the Review of the Whistleblowing Policy had been 
programmed for this year, however, that this was only required on a biennial basis and 
was not, therefore, due until December 2017.   She also reported that the report on the 
Review of Accounting Policies for 2016/17 was ready and had, therefore, been brought 
forward from the April 2017 meeting to this one.  Also, on the agenda for consideration at 
this meeting was an additional report on the Appointment of External Auditors. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Audit Committee Work Programme for 2016/17 be noted. 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



16 
01.12.2016 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUD/29 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE  
 
The Performance and Risk Officer presented the Strategic Risk Register which outlined all 
of those risks above and below the line of risk tolerance. Mitigations designed to reduce 
the risks in terms of likelihood or impact or both were listed against each risk above the 
line of tolerance. 
 
The Strategic Risk Register was reviewed by Senior Management Team each quarter as 
part of the Council’s quarterly performance monitoring and reporting arrangements. A new 
risk around Waste Collection (Risk Number 16) had been added to the Register. A further 
review of by Senior Management Team had taken place on 10 November 2016. 
 
In response to queries raised, the Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 
explained the difficulty of moving the risk position of Risk 6 (Medium Term Financial 
Planning – delivery of a balanced budget) due to the fact that this was an externally-
controlled area.  Regarding Risk 12 (Health and Safety management of contracts), 
Members expressed concern that the risk position had remained unchanged since an 
improvement in Quarter 1 of 2016/17.  Members felt that there should be robust health 
and safety measures in place where Council contracts were concerned and were 
uncomfortable that the risk remained in the unacceptable zone.  It was felt that the Chief 
Executive, as owner of the risk, should be asked to attend the next meeting in order to 
provide an explanation. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the Strategic Risk Register, as attached at Appendix 1 to the report, be noted; and 
 
(2) the Chief Executive be requested to attend the next meeting of the Audit 
Committee to brief Members with regard to the position of Risk 12 (Health and Safety 
management of contracts). 
 

AUD/30 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2016/17  
 
The Chief Accountant presented a report outlining proposed accounting policies to be 
used for the closure of the 2016/17 accounts. These had been prepared in line with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2016/17. 
 
The presentation of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement had been 
revised so that it would better reflect how the Council was structured and managed its 
resources. This was a change from 2015/16 where the format had followed a national 
standard for service expenditure. 
 
In addition, a new funding and expenditure note would be introduced which would explain 
the statutory adjustments made to figures calculated in line with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS). Although these disclosures already existed within the 
accounts, the proposed changes had been designed to help make the accounts clearer 
for readers. 
 

Page 6



17 
01.12.2016 Audit Committee 
 

 

The proposed accounting policies were presented at Appendix 1 to the report. These had 
not changed from the 2015/16 policies.  These policies had been presented to the Audit 
Committee at the April meeting in previous years, however the earlier adoption of the 
accounting policies would assist in the production of the draft accounts by 31 May 2017.  
This would aid the Council in preparing for the statutory requirements relating to the 
preparation of draft accounts by 31 May from 2017/18 onwards. 
 
RESOLVED – That the accounting policies at Appendix 1 to the report for closure of the 
2016/17 Accounts be adopted. 
 

AUD/31 REVIEW OF THE LOCAL CODE OF GOVERNANCE  
 
The review of the Local Code of Governance was presented by the Chief Accountant. 
 
Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015), the Council was required to review the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control annually and report this through an Annual 
Governance Statement. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) had published a revised version of their governance framework for local 
authorities. This counted as proper practice and was to be applied for financial years from 
1 April 2016 onwards. The new framework had been re-arranged from the previous 
framework’s six principles to seven, in line with CIPFA’s broader International Framework: 
Good Governance in the Public Sector (2014). The underlying content of the new 
framework was broadly the same as the previous version. 
 
The Audit Committee conducts an annual review of the Local Code of Governance. As the 
framework had changed, there were a number of amendments to the Local Code 
required. A large part of this was to realign the Local Code with the new framework’s 
seven principles. 
 
CIPFA had also issued detailed guidance which included specific examples around how 
each principle may be implemented. This best practice framework would be used to help 
review the effectiveness of the Local Code, with a proposed action plan to address any 
areas where there may be scope for potential improvements. The outcome of this review 
would be set out within the Annual Governance Statement. 
 
In previous years a sub group of Audit Committee Members had met between the April 
and July meetings to review the Annual Governance Statement. Due to the change in the 
accounts timescales, it was now planned to bring the draft Statement to the April meeting 
of the Audit Committee.  Members wished to ensure that, should the need arise to 
convene an Audit Panel, as in previous years, consideration be given to the issue of 
limited Member availability in early May during election time. 
 
On behalf of the Committee, the Chairman thanked the Chief Accountant for the clear 
report. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) Council be recommended to approve the proposed revisions to the Local Code of 
Governance; and 
 
(2) the revised arrangements and timetable for the Annual Governance Statement be 
noted. 
 

Page 7



18 
01.12.2016 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUD/32 INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS PROGRESS REPORT  
 
The Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) presented a report providing an 
update on the progress made in implementing the Internal Audit Report 
recommendations. 
 
Appendix 1 to the report contained details of 46 recommendations, of which 23 had future 
completion dates. Of the 23 remaining recommendations, 17 had been completed, two 
had been superseded and four were partially completed. 
 
The Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer), the Financial Services Officer and 
the Solicitor to the Council responded to queries raised. 
 
Members were advised of progress in relation to Recommendation 4 regarding the Audit 
of Asset Management and the need to ensure that a system was in place to enable proper 
co-ordination between the contractor and relevant Council departments to ensure that all 
tenants/leaseholders were invoiced for the correct amount on a timely basis and for 
Management to monitor the effective operation of the system.  Improvements had already 
been made.  The Solicitor to the Council and the Corporate Assets Manager were in 
regular contact with the new provider and a new system had been implemented, resulting 
in a more streamlined process.  Progress had been made in relation to Recommendation 
3 of the Audit of Use of Agency Staff.  There was now an arrangement in place through 
Nepro, an organisation that procured professional services on behalf of the UK public 
sector, to purchase more specific professional services.  It was hoped that the Council 
might also in future be able to engage other casual workers through a framework 
arrangement.  With regard to the recommendations relating to the Audit of Bereavement 
Services, it was clarified that a lot of the issues raised were being addressed as part of the 
Parks and Open Spaces Strategy which would come through the committee process in 
Spring 2017. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress made with implementing the Internal Audit Report 
recommendations be noted. 
 

AUD/33 EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS AND UPDATE REPORT  
 
Neil Krajewski, External Audit, presented a report providing Members of the Committee 
with a summary of the progress made by Grant Thornton in delivering their responsibilities 
as External Auditors as at 11 November 2016.  The report also included details of 
emerging national issues and developments that might be relevant to the Council. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress made by External Auditors be noted. 
 

AUD/34 EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT 
COUNCIL  
 
Neil Krajewski, External Audit, presented External Audit’s Annual Audit Letter which 
summarised the key findings arising from work carried out by External Audit at the Council 
for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
 

Page 8



19 
01.12.2016 Audit Committee 
 

 

The key messages were that External Audit had provided an unqualified opinion on the 
Council’s financial statements on 22 September 2016.  External Audit were satisfied that 
the Council had in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources during the year ended 31 March 2016.  External 
Audit’s work on the Council’s Housing Benefit subsidy claim on behalf of the Department 
for Work and Pensions was not yet complete, and would be finalised by 30 November 
2016, when the final fee in respect of this work would be confirmed.  The letter looked 
ahead to 2016/17 when External Audit would support the Council in bringing forward its 
audit timetable so that the audit could be concluded by 31 July 2017. 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the External Audit Annual Audit Letter for the year 
ended 31 March 2016 be noted. 
 

AUD/35 APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS  
 
Note – Neil Krajewski, External Audit, left the room during the discussion and 
voting on this item of business. 
 
The Financial Services Manager provided an update on the invitation to join a national 
procurement exercise to select and appoint External Auditors following the closure of the 
Audit Commission and the end of the transitional arrangements at the conclusion of the 
2017/18 audits.  This approach was likely to deliver the best value for money and would 
also avoid the requirement to set up an auditor panel.  The Cumbria Chief Finance 
Officers had considered the options at their meeting in March 2016 and had supported the 
sector led body approach. 
 
PSAA, the body set up by the Local Government Association, had now been specified by 
the Secretary of State as the sector led body who would appoint external auditors for 
opted-in authorities for the five financial years from 1 April 2018.  PSAA had sent a formal 
invitation for the Council to opt-in to the new arrangements.  The decision to opt-in had to 
be taken in accordance with the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 which 
required Council to make the decision. 
 
RESOLVED – That Council, at its meeting on 15 December 2016, be recommended to 
opt-in to the Sector Led Body approach for the appointment of External Auditors. 
 

AUD/36 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  
 
Jane Butterfield, Internal Audit, presented an update on progress in delivering the Internal 
Audit Programme.  Although late in commencing, it had been intended that the 
Programme would be complete by the end of March 2017.  She reported that, although 
this would substantially be the case, there were two reviews where it would be more 
optimum timing to carry them out in April 2017: National Non-Domestic Rates and Flood 
Grants. 
 
Members queried whether the Council’s regulatory services, such as development control, 
required auditing from time to time in order to ensure that the Council’s procedures were 
appropriate and being adhered to.  It was suggested that discussion could take place with 
regard to their inclusion within next year’s Internal Audit Programme. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress in scheduling and undertaking the Internal Audit Annual 
Plan be noted. 
 

Page 9



20 
01.12.2016 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUD/37 REVIEW OF CONSTITUTION  
 
The Financial Services Manager reported that the Audit Committee’s Work Programme for 
2016/17 included the annual review of the Constitution.   Last year, there had been a 
major re-write of the Financial Procedure Rules and the Contract Procedure Rules.  This 
year, a number of proposed changes were recommended to clarify some areas of 
ambiguity, namely:- 
 

 to clarify that in the absence of the Chief Finance Officer then her responsibilities for 
the proper financial arrangements are delegated to the Financial Services Manager; 

 to clarify that the Chief Finance Officer is responsible for designating bank signatories; 

 to clarify the arrangements for cheque signatures as pre-printed cheques are no 
longer used. 

 to include references to insurances in the Contract Procedure Rules and that the Chief 
Finance Officer has to agree the level of insurances for each contract based on an 
assessment of risks; and 

 to amend references to Pre-Qualification Questionnaires to Selection Questionnaires 
in line with new government terminology. 

 
Reference was made to Section 3 of the Contract Procedure Rules and the need to alter 
reference to ITT in the title of Rule 19 to “INVITATION TO TENDER”. 
 
RESOLVED – That the proposed amendments to the Constitution, as set out in the 
appendices to the report, together with the additional amendment raised at the meeting 
and outlined above, be recommended to Council for approval. 
 
 

AUD/38 REVIEW OF ANTI-FRAUD POLICY AND ACTIVITY  
 
The Financial Services Manager presented the results of the annual review of the Anti-
Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy which was included within the Committee’ Work 
Programme for 2016/17.  The policy linked closely with the Whistleblowing Policy, which 
was reviewed biennially. 
 
Members were informed that the Policy required a central log to be kept of all reported 
cases of fraud and whilstleblowing by the Assistant Director (Resources).  A summary of 
anti-fraud activity was attached at Appendix 4 to the report. 
 
In response to queries raised by Members regarding Council Tax discount-related fraud, 
the Financial Services Manager reported that examination was going to be given to 
Council Tax discounts in the next few months, followed by National Non-Domestic Rates.  
She also undertook to ensure that the data shown within the review of anti-fraud activity 
summary were clearer in future years.  
 
RESOLVED – That the following be noted:- 
 
(1) the review of the Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy; and 
 
(2) anti-fraud activity. 
 

Page 10



21 
01.12.2016 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUD/39 AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER  
 
The Financial Services Manager reported that the Audit Committee’s Risk Register had 
last been reviewed by the Committee on 21 July 2016 (AUD/14) and was now being 
brought back for reconsideration with the inclusion of the recommendations made at that 
meeting. 
 
Discussion took place with regard to the possibility of archiving Risks AC1 (The challenge 
from the Committee is ineffective due to inexperience) and AC4 (External Auditor 
Appointment).  Although the current Members of the Committee had the necessary 
experience, it was felt that there may be potential for some change in 2018 following all-
out district elections, and that Risk AC1, therefore, needed to remain on the Register.  It 
was also raised that, although Council was due to consider opt-in to the Sector Led Body 
approach for the appointment of External Auditors, AC4 should be kept on the Register 
until the Council was notified of the appointment of the new External Auditors. 
 
RESOLVED – That the updated Audit Committee Risk Register be noted. 
 

AUD/40 REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 
The Financial Services Manager reported that the annual review of the Audit Committee’s 
effectiveness had been carried out using principles established by the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).  The conclusion of the review, which had 
been carried out using a questionnaire approach, was that the Committee could 
demonstrate that it had been established in accordance with best practice and that it 
continued to operate effectively. 
 
The report drew attention to the fact that the Committee should be alert to any changes in 
its membership and the expertise of its Members so that it could arrange suitable training.  
The Financial Services Manager drew attention to Appendix 2 of the report which included 
a skills framework for Members of the Audit Committee, produced by CIPFA. 
 
Members queried the negative responses to the questions on effectiveness of the Audit 
Committee at Section I on the Assessment Checklist at Appendix 1.  The need for the 
Committee to be able to demonstrate its effectiveness was felt to be of importance. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the following be noted:- 
 

(1) the review and its conclusion that the Audit Committee is operating 
effectively in all material aspects; and 

 
(2) the skills framework for Members of the Audit Committee, attached at 
Appendix 2 to the report; and 

 
(2) with regard to Section I (51, 52 and 53) on the Assessment Checklist at Appendix 
1 to the report, the Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer), in consultation with 
the Chairman of the Committee, be requested to examine mechanisms whereby the Audit 
Committee can in future demonstrate its effectiveness and to report back to the next 
meeting in order for these measures to be considered for approval. 
 

Page 11



22 
01.12.2016 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUD/41 OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES  
 
The Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) informed Members that the draft 
Budget was due to be considered by Council on 15 December 2015.  In addition, she 
reported that the Council’s application for a four year local government finance settlement 
had been accepted. It was, however, pointed out that the move to a new business rate 
retention scheme in 2020 would change the finance settlement process.  It was 
anticipated that the 2017/18 settlement would be announced shortly during week 
commencing 19 December 2016. 
 
RESOLVED – That the verbal update be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 8.00 p.m. 

Page 12



20/4/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2016/17 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 1 of 4 

 

 Lead Officer 21 July 2016 21 Sept  2016 1 Dec 2016 20 April 2017 

Committee Administration  

Committee Terms of Reference Inge Booth √    

Set work programme for coming year Shelagh McG    √ 

Review progress against work programme Shelagh McG √ √ √ √ 

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings  

Helen Smith √ As necessary As necessary As necessary 

Chair of Audit Committee Annual Report 

(Referral to Council) 

Helen 
Smith/Chair 

   √ 

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Inge Booth   √  

External Audit 

2015/16 Annual Audit Letter Neil Krajewski   √  

2015/16 Grant Certification Report 
Daniel Watson 

   √ 

2016/17 Opinion Audit Plan 
Daniel Watson 

   √ 

Audit Fee Letter  
Daniel Watson 

   √ 

External Auditor Update 
Daniel Watson 

√ √ √ √ 

P
age 13

Item
 N

o.5



20/4/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2016/17 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 2 of 4 

 Lead Officer 21 July 2016 21 Sept  2016 1 Dec 2016 20 April 2017 

Appointment of External Audit Helen Smith As required 

Internal Audit 

2015/16 Annual Internal Audit Report Niki Riley √    

2016/17 Internal Audit Progress Report 
including Individual Audit Reports & 
Recommendation Follow Up 

Peter Harrison n/a n/a √ √ 

Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including review 
of Internal Audit Charter) 

Peter Harrison √ (2016/17)   √ (2017/18) 

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith  √   

Accounts 

Review 2015/16 Statement of Accounts 
(including the International Auditing Standards 
compliance response) and Annual 
Governance Statement 

Helen Smith √    

2015/16 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report) 

Neil Krajewski  √   

2015/16 Approve Statement of Accounts 
amended following Audit  (if needed) 
(including signature of letter of representation) 

Helen Smith  √   

P
age 14



20/4/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2016/17 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 3 of 4 

 Lead Officer 21 July 2016 21 Sept  2016 1 Dec 2016 20 April 2017 

Review Accounting Policies for 2016/17 
Statement of Accounts 

Pete Notley   
√ (brought-

forward from 
April 2017) 

√  

2016/17 Review of AGS     √ 

Regulatory Framework 

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the St of A/Cs Report above * 

Pete Notley Incorporated into Statement of Accounts 

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith   √  

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity Helen Smith   √  

Review of Performance Management 
Framework 

Simon McVey 
July and April 

from 2017  

  √ 

Review of Risk Management Policy Simon McVey   √ 

Review of Operational Risks above the line of 
risk tolerance  

Simon McVey 
 

  
√ 

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √  √  

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √  √  

Review Local Code of Governance   Helen Smith   √  

Review Whistleblowing Policy Helen Smith Biennial – next due December 2017 

P
age 15



20/4/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2016/17 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 4 of 4 

 Lead Officer 21 July 2016 21 Sept  2016 1 Dec 2016 20 April 2017 

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith   √  

Financial Issues 

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

As required 

 

P
age 16



20/4/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 1 of 4 

 

 Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018 

Committee Administration  

Committee Terms of Reference Inge Booth √    

Set work programme for coming year 
Shelagh 

McGregor 
   √ 

Review progress against work programme Shelagh McG √ √ √ √ 

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings  

Helen Smith √ As needed As needed As needed 

Chair’s Audit Committee Annual Report 

(Referral to Council) 

Helen 
Smith/Chair 

   √ 

AGS Action plan progress report (Ext Audit 
Recs if relevant) 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

√ √ √ √ 

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Inge Booth  √   

External Audit 

2016/17 Annual Audit Letter Daniel Watson   √  

2016/17 Grant Certification Report Daniel Watson    √ 

2017/18 Opinion Audit Plan Daniel Watson    √ 

Audit Fee Letter  Daniel Watson    √ 

P
age 17

Item
 N

o.6



20/4/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 2 of 4 

 Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018 

External Auditor Update Daniel Watson √ √ √ √ 

Appointment of External Audit Helen Smith As required 

Internal Audit 

2016/17 Annual Internal Audit Report Peter Harrison √    

2017/18 Internal Audit Progress Report 
including Individual Audit Reports & 
Recommendation Follow Up 

Peter Harrison √ √ √ √ 

2017/18 Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including 
review of Internal Audit Charter) 

Peter Harrison    √ (2018/19) 

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith  √   

Accounts 

2016/17 Approve Statement of Accounts and 
Annual Governance Statement 

Sign letter of representation 

 

Helen 
Smith/Pete 

Notley 
√    

2016/17 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report) 

Dan Watson √    

P
age 18



20/4/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 3 of 4 

 Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018 

Review Accounting Policies for 2017/18 
Statement of Accounts 

Pete Notley   √   

Review 2017/18 AGS Pete Notley    √ 

Regulatory Framework 

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the St of A/Cs Report above * 

Peter Notley Incorporated into Statement of Accounts 

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith   √  

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity Helen 
Smith/Katie 

Booth 

 √   

Review Whistleblowing Policy  √   

Review of Performance Management 
Framework 

Simon McVey 
√ 

 
  √ 

Review of Risk Management Policy Simon McVey √   √ 

Review of Operational Risks above the line of 
risk tolerance  

Simon McVey 
 

  
√ 

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √  √  

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √  √  

Review Local Code of Governance   Helen Smith   √  

P
age 19



20/4/2017 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME  

Page 4 of 4 

 Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018 

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness 

 
Helen Smith   √  

Financial Issues 

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda 

Shelagh 
McGregor 

As required 

 P
age 20



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

20 April 2017 

CHAIR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE’S ANNUAL 
REPORT 2016/17 

 

PORTFOLIO: not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Cllr Stephen Coleman - Chairman of the Audit 
Committee 

REPORT AUTHOR: Helen Smith – Financial Services Manager 

WARDS: Corporate issue 

KEY DECISION: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report is presented to summarise the activities of the Committee during 
the current Council year. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee: - 

(1) consider the draft report; and 

(2) authorise the Chairman to submit it, with any agreed 
amendments, to Council. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The terms of reference of the Committee require the Council to report 
annually to Council on its work for the year.  As well as informing Councillors 
generally, the report will help to demonstrate the continuing effectiveness of 
the Committee. 

3.2 The attached draft report describes the Committee’s work during 2016/17, 
grouped under functional headings.  For completeness, agenda items for this 
meeting are included in the report on the assumption that they will be 
accepted: if necessary, changes will be made to reflect any different outcome.  
The Council year has been chosen for reporting purposes although this 
means that some cases, e.g. the internal audit annual report, does not fit the 
normal reporting cycle. 

Page 21

Item No.7



2 
 

4.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 The Committee’s terms of reference require the Chairman to produce this 
report; its contents are subject to consideration by Members. 

5.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

5.1 To develop and embed a high performance culture. 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS 

6.1.1 This report has no financial implications 

6.2 Human Resources 

6.2.1 There are no human resources implications of this report. 

6.3 Legal 

6.3.1 There are no legal implications of this report. 

6.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental   

Have you completed and Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

This report is a corporate governance 
issue and has no direct social, 
economic and environmental impacts.   

 

6.5 Equality and Diversity 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an 
Equality Impact Analysis, please 
explain your reasons. 

This report is a corporate governance 
issue and has no direct social, 
economic and environmental impacts.  
. 

6.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

No discernible risks in 
the production of the 
report 

  

 

Page 22



3 
 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – Helen Smith, Financial Services Officer, 01539 793147, 
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Draft Audit Committee Annual Report 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available  

None  

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

28/3/17 n/a 28/3/17 30/3//17 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 20/4/17 17/5/17 28/3/17 28/3/17 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

n/a n/a n/a   

 

Page 23

mailto:h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Appendix 1 
 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17 
 

Chairman’s Foreword 
 
This is the tenth annual report of the Audit Committee and the ninth under my Chairmanship.   

The Committee’s role is to provide the Council and the public with independent assurance 
that it is operating securely and effectively within a sound governance framework.  The 
Committee’s brief covers risk management, performance management, governance and 
constitutional arrangements as well as traditional finance activities.  Our role is to oversee 
the management of those processes to ensure that robust procedures are in place without 
being involved in the detailed operation. 

Audit Committee Members take their role seriously and are committed to their work.  We set 
out a full annual work programme that is monitored at each meeting and revised as 
necessary.  We have been trained on a range of relevant subjects and understand the 
nature of local government audit.  

The Audit Committee was established in October 2006 to provide the Council with effective 
leadership on governance, financial reporting and audit issues.  The Council also had an 
Accounts Committee to approve the draft and audited Statement of Accounts.  From May 
2012 the responsibility for the functions of the Accounts Committee transferred to the Audit 
Committee. 

The Committee’s terms of reference allow it to meet privately with External and Internal Audit 
(without council officers); earlier this year we had the eighth annual session with the two 
organisations to discuss topical issues.   

The Committee receives valuable support from both External and Internal Auditors, and 
enjoys a good working relationship with the respective Audit Managers.  All of their reports 
are presented to the Committee which pursues identified weaknesses in control systems to 
make sure that they are corrected.  In our experience, Council officers are receptive to the 
necessary changes and seek improvements wherever possible. 

I am pleased to present this report on behalf of the Committee.  It confirms the progress that 
we have made and that we continue to be an effective independent element of the Council’s 
governance arrangements.  We know that Local Government doesn’t stand still and the 
Committee will continue to develop so that it is always able to anticipate and deal with new 
aspects of finance and governance. 

 
 
Councillor Stephen Coleman 
Chairman of the Audit Committee 
April 2017

Page 25



Purpose of the Report 

This report summarises the work carried out by the Audit Committee during 2016/17.  It 
demonstrates to Council and stakeholders the effectiveness of the Committee in assessing 
and maintaining the organisation’s internal control environment and governance 
arrangements.  

Background 

The Audit Committee was established in October 2006 to provide the Council with effective 
leadership on governance, financial reporting and audit issues.  The Council also had an 
Accounts Committee to approve the draft and audited Statement of Accounts.  As a result of 
the changes introduced by the Account and Audit Regulations 2011 which no longer 
required member approval of the draft Statement of Accounts, the Accounts Committee was 
discontinued with effect from the Annual General Meeting of Council in May 2012 and from 
that date the responsibility for the remaining functions of the Accounts Committee 
transferred to the Audit Committee 

The Terms of Reference for the Committee have been modelled on CIPFAi guidance and 
hence represent best practice.  A fully functioning Audit Committee needs to provide 
effective challenge across the Council’s activities together with independent assurance on 
the risk management framework and associated internal control environment to Members 
and the public and to demonstrate the impact of its work.  The Terms of Reference are 
reviewed annually with no changes required in 2016/17 to the amendments approved by 
Council on 11 December 2014. 

This is the tenth Annual Report of the Committee, covering the period from May 2016 to April 
2017.  This reporting timescale matches both the Council year and the external auditing 
cycle.   The Committee structures and plans its work around four main functional areas: 
external audit, internal audit, accounts and regulatory framework.  This report follows the 
same format in its summary of the year’s activities. 

The Committee 

Following the expansion of the duties of the Audit Committee to include the functions of the 
Accounts Committee the Committee has increased in size from five Councillors to seven.  All 
Councillors are independent of the Council’s Cabinet and the Committee membership is 
politically balanced.  Councillor Stephen Coleman has served as Chairman May 2008.  The 
Committee met on four occasions in 2016/17.   

The External and Internal Auditors, Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer are invited 
to all Committee meetings.  In addition its Members meet periodically with both Audit 
Managers to discuss topical issues without officers being present.  The Committee has the 
ability to seek attendance from any officer or Member of the Council and has exercised this 
right on several occasions. 

Training is an essential element for an Audit Committee.  The Committee receive annual 
training, have been updated on statutory accounting requirements and are alert to the 
possibility of areas in which their knowledge could be extended. 

The Committee has developed a structured work programme which maps out its activities on 
an annual basis.  This programme is supplemented by new requirements as they are 
identified.  Progress against the programme is monitored at each Committee meeting.  

External Audit 

The Government changed the arrangements for the delivery of external audit for local 
government following the announcement of the abolition of the Audit Commission.  The 
external audit contract for the North West was awarded to Grant Thornton from September 
2012 for five years.   

Page 26



The Audit Committee receives and approves the external auditor’s Annual Audit Plan.  It 
comments on the fee rates and work programme consultation carried out by Grant Thornton 
based on fees set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd, the independent company set 
up by the Local Government Association with delegated statutory functions to set audit fees 
and make arrangements for certain audits.  Audit Committee receives the Annual Findings 
Report and the annual Grant Certification Report and monitors actions against the 
recommendations within these reports.  The Government have dropped the requirement of 
auditors to prepare a full Use of Resources assessment: instead a judgement is included in 
the Annual Governance Report indicating whether the Council has adequate arrangements 
to secure Value for Money in the use of resources.  The Annual Audit Letter summarised the 
auditor’s work for the year and opinion on the Council’s financial statements and value for 
money arrangements, as summarised later in this report. 

Internal Audit 

The Committee oversees the work of Internal Audit.  The internal audit service is currently 
provided by TIAA Ltd following a tendering exercise and prior to 1 April 2016 was provided 
by the Internal Audit Shared Service of Cumbria County Council (which incorporates the 
Internal Audit functions for Cumbria County Council, Carlisle City Council, Copeland 
Borough Council and Cumbria Police) The internal auditors terms of reference are formally 
reviewed each year to ensure they continue to meet professional standards and good 
practice. 

At the beginning of the year the Committee approves the internal audit plan which sets out 
the individual audits to be carried out: coverage of the Council’s activities is informed by a 
risk-based audit needs assessment.  This process, introduced from April 2015, now 
focusses internal audit resources at areas of known or perceived risk within the Council, 
thereby increasing the possibility of lower levels of assurance.  

Performance against the plan is monitored by formal progress reports to each Committee 
meeting, supplemented as necessary by verbal updates from the Internal Audit Manager.  
The Committee closely monitors the implementation of recommendations made by both 
External and Internal Audit. 

All individual audit reports are presented to the Committee.  During the 2016/17 year, 12 
reports were considered, including 4 brought-forward from 2015/16, which recorded the 
following assurance levels:ii 

Assurance Level 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 

Substantial 0 2 3 0 

Reasonable 9 8 11 6 

Limited (previously Partial) 3 1 3 1 

None (previously Limited) 0 0 0 0 

Total 12 11 17 7 

 

Four reports were at draft stage at the end of the year and work was in progress on a further 
two audits.  The final audit for 2016/17, electoral registration, has been deferred until 
2017/18 due to organisational changes. 

The Committee concentrates its attention on high priority recommendationsiii made in 
reports.  Where a report carries partial or limited assurance, the Committee has adopted the 
practice of requiring the relevant Assistant Director or Operational Manager to attend its next 
meeting where appropriate to demonstrate that progress is being made in implementing its 
recommendations.  If necessary, Members have requested subsequent update reports.   

Page 27



. 

The Internal Audit Manager presented her Annual Report for 2015/16 to the Committee in 
July 2016.  This summarised the results of her work during the year and contains her opinion 
of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment.  That 
opinion concludes that, for the systems reviewed, the Council has reasonable assurance, 
although there are weaknesses that put some system objectives at risk.  In the Internal Audit 
Manager’s experience, this profile of assurance is comparable with other local authorities.  
The 2016/17 Annual Internal Audit Report will be prepared for the July 2017 Committee 
meeting.  

In September 2016 the Committee considered a review of the effectiveness of the system of 
Internal Audit by reference to Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and associated 
Local Government Application Note (LGAN).  This showed that TIAA Ltd fully complied with 
the relevant standards and concluded it was operating effectively. 

The Council’s Internal Auditors operate within a broad framework set by the contract 
between the two organisations. It is a requirement of the mandatory Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards that the Council has an audit charter in place, which has been approved by 
senior management and the Audit Committee.  Key elements of the Charter are: 

 Reference to the mandatory nature of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 The functional reporting line of internal audit to the Audit Committee to maintain audit 
independence. 

 The requirement for internal audit to provide an annual opinion on the Council’s 
arrangements for governance, risk management and internal control. 

 Internal Audit’s right of access to all activities, premises, records, personnel, cash 
and stores as required to undertake agreed internal audit assignments. 

 The responsibility of the Head of Internal audit (the Group Audit Manager) to prepare 
an annual risk based audit plan for approval by senior management and the Audit 
Committee. 

 Certain specific responsibilities of the Head of Internal audit  
The Internal Audit Charter will be reviewed annually and submitted for approval to the Audit 
Committee alongside the annual audit plan. 
 

Accounts  

Each year CIPFA updates the accounting requirements for statutory accounts by issuing a 
revised Code of Practice.  The Committee is informed of these changes by means of an 
informal training session and approves the resulting amendments to the Council’s 
Accounting Policies.  In April 2016 the Committee noted a draft set of Accounting Policies 
that would be applicable for the preparation of the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts.   

Changes to the Accounts and Audit Regulations no longer require member approval of the 
draft Statement of Accounts prior to its submission for audit.  Instead the Council’s Chief 
Finance Officer, the Assistant Director (Resources) approved the draft Statement by the 
statutory deadline of 30 June 2016.   

In September 2016 the Audit Committee received the Audit Findings Report from Grant 
Thornton, incorporating their draft opinion on the 2015/16 accounts, and approved the 
audited Statement of Accounts.  The auditors reported their intention to provide an 
unqualified opinion on the financial statements.  Their key message was that the Council 
produced good quality financial statements that were free from material error and supported 
by comprehensive working papers.  Only disclosure amendments were required to the 
accounts and there were no major issues identified.   

In respect of the Authority’s arrangements for securing value for money, Grant Thornton 
reported proper arrangements were in place to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness.  The Council is prioritising its resources within tighter budgets and is 

Page 28



challenging the way it delivers its services to ensure cost reductions are achieved, whilst 
maintaining service delivery.   

The Annual Audit Letter, reported to Audit Committee in December 2016 confirmed the audit 
conclusions in relation to 2015/16 were: 

 an unqualified opinion on the accounts which give a true and fair view of the 
Council's financial position as at 31 March 2016 and its income and expenditure for 
the year 

 an unqualified conclusion in respect of the Council's arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

Due to changes in the statutory requirements the Council will be required to produce the 
2017/18 accounts by the end of May 2018 and the audit must be completed by the end of 
July 2018: both these deadlines are one month shorter than the current arrangements.  The 
Council has undertaken to produce the 2016/17 accounts to the new timetable and the 
external audit has been arranged for June and July 2017 with the expectation that the 
external audit report will be considered by Audit Committee in July 2017. 

 

Regulatory Framework 

Corporate Governance  

Following drafting work by the Audit Committee using a framework produced by CIPFA and 
SOLACEiv, Council approved a Local Code of Governance in May 2008.  The Committee 
reviews this Code annually.  CIPFA published a revised version of their governance 
framework in 2016 which applied from 1 April 2016.  Audit Committee considered and 
approved a re-written Local Code of Governance in December 2016 which was approved by 
Council later in December 2016. 

The Council is required to formally review its governance arrangements annually and the 
Committee carries out this work on its behalf.  This is achieved by the production of an 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) which is a far-reaching review of the effectiveness of 
the Council’s governance, including departmental assurance statements and Internal Audit’s 
annual opinion report. 

Members of the Audit Committee sat on a Panel which examined and approved the 2015/16 
AGS before its adoption by the Leader and Chief Executive and inclusion in the Statement of 
Accounts.  The final Statement provides a thorough review of governance arrangements.  
Audit Committee members will revisit the subject when they review the 2016/17 AGS. 

The Audit Committee conducts an annual review of the Constitution.  During 2015/16 
substantial changes were made to improve the financial management and contract 
management processes of the Council including changes to reflect statutory changes in the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2015.  Only minor changes were required in 2016/17 and 
these were approved by Audit Committee in December 2017 and Council in March 2017. 

Fraud Prevention and Whistleblowing 

The promotion of fraud awareness is important to Audit Committee Members who encourage 
officers in their efforts; as a visible demonstration of this commitment, the Committee has 
introduced an annual report of anti-fraud activity, the first being presented in 2009.  The 
Committee received a review in December 2016 of activity up to that date.  Following the 
move to Universal Credit a Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) has been set up and 
fraud investigation staff from this Council transferred to the SFIS in July 2015. The Council 
retained one member of the counter-fraud team as a Corporate Anti-Fraud Officer who 
works closely with both the Revenues and Benefits Team and the Finance Team in tackling 
fraud.  The Corporate Anti-Fraud Officer has also be involved in raising the profile of anti-
fraud and corruption in the authority. This has included attending team meetings, briefing 

Page 29



Operational managers and reviewing policies and practices related to Interviews under 
Caution across the Council to ensure consistency of practice.  During 2016 the Corporate 
Anti-Fraud Officer has carried out fraud risk assessments with Operational Managers. This 
helps to direct her activity to key risk areas and has helped change procedures to reduce 
opportunity for fraud. Recently compulsory fraud awareness training has been introduced for 
all new staff.  Investigations have included the submission of false invoices for flood grant 
claims, claims for business rate flood relief for properties which were not flooded and a 
review of council tax exemptions. The Council is also working with South Lakes Housing to 
review all applications for Right-to-Buy as this has been identified nationally as an area of 
high risk and high value. 

During the year, the Committee reviewed the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy to ensure 
robust reporting and investigation arrangements where a fraudulent act is suspected and 
concluded no amendments were required.  Risk Management  

The Committee receives annual progress reports on the Council’s risk management 
arrangements.  The Committee maintains a risk register relating to its own activities and 
reviews this periodically.  The experience gained from the years of the Committee’s 
existence has enabled it to manage its risks effectively within its agreed risk appetite.   

Performance Management  

The Committee receives an annual progress report on the Council’s performance 
management arrangements.  The Committee received the annual review of the Performance 
Management Framework in April 2017. The framework describes how the Council monitors 
its performance and is intended to support the Council in developing and embedding a high 
performance culture to further enhance the quality of services for the people of South 
Lakeland. 

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee 

Officers from the Council used a checklist to test the effectiveness of the Committee 
produced by CIPFA as part of its Practical Guidance for Local Authority and Police Audit 
Committees in 2013.  The conclusion was that the Committee has been established in 
accordance with best practice and is operating effectively in all material respects. The 
Guidance includes suggested terms of reference for audit committees: these were approved 
by Council in December 2014.  No amendments were required for 2016/17. Minor 
weaknesses identified in past reviews have been recognised and addressed, including the 
introduction of separate meetings with the Internal and External Audit Managers; however 
Members need to be continually aware of areas in which they should be challenging the 
performance of the Cabinet and Council generally. 

Conclusions 

This Annual Report has summarised the work of the Committee over the last twelve months, 
indicating that it is functioning in accordance with best practice and providing independent 
assurance of the Council’s governance arrangements.  Committee Members believe that it is 
carrying out this role effectively, an opinion supported by the officer review. 

 The Committee will continue to develop its role and impact through ongoing Member 
training and refinement of its work programme in order to meet future challenges.  

 

 

 

                                           
i
 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, which sets standards for local 
government accounting and audit. 
 

Page 30



                                                                                                                                   
 
ii
 Internal Audit terminology for assurance levels given to individual audits have changed for 2016/17 

onwards.  The current terms used by Internal Audit are: 
Substantial: There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve the system 

objectives and this minimises risk. 
Reasonable: There is a reasonable system of internal control in place which should ensure 

that system objectives are generally achieved, but some issues have been 
raised which may result in a degree of risk exposure beyond that which is 
considered acceptable. 

Limited: The system of internal control designed to achieve the system objectives is 
not sufficient. Some areas are satisfactory but there are an unacceptable 
number of weaknesses which have been identified and the level of non-
compliance and / or weaknesses in the system of internal control puts the 
system objectives at risk.  This was previously known as partial assurance. 

 
None:  Fundamental weaknesses have been identified in the system of internal 

control resulting in the control environment being unacceptably weak and 
expose the system objectives to a high degree of risk.  This was previously 
known as limited assurance 

 
iii
 Internal Audit report recommendations are prioritised as: 

1 Urgent Fundamental control issue on which action should be 
taken immediately 

2 
Important Control issue on which action should be taken at the 

earliest opportunity. 

3 Routine Control issue on which action should be taken. 

 
Recommendations are also made to improve operational effectiveness. 
 
High: Significant risk exposure identified arising from a fundamental weakness in 

the system of internal control; 
Medium: Some risk exposure identified from a weakness in the system of internal 

control; 
Advisory: Minor risk exposure/suggested improvement to enhance the system of 

control. 
 

iv
 The Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers. 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



 
 

 

Shelagh McGregor 
Assistant Director (Resources) 
South Lakeland District Council 
South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street 
Kendal 
Cumbria 
LA9 4UF 

23 March 2017 

Dear Shelagh 
 
Certification work for South Lakeland District Council for year ended 31 March 2016 

We are required to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim submitted by South Lakeland 
District Council ('the Council'). This certification typically takes place six to nine months after 
the claim period and represents a final but important part of the process to confirm the 
Council's entitlement to funding. 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 gave the Secretary of State power to transfer 
Audit Commission responsibilities to other bodies. Public Sector Audit Appointments 
(PSAA) have taken on the transitional responsibilities for the Housing Benefit "COUNT" 
framework issued by the Audit Commission in February 2015. 

We have certified the Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim for the financial year 2015/16 
relating to subsidy claimed of £18,977,709. Further details relating to the claim certified are 
set out in Appendix A. 

The indicative fee for the certification of the Council's 2015/16 Housing Benefit claim was 
based on the final 2013/14 certification fee, reflecting the amount of work required by the 
auditor to certify the subsidy claim that year. The indicative fee set by the Audit Commission 
was £5,082. 

Our initial sample testing of Housing Benefit cases reflected in the claim identified errors and 
there were errors identified in our 2014/15 certification work which required us to undertake 
additional testing, in line with the HB COUNT framework. We have agreed an additional 
£2,470 fee with the Council's Strategic Finance Manager, which is subject to approval by 
PSAA. Further details are set out in Appendix B 

Yours sincerely 

 
 
 
 
John Farrar 
 
Engagement Lead 
 
For Grant Thornton UK LLP 

  

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
4 Hardman Square 
Spinningfields 
Manchester M3 3EB 
T +44 (0) 161 953 6900 
F +44 (0) 161 953 6901 

 

Page 33

Item No.8



 2 

Appendix A – Certification of 2015/16 Housing Benefit claim 

Claim or 
return 

Value 

(£) 

Amended? Amendment 
(£) 

Qualified?  
 

Comments 

Housing 
benefits 
subsidy 
claim 

18,977,709 Yes (278) Yes Qualification 

In accordance with the HBCOUNT 
methodology, further testing was 
completed on a sample of cases 
selected from cell 94 due to errors 
identified in the prior year relating to 
the assessment of claimant’s income, 
which had led to overpayments of 
benefit. This testing did not identify 
any errors in relation to benefit being 
overpaid.  

Testing of an initial sample of cases 
within cell 11 identified one case 
whereby benefit had been underpaid 
as a result of an incorrect rent amount 
being used. Additional testing was 
completed on rent amounts and also 
on income assessments, to address 
errors identified in the prior year. No 
further errors were found in relation 
to rent amounts and one error was 
found in the additional testing relating 
to income assessments. This related to 
an underpayment and therefore no 
amendment could be made for this.  

Amendments 

Amendments were made to the claim 
for errors identified in testing of HRA 
Rent Rebates and Non HRA Rent 
Rebates. The full populations of these 
benefit types were tested for issues 
identified in the prior year and 
amendments were able to be made for 
errors found in the testing. The net 
impact of the errors was a £278 
reduction to the amount of total 
subsidy claimed. 

 

  

Page 34



 3 

Appendix B: Fees for 2015/16 certification work 

Claim or 
return 

2013/14 fee 
(£)  

2015/16 
indicative 
fee (£) 

2015/16 
actual fee 
(£) 

Variance 
Indicative 
to 
Actual(£) 

Explanation for 
variances 

Housing 
benefits 
subsidy claim 
(BEN01) 

6,776 5,082 7,552 2,470 The variance between 
indicative and actual fee 
is due to the additional 
cost of reviewing and 
re-performing 
additional samples. This   
testing was completed 
in order to address the 
errors identified in our 
initial sample testing 
and to address issues 
arising from prior year 
findings.  

  

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

The Audit Plan

for South Lakeland District Council

Year ended 31 March 2017

John Farrar

Engagement lead

T 0161 234 6384

E john.farrar@uk.gt.com

Daniel Watson

Manager

T 0161 234 6344

E daniel.w atson@uk.gt.com

Maeve Morgan

Audit Senior

T 0161 953 6446

E maeve.t.morgan@uk.gt.com

April 2017

P
age 37

Item
 N

o.9



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17 2

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales:No.OC307742.Registered office: Grant Thornton House,Melton Street, Euston Square,London NW1 2EP.
A list of members is available from our registered office. GrantThornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated bythe Financial ConductAuthority.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member f irm of GrantThornton In ternational Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are nota worldwide partnership.Servi ces are delivered by the member f irms. GTIL and
its member firms are notagentsof, and do notobligate,one another and are not liable for one another’sacts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

This Audit Plan sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance, who, in the case of South Lakeland District Council, is the Audit Committee, an overview of the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the consequences of 

our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. It also helps us 
gain a better understanding of the Council and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management. 

We are required to perform our audit in line with Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit Office 
(NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015. Our responsibilities under the Code are to:

-give an opinion on the Council's financial statements
-satisfy ourselves the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair 
view.

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process.  
It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change. In particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks 

which may affect the Council or all weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit. We do not accept any responsibility for any 
loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other 

purpose. 

We look forward to working with you during the course of the audit.

Yours sincerely

John Farrar

Engagement Lead

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

4 Hardman Square

Spinningfields

Manchester

M3 3EB

T +44 (0)161 953 6900 

www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

April 2017

Dear Members of the Audit Committee

Audit Plan for South Lakeland Council for the year ending 31 March 2017

South Lakeland District Council
South Lakeland House

Lowther Street
Kendal

Cumbria
LA9 4UF

P
age 38



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Contents

Section

Understanding your business and key developments 4

Materiality 5

Significant risks identified 6-7

Other risks identified                                                                                            8-10

Value for Money                                                                                                11 -12 

Other audit responsibilities                                                                                     13

Results of interim audit work 14

The audit cycle                                                                                                        15

Audit fees 16

Independence and non-audit services 17

Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance 18

3

P
age 39



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Understanding your business and key developments

Key developments
Financial reporting changes

Our response

 We aim to complete all our substantive audit work of your financial statements by 20 July 2017

 As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements accurately reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2016/17 Code 

 We will keep you informed of changes to the financial reporting requirements for 2016/17 through on -going discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops.

Autumn Statement 

The Chancellor detailed plans in the Autumn Statement to increase funding for Housing and 

Infrastructure, and further extend devolved powers to Local Authorities. No plans were announced to 

increase funding for other services. 

Financial position

The Council set a balanced budget for 2016/17 on 24 February 2016 with a revenue budget of 

£12.6m. The latest finance monitoring report shows a forecast underspend of £450k by year end in 

addition to £850k of projected carry forward requests.

In December 2016 the Council was allocated £2.4m of the £60m available from the new Community 

Housing Fund. The funding is intended to help local authorities tackle problems linked to high levels 

of second home ownership in their communities. The Council plans to set up an earmarked reserve 

for any grant monies unspent at year end.

The Council’s capital programme for 2016/17 was set at £6.2m with spend to date of £3.1m. The 

Council has identified schemes totall ing £1.1m which require re-profiling into 2017/18.

The Council has refreshed it's draft budget which covers the period from 2017/18 to 2021/22.  

The Council has achieved a balanced budget for 2017/18 including an increase in Council Tax of £5. 

Savings will be required from 2018/19 onwards to address projected deficits of £1.2m per annum.

The Council expects to achieve £850k of savings through Customer Connect and is currently 

developing plans to address the residual deficit.

CIPFA Code of Practice 2016/17 (the Code)

Changes to the Code in 2016/17 reflect aims of the 'Telling the Story' project, to 

streamline the financial statements to be more in line with internal organisational 

reporting and improve accessibility to the reader of the financial statements.

The changes affect the presentation of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement and the Movement in Reserves Statements, segmental reporting 

disclosures and a new Expenditure and Funding Analysis note has been introduced. 

The Code also requires these amendments to be reflected in the 2015/16 

comparatives by way of a prior period adjustment.

Earlier closedown

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require councils to bring forward the 

approval and audit of financial statements to 31 July by the 2017/18 financial year.

The Council has made good progress in achieving earlier closedown ahead of the 

statutory deadline and has set an Audit Committee date of 20 July 2017 to approve 

the audited accounts.

We are working closely with the Council’s finance team to achieve the earlier 

deadline.

4

P
age 40



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Materiality
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in planning and 

performing an audit. The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but 

also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law.An item does not necessarily have to be large to be considered to have a material effect on 

the financial statements. An item may be considered to be material by nature, for example, when greater precision is required(e.g. senior manager salaries and allowances). 

We determine planning materiality (materiality for the financial statements as a whole determined at the planning stage of the audit) in order to estimate the tolerable level of misstatement in 

the financial statements, assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests, calculate sample sizes and assist in evaluating the effect of known and likely misstatements in 

the financial statements.

We have determined planning materiality based upon professional judgement in the context of our knowledge of the Council. In line with previous years, we have calculated financial 

statements materiality based on a proportion of the gross revenue expenditure of the Council. For purposes of planning the audit we have determined overall materiality to be £935k (being 

2% of gross revenue expenditure). Our assessment of materiality is kept under review throughout the audit process and we will advise you if we revise this during the audit.

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance because 

we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. “Trivial” matters are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually 

or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial to be £47k.

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there are “particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which misstatements of 

lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users.” We have identified the following items 

where separate materiality levels are appropriate:

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level

Related Party Transactions Due to the sensitive nature of these transactions and the public interest in 

them. Individual misstatements w ill also be evaluated w ith reference to how  

material they are to the other party.

£20,000

Disclosures of off icers' remuneration, salary 

bandings and exit packages in the notes to the 

f inancial statements

Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for 

them to be made.

£20,000

5

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if  they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of the f inancial statements; Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, 

or a combination of both; and Judgments about matters that are material to users of the f inancial statements are based on a consideration of the common financial inf ormation needs 

of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on specif ic individual users, w hose needs may vary w idely, is not considered. (ISA (UK and Ireland) 320)

P
age 41



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Significant risks identified
An audit is focused on risks. Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK and Ireland) as risks that, in the judgment of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In 
identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher 

risk of material misstatement.

Significant risk Description Audit procedures

The revenue cycle

includes fraudulent 

transactions

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a presumed 

risk that revenue streams may be misstated due to the 

improper recognition of revenue.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material misstatement 

due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at 

South Lakeland District Council, w e have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue 

recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• The culture and ethical framew orks of local authorities, including South Lakeland District 

Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable

Therefore w e do not consider this to be a signif icant risk for South Lakeland District Council.

Management over-

ride of controls

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a non-

rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of management 

over-ride of controls is present in all entities.

Work planned:

• Review  of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management

• Review  of journal entry process and selection of unusual journal entries for testing back to 

supporting documentation 

• Review  of unusual signif icant transactions 

6

"Signif icant risks often relate to signif icant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or 

nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for w hich there is signif icant measurement uncertainty." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315) . In making the review  of unusual signif icant transactions "the auditor shall treat identif ied signif icant related party transactions outside the entity's 

normal course of business as giving rise to signif icant risks." (ISA (UK and Ireland) 550)

P
age 42



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Significant risks identified (continued)

Significant risk Description Audit procedures

Valuation of property, plant and 

equipment 

The Council revalues its assets on 

a rolling basis over a four year 

period. The Code requires that the 

Council ensures that the carrying 

value at the balance sheet date is 

not materially different from the 

current value. This represents a 

signif icant estimate by management 

in the f inancial statements.

Work completed to date:

 Review  of management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate.

 Review  of the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used.

 Review  of the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their w ork.

Further work planned:

 Discussions w ith the valuer about the basis on w hich the valuation is carried out and challenge of the 

key assumptions.

 Review  and challenge of the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent w ith our 

understanding.

 Evaluation of the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the year and 

how  management has satisf ied themselves that these are not materially different to current value.

 Testing of a sample of revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into the 

Council's asset register and reported accurately in the f inancial statements.

Valuation of pension fund net 

liability

The Council's pension fund asset 

and liability as reflected in its 

balance sheet represent  a 

signif icant estimate in the f inancial 

statements.

Work planned:

 We w ill identify the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund liability is not 

materially misstated. We w ill also assess w hether these controls w ere implemented as expected and 

w hether they are suff icient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement.

 We w ill review  the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary w ho carried out your pension 

fund valuation. We w ill gain an understanding of the basis on w hich the valuation is carried out.

 We w ill undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made. 

 We w ill review  the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in notes to the 

f inancial statements w ith the actuarial report from your actuary.

We have also identified the following significant risks of material misstatement from our understanding of the entity. We set out below the work we have completed to date 
and the work we plan to address these risks.

7

P
age 43



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Other risks identified
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement 
cannot be reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of 

substantive work. The risk of misstatement for an RPR or other risk is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly 
judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of the business.

Reasonably possible risks Description of risk Audit procedures

Operating expenses Year end creditors and accruals 

are understated or not recorded in 

the correct period.

Work completed to date: 

• We have review ed the systems and controls that the Council has in place to pay and record 

expenditure incurred.

• We have w alked-through controls relevant to the risk identif ied. From this w ork w e have not 

identif ied any control w eaknesses or errors.

Work planned: 

• We w ill substantively test a sample of year end creditors and accruals.

• We w ill complete testing of payments post year-end and a sample of creditors and accruals 

to provide assurance "cut-off" is materially correct (ie. that they are recorded in the right 

period).

Employee remuneration Employee remuneration expenses 

and accruals are understated

Work completed to date: 

• We have w alked-through the controls the Council has in place in relation to this risk.

Work planned: 

• We w ill complete substantive testing of signif icant year end payroll accruals.

• We w ill perform analytical procedures to identify discrepancies in monthly payrolls and 

consideration as to w hether payroll expenditure is in line w ith our expectations based on 

supporting evidence.

• We w ill test the reconciliation betw een the payroll system and the amounts recorded in the 

general ledger and f inancial statements.

8

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain suff icient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks 

may relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and signif icant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of w hich often permit highly 

automated processing w ith little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an 

understanding of them." (ISA (UK and Ireland) 315) 

P
age 44



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Other risks identified (continued)
Other risks Description of risk Audit procedures

Changes to the presentation of local authority 

f inancial statements

CIPFA has been w orking on the 

‘Telling the Story’ project, for 

w hich the aim w as to streamline 

the f inancial statements and 

improve accessibility to the user 

and this has resulted in changes 

to the 2016/17 Code of Practice.

The changes affect the 

presentation of income and 

expenditure in the f inancial 

statements and associated 

disclosure notes. A prior period 

adjustment (PPA) to restate the 

2015/16 comparative f igures is 

also required.

Work planned:

 We w ill document and evaluate the process for recording the required f inancial reporting 

changes to the 2016/17 f inancial statements.

 We w ill review  the re-classif ication of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (CIES) comparatives to ensure that they are in line w ith the Council’s internal 

reporting structure.

 We w ill review  the appropriateness of the revised grouping of entries w ithin the 

Movement In Reserves Statement (MIRS).

 We w ill test the classif ication of income and expenditure for 2016/17 recorded w ithin the 

Cost of Services section of the CIES.

 We w ill test the completeness of income and expenditure by review ing the reconciliation 

of the CIES to the general ledger.

 We w ill test the classif ication of income and expenditure reported w ithin the new  

Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) note to the f inancial statements.

 We w ill review  the new  segmental reporting disclosures w ithin the 2016/17 f inancial 

statements  to ensure compliance w ith the CIPFA Code of Practice.

9

P
age 45



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Other risks identified (continued)

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, “irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for 

each material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure”. All other material balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures 
will not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in the previous sections but will include:

• Heritage assets
• Cash and cash equivalents

• Trade and other receivables
• Borrowings and other liabilities (long and short term)

• Provisions
• Useable and unusable reserves

• Movement in Reserves Statement and associated notes
• Statement of cash flows and associated notes

• Financing and investment income and expenditure

• Taxation and non-specific grants
• New note disclosures in relation to “Telling the Story”

• Officers' remuneration note
• Leases note

• Related party transactions note
• Capital expenditure and capital financing note

• Financial instruments note
• Collection Fund and associated notes

10

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption 

in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a 
going concern” (ISA (UK and Ireland) 570). We will review the management's assessment of the going concern assumption and the disclosures in the financial 

statements. 

P
age 46



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Value for Money

Background

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. This is known as the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion. 

The National Audit Office (NAO) issued its guidance for auditors on value for 
money work for 2016/17 in November 2016. The guidance states that for local 
government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion on whether the 
Council has proper arrangements in place.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

This is supported by three sub-criteria as set out opposite:

Sub-criteria Detail

Informed decision 
making

• Acting in the public interest, through demonstrating and 

applying the principles and values of sound governance

• Understanding and using appropriate cost and 

performance information (including, where relevant, 
information from regulatory/monitoring bodies) to 

support informed decision making and performance 
management

• Reliable and timely financial reporting that supports the 
delivery of strategic priorities

• Managing risks effectively and maintaining a sound system 
of internal control

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

• Planning finances effectively to support the sustainable 
delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory 

functions
• Managing and utilising assets effectively to support the 

delivery of strategic priorities
• Planning, organising and developing the workforce 

effectively to deliver strategic priorities.

Working with 
partners and 

other third parties

• Working with third parties effectively to deliver strategic 
priorities

• Commissioning services effectively to support the 
delivery of strategic priorities

• Procuring supplies and services effectively to support the 
delivery of strategic priorities.

11

P
age 47



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Value for Money (continued)

Risk assessment

We have carried out an initial risk assessment based on the NAO's auditor's guidance note (AGN03). In our initial risk assessment, we considered:

• our cumulative knowledge of the Council, including work performed in previous years in respect of the VfM conclusion and the opinion on the financial statements.

• the findings of other inspectorates and review agencies.

• any illustrative significant risks identified and communicated by the NAO in its Supporting Information.

• any other evidence which we consider necessary to conclude on your arrangements.

We have not identified any significant risks from our initial risk assessment. We will continue our review of your arrangements, including reviewing your Annual 
Governance Statement, before we issue our auditor's report.

12

Reporting

The results of our VfM audit work and the key messages arising will be reported in our Audit Findings Report and in the Annual Audit Letter.

We will include our conclusion in our auditor's report on your financial statements which we will issue following the Audit Committee on 20 July 2017.

P
age 48



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Other audit responsibilities

13

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice in relation to your financial statements and arrangements for economy, efficiency and effectiveness we 
have a number of other audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We will undertake work to satisfy ourselves that the disclosures made in your Annual Governance Statement are in line with CIPFA/SOLACE guidance and 
consistent with our knowledge of the Council.

• We will read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the financial statements on which we give an  opinion and that the disclosures included 
in it are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.

• We will carry out work on your  consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government Accounts process in accordance with NAO instructions to auditors.
• We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required, including:

• We will give electors the opportunity to raise questions about your financial statements and consider and decide upon any objections received in relation to 
the financial statements;

• issue of a report in the public interest; and
• making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of State

• We certify completion of our audit. 

P
age 49



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Results of  interim audit work

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below:

Work performed Conclusion

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control environment 

relevant to the preparation of the f inancial statements including:

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values

• Commitment to competence

• Participation by those charged w ith governance

• Management's philosophy and operating style

• Organisational structure

• Assignment of authority and responsibility

• Human resource policies and practices

Our w ork has identif ied no material w eaknesses w hich are likely 

to adversely impact on the Council's f inancial statements

Review of information technology

controls

Our information systems specialist performed a high level review  of 

the general IT control environment, as part of the overall review  of the 

internal controls system. 

IT (information technology) controls w ere observed to have been 

largely implemented in accordance w ith our documented 

understanding. Several minor recommendations w ere made and these 

have been communicated w ith management.

Our w ork has identif ied no material w eaknesses w hich are likely 

to adversely impact on the Council's f inancial statements

Walkthrough testing We have completed w alkthrough tests of the Council's controls 

operating in areas w here w e consider that  there is a risk of material 

misstatement to the f inancial statements.

Our w ork has not identif ied any issues w hich w e w ish to bring to your 

attention. Internal controls have been implemented by the Council in 

accordance w ith our documented understanding. 

Our w ork has not identif ied any w eaknesses w hich impact on our 

audit approach. 

Journal entry controls We have review ed the Council's journal entry policies and procedures 
as part of determining our journal entry testing strategy and have not 
identif ied any material w eaknesses w hich are likely to adversely 
impact on the Council's control environment or f inancial statements.

Our w ork has identif ied no material w eaknesses w hich are likely 

to adversely impact on the Council's f inancial statements.

14

P
age 50



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

The audit cycle

The audit timeline

Key dates:

Audit phases:

Year end: 

31 March 2017

Close out: 

7 July 2017

Audit Committee: 

20 July 2017

Sign off: 

by 31st July 2017

Planning 

December 2016

Interim  

w /c 20 March 2017

Final  

w /c 5 June 2017

Completion  

July 2017

Key elements

 Planning meeting w ith management to 

inform audit planning and agree audit 

timetable

 Discussions w ith those charged w ith 

governance and internal audit to 

inform audit planning

 Discuss draft Audit Plan w ith 

management

 Issue the Audit Plan to management 

and Audit Committee

 Meeting w ith Audit Committee to 

discuss the Audit Plan

Key elements

 Document design effectiveness of key 

accounting systems and processes

 Review  of key judgements and 

estimates

 Early substantive audit testing

 Review  of Value for Money 

arrangements

 Issue Progress report to management 

and Audit Committee

Key elements

 Audit teams onsite to 

complete detailed audit testing

 Weekly update meetings w ith 

management to discuss 

f indings as they arise

Key elements

 Issue draft Audit Findings to 

management

 Meeting w ith management to discuss 

Audit Findings

 Issue draft Audit Findings to Audit 

Committee

 Audit Findings presentation to Audit 

Committee

 Finalise approval and signing of 

f inancial statements and audit report

 Submission of WGA assurance 

statement

Debrief 

August 2017

15

P
age 51



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Fees

£

Council audit 55,851

Grant Certification 7,545

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 63,396

Audit Fees

Our fee assumptions include:

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are supplied by the 

agreed dates and in accordance with the agreed upon information 
request list

 The scope of the audit, and the Council and its activities, have not 
changed significantly

 The Council will make available management and accounting staff to 
help us locate information and to provide explanations

 The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, supporting 
working papers and evidence agree to the accounts, and all audit 

queries are resolved promptly.

Grant certification

 Our fees for grant certification cover only housing benefit subsidy 
certification, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited

 Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance 

reports, are shown under 'Fees for other services'.

What is included within our fees

 A reliable and risk-focused audit appropriate for your Council

 Invitations to events hosted by Grant Thornton in your sector, as well as the wider 
finance community

 Regular sector updates

 Ad-hoc telephone calls and queries

 Technical briefings and updates

 Regular contact to discuss strategy and other important areas

 A review of accounting policies for appropriateness and consistency

 Annual technical updates for members of your finance team

• Regular Audit Committee Progress Reports

Fees for other services

There are no ‘other services’ planned. Any changes will be reported in our Audit 
Findings Report and Annual Audit Letter.

16

P
age 52



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Independence and non-audit services

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of matters relating to our independence. We confirm that there are no significant 
facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the Auditing Practices Board's 

Ethical Standards and we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethica l Standards.

Grant Thornton UK LLP does not provide any other audit related or non-audit services.

17

P
age 53



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  South Lakeland District Council  |  2016/17

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance

Our communication plan

Audit 

Plan

Audit 

Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged w ith governance



Overview  of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications



View s about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

f inancial reporting practices, signif icant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and w ritten representations that have been sought



Confirmation of independence and objectivity  

A statement that w e have complied w ith  relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters w hich might  be thought to bear on independence. 

Details of non-audit w ork performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

netw ork f irms, together w ith  fees charged.  

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence

 

Material w eaknesses in internal control identif ied during the audit 

Identif ication or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others w hich results in material misstatement of the f inancial 

statements



Non compliance w ith law s and regulations 

Expected modif ications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter 

Uncorrected misstatements 

Signif icant matters arising in connection w ith related parties 

Signif icant matters in relation to going concern  

International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA) 260, as w ell as other ISAs (UK 

and Ireland) prescribe matters w hich w e are required to communicate w ith those 

charged w ith governance, and w hich w e set out in the table opposite.  

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 

w hile The Audit Findings w ill be issued prior to approval of the f inancial statements  and 

w ill present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together w ith an 

explanation as to how  these have been resolved.

We w ill communicate any adverse or unexpected f indings affecting the audit on a timely 

basis, either informally or via a report to the Council.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor w e are responsible for performing the audit in accordance w ith ISAs (UK and 

Ireland), w hich is directed tow ards forming and expressing an opinion on the f inancial 

statements that have been prepared by management w ith the oversight of those charged 

w ith governance.

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 

(http://w ww.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/)

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, w e have a broad remit 

covering f inance and governance matters. 

Our annual w ork programme is set in accordance w ith the Code of Audit Practice ('the 

Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 

w ork (https://w ww.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our w ork considers the 

Council's key risks w hen reaching our conclusions under the Code. 

The audit of the f inancial statements does not relieve management or those charged w ith 

governance of their responsibilities.

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for 

the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for.  We have considered how  the Council is fulf illing these responsibilities.

18

P
age 54

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership. 

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the contex t requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients. 

grant-thornton.co.uk

19

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 56



 
 

Shelagh McGregor 
Chief Finance Officer 
South Lakeland District Council 
South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street 
Kendal 
Cumbria 
LA9 4DQ 
 
 
23 March 2017 

Dear Shelagh,  

Planned audit fee for 2017/18 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 provides the framework for local public audit. 
Under these provisions the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 
delegated some statutory functions from the Audit Commission Act 1998 to Public Sector 
Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) on a transitional basis. 

PSAA will oversee the Audit Commission's audit contracts for local government bodies until 
they end in 2018, following the announcement by the Department for Communities and 
Local Government (DCLG) that it will extend transitional arrangements until 2017/18. 
PSAA's responsibilities include setting fees, appointing auditors and monitoring the quality of 
auditors' work. Further information on PSAA and its responsibilities are available on the 
PSAA website. 

From 2018/19 PSAA has been specified by the Secretary of State as an appointing person for 

principal local government and police bodies, and will make auditor appointments and set 

fees for bodies that have opted into the national auditor appointment scheme it is developing. 

 

Scale fee 

PSAA prescribes that 'scale fees are based on the expectation that audited bodies are able to 
provide the auditor with complete and materially accurate financial statements, with 
supporting working papers, within agreed timescales'.  

There are no changes to the overall work programme for local government audited bodies for 
2017/18, following the recent CIPFA/LASAAC announcement that their planned  
introduction of the Highways Network Asset Code into the financial reporting requirements 
for local authorities in 2017/18 will no longer proceed.  PSAA have therefore set the 2017/18 
scale audit fees at the same level as the scale fees applicable for 2016/17. The Council's scale 
fee for 2017/18 has been set by PSAA at £55,851.    

The audit planning process for 2017/18, including the risk assessment, will continue as the 
year progresses and fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary as our work progresses.  

Scope of the audit fee 

Under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit 

Office (NAO) is responsible for publishing the statutory Code of Audit Practice and 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
4 Hardman Square 
Spinningfields 
Manchester  
M3 3EB 
 

T +44 (0)161 953 6900 
 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

 

Page 57

Item No.10

http://www.psaa.co.uk/about-us/what-we-do/


 2 

guidance for auditors from April 2015. Audits of the accounts for 2017/18 will be undertaken 

under this Code, on the basis of the 201718 work-programme and scales of fees set out on 

the PSAA website. Further information on the NAO Code and guidance is available on the 

NAO website. 
 
The scale fee covers: 

 our audit of your financial statements; 

 our work to reach a conclusion on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of 
resources (the value for money conclusion); and 

 our work on your whole of government accounts return. 
 
PSAA will agree fees for considering objections from the point at which auditors accept an 
objection as valid, or any special investigations, as a variation to the scale fee. 

 

Value for Money conclusion 

The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion. 
 
The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on value for money work in November 2016. The 
guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are required to give a conclusion 
on whether the Council has put proper arrangements in place. 
 
The NAO guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 
people.  
 

Certification of grant claims and returns 

At the request of the Department for Work and Pensions, auditors appointed by PSAA will 
continue to certify local authority claims for housing benefit subsidy for 2017/18.  
The Council's indicative fee for this certification work has yet to be set by PSAA. We will 
write to you to confirm the fee when this has been confirmed. 

Assurance engagements for other schemes will be subject to separate arrangements and fees 
agreed between the grant-paying body, the Council and ourselves. 

Billing schedule 

Fees will be billed as follows: 
 

Main Audit fee £ 

September 2017 13,965 

December 2017          13,962 

March 2018 13,962 

June 2018 13,962 

Total 55,851 

  

Housing Benefit Certification (indicative fee) 

March 2018 7,545 

Page 58

http://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-and-certification-fees/201718-work-programme-and-scales-of-fees/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/


 3 

 

Outline audit timetable 

We will undertake our audit planning and interim audit procedures in January to March 2018. 

Upon completion of this phase of our work we will issue a detailed audit plan setting out our 

findings and details of our audit approach. Our final accounts audit and work on the VfM 

conclusion will be completed in June to July 2018 and work on the whole of government 

accounts return in July 2018. 
 

 
Phase of work 

Timing Outputs Comments 

Audit planning 
and interim audit 

January – March 
2018 

Audit plan The plan summarises the 
findings of our audit 
planning and our approach 
to the audit of the 
Council's accounts and 
VfM. 

Final accounts 
audit 

June – July 2018 Audit Findings 
Report (Report to 
those charged with 
governance 
including audit 
opinion) 

This report sets out the 
findings of our accounts 
audit and VfM work for the 
consideration of those 
charged with governance. 

VfM conclusion January – March 
2018 

Audit Findings 
Report (Report to 
those charged with 
governance 
including VfM 
conclusion) 

As above 

Whole of 
government 
accounts 

July 2018 Opinion on the 
WGA return 

This work will be 
completed alongside the 
accounts audit. 

Annual audit letter September 2018 Annual audit letter 
to the Council 

The letter will summarise 
the findings of all aspects 
of our work. 

Grant certification September – 
November 2018 

Grant certification 
report 

A report summarising the 
findings of our housing 
benefit certification work 

 

Our team 

The key members of the audit team for 2017/18 are:  

 Name Phone Number E-mail 

Engagement 
Lead 

John Farrar 0161 234 6384 john.farrar@uk.gt.com 

Engagement 
Manager 

Daniel Watson 0161 234 6344 daniel.watson@uk.gt.com 

In Charge 
Auditor 

Maeve Morgan 0161 953 6446 maeve.t.morgan@uk.gt.com 

Page 59



 4 

 

Additional work 

The scale fee excludes any work requested by the Council that we may agree to undertake 
outside of our Code audit.  Each additional piece of work will be separately agreed and a 
detailed project specification and fee agreed with the Council. 

Quality assurance 

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service.  If you are in any way 
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in 
the first instance. Alternatively you may wish to contact Sarah Howard, our Public Sector 
Assurance regional lead partner, via sarah.howard@uk.gt.com. 

Yours sincerely 

 

 
John Farrar 

Engagement Lead 

For Grant Thornton UK LLP 

 

 

Page 60



Audit Committee 

South Lakeland District Council

Progress Report and Update 

Year ended 31 March 2017
March 2017

John Farrar

Engagement Lead

T 0161 234 6384

E  john.farrar@uk.gt.com

Daniel Watson

Manager

T 0161 234 6344

E daniel.watson@uk.gt.com

P
age 61

Item
 N

o.11



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

2© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 

reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 

affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

P
age 62



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

3© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Introduction

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, where we have a 

section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications:

• Income generation – critical success factors (March 2017); http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/income-

generation-critical-success-factors/

• CFO Insights – reviewing council's 2015/16 spend (December 2016); http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/cfo-

insights-reviewing-councils-201516-spend/

• Fraud risk, 'adequate procedures', and local authorities (December 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/fraud-risk-adequate-procedures-and-local-authorities/

• Brexit: local government – transitioning successfully (December 2016) 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-local-government--transitioning-successfully/

• New laws to prevent fraud may affect the public sector (November 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/new-laws-to-prevent-fraud-may-affect-the-public-sector/

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive

regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement 

Manager.

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report 

on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your 

external auditors. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 

reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 

affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

P
age 63

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/


Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

4© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at March 2017

2016/17 work Planned Date Complete? Comments

Fee Letter 
We are required to issue a 'Planned fee letter for 2016/17' by the 

end of April 2016
April 2016 Yes

We issued the 2016/17 fee letter to the April 2016 Audit Committee. 

The letter confirmed the fee for the 2016/17 audit as £55,851.

Accounts Audit Plan
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the 

Council setting out our proposed approach in order to give an 

opinion on the Council's 2016-17 financial statements.

March 2017 Yes
We have agreed our audit plan with management and included it as a 

separate agenda item for the Audit Committee to consider.

Interim accounts audit 
Our interim fieldwork visit plan included:

• updated review of the Council's control environment

• updated understanding of financial systems

• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems

• early work on emerging accounting issues

• early substantive testing

• Value for Money conclusion risk assessment.

March 2017 Yes

Our interim audit work concluded at the end of March. As part of this 

we have conducted early audit testing to facilitate a more efficient final 

accounts audit.

Final accounts audit
Including:

• audit of the 2016/17 financial statements

• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts

• proposed Value for Money conclusion

• review of the Council's disclosures in the consolidated accounts 

against the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 

the United Kingdom 2015/16  

June – July 2017 Not started

We are planning to complete our audit by 31 July as part of the 

transition to earlier closedown. We will report the findings from our 

audit to the Audit Committee on 20 July.

P
age 64



Technical Matters

P
age 65



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

6© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Telling the story – Changes in 2016/17 CIPFA
Code

CIPFA has been working on the 'Telling the Story' project, which aims to streamline the 

financial statements and improve accessibility to the user. This has resulted in changes to 

CIPFA's 2016/17 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom ('the Code').

The main changes affect the presentation of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement ('CIES'), the Movement in Reserves Statement ('MIRS') and segmental 

reporting disclosures. A new Expenditure and Funding Analysis has been introduced.

The key changes are:

• the cost of services in the CIES is to be reported on basis of the local authority's 

organisational structure rather than the Service Reporting Code of Practice 

(SERCOP) headings

• an 'Expenditure & Funding Analysis' note to the financial statements provides a 

reconciliation between the way local authorities are funded and the accounting 

measures of financial performance in the CIES

• the changes will remove some of the complexities of the current segmental note

• other changes to streamline the current MIRS providing options to report Total 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (previously shown as Surplus and Deficit 

on the Provision of Services and Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

lines) and removal of earmarked reserves columns.

Delivering Good Governance
In April 2016, CIPFA and SOLACE published 'Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government: Framework (2016)' and this applies to annual governance 

statements prepared for the 2016/17 financial year. The key focus of the 

framework is on sustainability – economic, social and environmental – and the 

need to focus on the longer term and the impact actions may have on future 

generations.

Local authorities should be:

• reviewing existing governance arrangements against the principles set out in 

the Framework

• developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of governance, including 

arrangements for ensuring on-going effectiveness 

• reporting publicly on compliance with their own code on an annual basis and 

on how they have monitored the effectiveness of their governance 

arrangements in the year and on planned changes. 

The framework applies to all parts of local government and its partnerships and 

should be applied using the spirit and ethos of the Framework rather than just rules 

and procedures

P
age 66



Sector issues and developments

P
age 67



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

8© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Local Government Finance Settlement
The final local government settlement for 2017/18 was 

published on 20 February. The settlement reflects the 

Government's aim that all councils will become self funding, 

with central government grants being phased out. This is year 

two of the four year offer, which has been accepted by 97% 

of councils. 

There is an expectation that councils will continue to improve 

efficiencies  with measures including further developments in 

digital technology, new delivery models and innovative 

partnership arrangements.

100% business rates retention

The announcement has an increased focus on business rates, 

with the expectation that by the end of the current 

Parliament, local government will keep 100% of the income 

raised through business rates.  The exact details of the 

reforms are yet to be determined.  This includes confirming 

which additional responsibilities will be devolved to local 

government and funded through these retained rates. Pilots 

of the reforms are taking place across the country from April 

2017.

The results of a recent Municipal  Journal survey  2017 State of 
Local Government Finance have recently been published. 

http://downloads2.dodsmonitoring.com/downloads/Misc_Fil

es/LocalGovFinance.pdf

Respondents expressed concern about the lack of detail in the 

proposals, uncertainty around equalisation measures and the 

scale of appeals.  

Nearly 50% of councils responding believe they will lose from 

the transition to 100% retention of business rates.  Views were 

evenly split as to whether the proposals would incentivise local 

economic growth.

Social Care Funding 

Funding allocations reflect increased funding of social care with a 

stated £3.5 billion of funding for social care by 2019/20.

In this year's settlement £240 million of new homes bonus has 

been redirected into  the adult social care grant.  In addition 

councils are once again be able to raise the precept by up to 3% 

for funding of social care.

Recognising that funding is not the only answer, further reforms 

are to be brought forward to support the provision of a 

sustainable market for social care.  There is an expectation that all 

areas of the country move towards the integration of health and 

social care services by 2020.

Paul Dossett Head of  Local Government in Grant 

Thornton LLP  has commented on the Government 

proposals for social care funding (see link for full article).

"The government’s changes to council tax and the social care 

precept, announced by the Secretary of State for DCLG as part of 

the latest local government finance settlement, will seem to many 

as nothing more than a temporary fix. There is real concern about 

the postcode lottery nature of these tax-raising powers that are 

intended to fund our ailing social care system."   

"Our analysis on social care shows that the most deprived areas 

in the UK derive the lowest proportion of their income from 

council tax." 

"Conversely, more affluent areas collecting more council tax will 

potentially receive a bigger financial benefit from these 

measures.” 

"Our analysis shows that the impact and effectiveness of the 

existing social care precept is not equal across authorities. So any 

further changes to tax raising powers for local government will

"Social care precept changes 

will not help those living in 

more deprived areas" 

"The UK has a long tradition of 

providing care to those who 

need it most. If that is to 

continue, the government must 

invest in a robust social care 

system that can cater for all 

based on needs and not on 

geography. From a taxpayer’s 

perspective this is a zero sum 

game. For every £1 not 

invested in social care, the cost 

to the NHS is considerably 

more"

National developments

Links: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-

government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-

government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-

precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-

deprived-areas/

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-

alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/

not tackle the crisis of social care in our most 

disadvantaged communities and arguably make 

only make a small dent in the cost demands in 

our more affluent communities."

P
age 68

http://downloads2.dodsmonitoring.com/downloads/Misc_Files/LocalGovFinance.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/final-local-government-finance-settlement-2017-to-2018
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/news-centre/local-government-financial-settlement-comment-social-care-precept-changes-will-not-help-those-living-in-more-deprived-areas/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/council-tax-alone-wont-solve-the-social-care-crisis/


Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

9© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Fixing our broken housing market
DCLG published its housing White Paper on 7 February 

2017. It opens with the statement:

“The housing market in this country is broken, and the 

cause is very simple: for too long, we haven’t built enough 

homes.”

It goes on to summarise three key challenges in the 

housing market.

1. Over 40 per cent of local planning authorities do not 

have a plan that meets the projected growth in 

households in their area. 

2. The pace of development is too slow. There is a large 

gap between permissions granted and new homes 

built. More than a third of new homes that were 

granted planning permission between 2010/11 and 

2015/16 have yet to be built.

3. The structure of the housing market makes it harder 

to increase supply. Housing associations have been 

doing well – they’re behind around a third of all new 

housing completed over the past five years – but the 

commercial developers still dominate the market.

The proposals in the White Paper set out how the 

Government intends to boost housing supply and, over 

the long term, create a more efficient housing market 

whose outcomes more closely match the needs and 

aspirations of all households and which supports wider 

economic prosperity.

It states that the challenge of increasing housing supply 

cannot be met by the government acting alone and 

summarises how the government will work with local 

authorities, private developers, local communities, housing 

associations and not for profit developers, lenders, and 

utility companies and infrastructure providers.

For local authorities, the government is:

• offering higher fees and new capacity funding to 

develop planning departments, simplified plan-

making, and more funding for infrastructure; 

• will make it easier for local authorities to take action 

against those who do not build out once permissions 

have been granted; and

• is interested in the scope for bespoke housing deals to 

make the most of local innovation. 

The government is looking to local authorities to be as 

ambitious and innovative as possible to get homes built 

in their area. It is asking all local authorities to:

• develop an up-to-date plan with their communities 

that meets their housing requirement (or, if that is not 

possible, to work with neighbouring authorities to 

ensure it is met); 

• decide applications for development promptly; and

• ensure the homes they have planned for are built out 

on time. 

The White Paper states that it is crucial that local 

authorities hold up their end of the bargain. It goes on to 

say that where local authorities are not making sufficient 

progress on producing or reviewing their plans, the 

Government will intervene. It also notes that where the 

number of homes being built is below expectations, the 

new housing delivery test will ensure that action is taken.

The White Paper goes on to consider in more detail:

• Planning for the right homes in the right places

• Building homes faster 

• Diversifying the market

• Helping people now

National developments

Challenge questions: 

• Have you been briefed on the 

White Paper and the 

implications for your statutory 

housing function?

• Is the Council planning to 

respond to the consulatation?

Consultation on the White Paper will begin on 7 

February 2017. The consultation will run for 12 

weeks and will close on 2 May 2017.

The White Paper is available at:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/syste

m/uploads/attachment_data/file/590464/Fixing

_our_broken_housing_market_-

_print_ready_version.pdf

P
age 69

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/590464/Fixing_our_broken_housing_market_-_print_ready_version.pdf


Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

10© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Integrated Thinking and Reporting

Focusing on value creation in the 

public sector  

Grant Thornton has seconded staff to the International 

Integrated Reporting Council on a pro bono basis for a 

number of years.

They have been working on making the principles of 

Integrated Reporting  <IR> relevant to the public sector  

and co-authored a recent report by CIPFA and the World 

Bank: Integrated thinking and reporting: focusing on value creation 

in the public sector - an introduction for leaders.

Around one third of global gross domestic product (GDP) 

is made up by the public sector and this is being invested 

in ensuring there is effective infrastructure, good 

educational opportunities and reliable health care. In many 

ways, it is this investment by the public sector that is 

helping to create the conditions for wealth creation and 

preparing the way for the success of this and future 

generations.

Traditional reporting frameworks, focussed only on 

historic financial information, are not fit-for-purpose for 

modern, multi-dimensional public sector organisations. 

Integrated Reporting supports sustainable development 

and financial stability and enables public sector 

organisations to broaden the conversation about the 

services they provide and the value they create.

The public sector faces multiple challenges, including:

• Serving and being accountable to a wide stakeholder 

base;

• Providing integrated services with sustainable 

outcomes;

• Maintaining a longer-term perspective, whilst 

delivering in the short term; and 

• Demonstrating the sustainable value of services 

provided beyond the financial.

The <IR> Framework is principle based and enables 

organisations to tailor their reporting to reflect their own 

thinking and strategies and to demonstrate they are 

delivering the outcomes they were aiming for.

Integrated Reporting can help public sector organisations 

deal with the above challenges by:

• Addressing diverse and often conflicting public 

accountability requirements;

• Focussing on the internal and external consequences 

of an organisation's activities;

• Looking beyond the 'now' to the 'near' and then the 

'far';

• Considering the resources used other than just the 

financial.

The report includes examples of how organisations have 

benefitted from Integrated Reporting.

CIPFA Publications

Challenge question: 

• Have you reviewed the CIPFA 

guide to Integrated Reporting 

in the public sector?

P
age 70



Grant Thornton

P
age 71



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

12© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The Income Spectrum
Helping local authorities to achieve revenue and 

strategic objectives to create vibrant economies

Local government is under immense financial pressure to 

do more with less. The 2015/16 spending review is 

forecast to result in a £13 billion funding hole by 2020/21 

that requires councils to make savings of up to 29 per cent. 

Despite this challenge, most councils continue to manage 

their finances proficiently and have become lean and many 

local authority chief financial officers (CFOs) are confident 

they can continue to balance the books.

Income generation is increasingly an essential part of the 

solution to providing sustainable local services, alongside 

managing demand reduction and cost efficiency. Our 

report gives local authorities the tools needed to maximise 

their ability to do so.

Our latest report shares insights on this evolution process 

and how and why local authorities are reviewing and 

developing their approach to income generation.

The report draws on:

• learning from public and private sector stakeholders

• Grant Thornton’s own experience as an advisor to 

local government

• analysis from the Grant Thornton/CIPFA CFO 

Insights tool

• insight from roundtables we convened on the topic in 

Leeds, Bristol and Exeter.

The key messages arising from the report are:

• councils are increasingly using income generation to diversify 

their funding base and are commercialising in a variety of 

ways. This ranges from fees and charges, asset management 

and company spin-offs, through to treasury investments

• the ideal scenario is investing to earn with a financial and 

social return. Councils are striving to generate income in a way 

which achieves multiple strategic outcomes for the same 

spend; examining options to balance budgets while 

simultaneously boosting growth, supporting vulnerable 

communities and protecting the environment.

• stronger commercialisation offers real potential for councils to 

meet revenue and strategic challenges for 2020 onwards. 

While there are examples of good practice and innovation, this 

opportunity is not being fully exploited across the sector due 

to an absence of a holistic and integrated approach to 

corporate strategy development. 

Questions to help ensure 

success

• Have all your options to 

maximise use of revenue 

and assets been explored?

• Do you understand what 

your strengths are and what 

you are less good at 

compared to the market 

place?

• How does each department 

and service compare on net 

income and cost recovery 

against neighbours and 

peers?

• Is it clear how generating 

income delivers both a 

financial and social return 

that is aligned to your local 

political priorities?

• Are governance processes 

robust enough to scrutinise 

business case proposals for 

new income generation?

Grant Thornton report

P
age 72



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

13© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Apprentice Levy-Are you prepared?
What is the levy?

The UK has been struggling on productivity, now 

estimated to be 20% behind the G7 average. Developing 

apprenticeships is set to play a key part in tackling this and 

bridging the skills gap.

Announced by government in July 2015, the levy is to 

encourage employers to offer apprenticeships in meeting 

their skill, workforce and training needs, developing talent 

internally. The levy is designed to give more control to 

employers, through direct access to training funds and 

creation of apprenticeships through the Trailblazer 

process.

What is the levy?

From April 2017, the way the government funds 

apprenticeships in England is changing. Some employers 

will be required to pay a new apprenticeship levy, and 

there will be changes to the funding for apprenticeship 

training for all employers.

All employers will receive an allowance of £15,000 to 

offset against payment of the levy. This effectively means 

that the levy will only be payable on paybill in excess of £3 

million per year.

The levy will be payable through Pay As You Earn 

(PAYE) and will be payable alongside income tax and 

National Insurance.

Each employer will receive one allowance to offset against 

their levy payment. There will be a connected persons rule, 

similar the Employment Allowance connected persons 

rule, so employers who operate multiple payrolls will only 

be able to claim one allowance.

Employers in England are also able to get 'more out than they put 

in', through an additional government top-up of 10% to their levy 

contribution. 

When employers want to spend above their total levy amount, 

government will fund 90% of the cost for training and assessment 

within the funding bands.

The existing funding model will continue until the levy comes into 

effect May 2017. The levy will apply to employers across all sectors.

Paybill will be calculated based on total employee earnings subject 

to Class1 National Insurance Contributions. It will not include 

other payments such as benefits in kind. It will apply to total 

employee earnings in respect of all employees.

What will the levy mean in practice 

Employer of 250 employees, each with a gross salary of £20,000:

Paybill: 250 x £20,000 = £5,000,000

Levy sum: 0.5% x   = £25,000

Allowance: £25,000 - £15,000 = £10,000 annual levy 

How can I spend my levy funds?

The funding can only be used to fund training and assessment 

under approved apprenticeship schemes. It cannot be used on 

other costs associated with apprentices, including wages and 

remuneration, or training spend for the wider-team.

Through the Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS), set  up by 

government, employers will have access to their funding in the 

form of digital vouchers to spend on training. 

Training can be designed to suit the needs of your organisation and 

the requirements of the individual in that role, in addition to 

specified training for that apprenticeship. Training providers must 

all be registered with the Skills Funding Agency (SFA).

What do I need to start 

thinking about now?

• How much is the levy going 

to cost and have we 

budgeted for it?

• How do we ensure 

compliance with the new 

system?

• Which parts of my current 

spend on training are 

applicable to 

apprenticeships?

• Are there opportunities to 

mitigate additional cost 

presented by the levy?

• How is training in my 

organisation structured?

• How do we develop and 

align to our workforce 

development strategy

Grant Thornton update

P
age 73



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

14© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Off-payroll working and salary sacrifice
in the public sector

Off-payroll working

The Chancellor's Autumn Statement 2016 speech 

delivered a number of changes that will impact the UK 

business environment and raise considerations for you as 

an employer. 

In particular, the Chancellor announced that the measures 

that were proposed in Budget 2016 that could affect 

services supplied through personal service companies 

(PSCs) to the public sector will be implemented. 

At present, the so-called IR35 rules require the worker to 

decide whether PAYE and NIC are due on the payments 

made by a PSC following an engagement with a public 

sector body. The onus will be moved to the payer from 

April 2017. This might be the public sector body itself, but 

is more likely to be an intermediary, or, if there is a supply 

chain, to the party closest to the PSC.

The public sector body (or the party closest to the PSC) 

will need to account for the tax and NIC and include 

details in their RTI submission. 

The existing IR35 rules will continue outside of public 

sector engagements.

HMRC Digital Tool – will aid with determining whether 

or not the intermediary rules apply to ensure of 

“consistency, certainty and simplicity”.

When the proposals were originally made, the public 

sector was defined as "those bodies that are subject to 

the Freedom of Information rules". It is not known at 

present whether this will be the final definition. 

Establishing what bodies are caught is likely to be 

difficult however the public sector is defined.

A further change will be that the 5% tax free allowance that is 

given to PSCs will be removed for those providing services to the 

public sector. 

This will  increase costs, move responsibility to the engager and 

increase risks for the engager

Salary sacrifice

The Chancellor's Autumn Statement 2016 speech also introduced 

changes to salary sacrifice arrangements. In particular, the 

proposals from earlier this year to limit the tax and NIC advantages 

from salary sacrifice arrangements in conjunction with benefits will 

be implemented from April 2017. 

Although we await the details, it appears that there is a partial 

concession to calls made by Grant Thornton UK and others to 

exempt the provision of cars from the new rules (to protect the car 

industry). Therefore, the changes will apply to all benefits other 

than pensions (including advice), childcare, Cycle to Work schemes 

and ultra-low emission cars.  

Arrangements in place before April 2017 for cars, accommodation 

and school fees will be protected until April 2021, with others 

being protected until April 2018.

These changes will be implemented from April 2017.  

As you can see, there is a limited opportunity to continue with 

salary sacrifice arrangements and a need also to consider the choice 

between keeping such arrangements in place – which may still be 

beneficial – or withdrawing from them.

Issues to consider

• Interim and temporary staff 

engaged through an intermediary 

or PSC

• Where using agencies ensure 

they’re UK based and operating 

PAYE

• Update on-boarding / 

procurement systems, processes 

and controls 

• Additional take on checks and 

staff training / communications 

• Review of existing PSC

contractor population before 

April 2017 

• Consider moving long term 

engagements onto payroll

• Review the benefits you offer  -

particularly if you have a flex 

renewal coming up 

• Consider your overall Reward 

and Benefit strategy 

• Consider your Employee 

communications 

Grant Thornton update

P
age 74



Audit Committee progress report and update – South Lakeland District Council

15© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Brexit
Planning can help organisations 

reduce the impact of  Brexit

The High Court ruling that Parliament should have a say 

before the UK invokes Article 50 of the Lisbon Treaty –

which triggers up to two years of formal EU withdrawal 

talks – will not, in our view, impact on the final outcome. 

There appears to be a general political consensus that 

Brexit does mean Brexit, but we feel there could be 

slippage beyond the original timetable which expected to 

see the UK leave the EU by March 2019. 

2017 elections in The Netherlands (March), France 

(April/May), and Germany (October/November) will 

complicate the Brexit negotiation process and timeline at a 

time when Brexit is more important for the UK than it is 

for the remaining 27 Member States.

The question still remains, what does Brexit look like? 

While there may be acceptance among politicians that the 

UK is leaving the EU, there is far from any agreement on 

what our future relationship with the continent should be.

So, what do we expect based on what has happened so 

far?

Existing EU legislation will remain in force 

We expect that the Government will introduce a “Repeal 

Act” (repealing the European Communities Act of 1972 

that brought us into the EU) in early 2017.

As well as undoing our EU membership, this will 

transpose existing EU regulations and legislation into UK 

law. We welcome this recognition of the fact that so 

much of UK law is based on EU rules and that trying to 

unpick these would not only take many years but also 

create additional uncertainty.

Taking back control is a priority

It appears that the top priority for government is 'taking 

back control', specifically of the UK's borders. Ministers 

have set out proposals ranging from reducing our 

dependence on foreign doctors or cutting overseas 

student numbers. The theme is clear: net migration must 

fall.

Leaving the Single Market appears likely

The tone and substance of Government speeches on 

Brexit, coupled with the wish for tighter controls on 

immigration and regulation, suggest a future where the 

UK enjoys a much more detached relationship with the 

EU.

The UK wants a 'bespoke deal'. Given the rhetoric 

coming from Europe, our view is that this would signal 

an end to the UK's membership of the Single Market. 

With seemingly no appetite to amend the four key 

freedoms required for membership, the UK appears 

headed for a so-called 'Hard Brexit'. It is possible that the 

UK will seek a transitional arrangement, to give time to 

negotiate the details of our future trading relationship.

This is of course, all subject to change, and, politics, 

especially at the moment, moves quickly.

Where does this leave the public sector?

The Chancellor has acknowledged the effect this may 

have on investment and signalled his intention to support 

the economy, delaying plans to get the public finances 

into surplus by 2019/20. 

We expect that there will be some additional government 

investment in 2017, with housing and infrastructure being 

the most likely candidates.

Clarity is a long way off. However, public sector 

organisations should be planning now for making a 

success of a hard Brexit, with a focus on:

Grant Thornton update

Staffing – organisations should begin preparing for 

possible restrictions on their ability to recruit migrant 

workers and also recognise that the UK may be a less 

attractive place for them to live and work. Non-UK 

employees might benefit from a degree of reassurance as 

our expectation is that those already here will be allowed to 

stay. Employees on short term or rolling contracts might 

find it more difficult to stay over time.

Financial viability – public sector bodies should plan 

how they will overcome any potential shortfalls in funding 

(e.g. grants, research funding or reduced student numbers).

Market volatility – for example pension fund and 

charitable funds investments and future treasury 

management considerations.

International collaboration – perhaps a joint venture or 

PPP scheme with an overseas organisation or linked 

research projects.

For regular updates on Brexit, please 

see our website:

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insi

ghts/brexit-planning-the-future-

shaping-the-debate

P
age 75



‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms 

provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or 

more member firms, as the context requires. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 

(GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. 

GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or 

omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved | Draft

P
age 76



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

20
th

 April 2017 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources 
and Section 151 Oficer 

REPORT AUTHORS: Peter Harrison - Internal Audit Manager (Director, 
TIAA Limited) 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

  

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1. This report provides a summary of the progress against the Internal Audit 
Annual Plan to date in 2016/17. It provides the Committee with assurance 
through the individual internal audit reports for work carried out to date. 
Internal Audit has also validated the status of the implementation of previous 
internal audit recommendations.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 Members of the Audit Committee are asked to note:- 

 The progress achieved in 2016/17 in delivering the Audit Plan and the 
outcomes of completed audit reviews set out in Appendix 1.  

 The attached audit reports at Appendix 2. 

 The status of outstanding recommendations is contained in the follow up 
report at Appendix 3.  

3.0  BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with 
the 1972 Local Government Act. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
require that the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, internal control and governance 
processes, taking into account the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards 
(PSIAS). 

3.2 Internal Audit is responsible for providing independent assurance to the 
Council’s senior management and to the Audit Committee on the systems of 
governance, risk management and internal control. 

Page 77

Item No.12



3.3 It is management’s responsibility to establish and maintain internal control 
systems and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks 
appropriately managed and that outcomes are achieved. Management is 
responsible for the system of internal control and should set in place policies 
and procedures to ensure that controls are operating effectively.  

4. PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2016/17 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

4.1   The Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Committee in July 2016. The first 
pieces of fieldwork commenced in November and December 2016, and there 
has been a concerted push from January 2017 to complete the programme. It 
is the intention that all reports will be issued at ‘draft’ stage by the end of April 
2017.  

4.2 The progress report at Appendix 1 provides the Committee with a summary of 
the position as at the end of March 2017. The executive summaries for each 
review are included at Appendix 2.   

5. AUDIT REPORTS COMPLETED IN THE PERIOD 

5.1 Appendix 2 contains the executive summaries of the eight audit reports 
completed in the period: 

 Risk Management 

 ICT Network Security and Cybercrime 

 Local Government Transparency Code 

 Data Assurance 

 Main Accounting Systems 

 Cash Receipting – Car Parking 

 Debtors 

 Taxi Licensing 

6. FOLLOW UP OF INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 

6.1 TIAA has assessed the extent to which previous internal audit 
recommendations have been implemented. The report at Appendix 3 
illustrates progress. 

7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

7.1 There are no alternative options; the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
require that the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, internal control and governance 
processes, taking into account the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards 
(PSIAS). 

8. LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

8.1 Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s arrangements 
for governance, risk management and internal control in support of delivery of 
the Council’s strategic priorities.  

Page 78



9. IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Financial and Resources 

There are no direct financial implications to this report. 

9.2 Human Resources 

9.2.1 There are no direct human resource implications to this report. 

9.3 Legal 

9.3.1 There are no direct legal implications to this report. 

9.4 Social, Economic and Environmental 

9.4.1 There are no direct human resource implications to this report. 

9.5 Equality and Diversity 

9.5.1 There are no direct equality and diversity implications to this report. 

9.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council does not 

comply with legislative 

requirements as laid out 

under the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations 2011  

The Council does not 

receive adequate 

assurance over the 

internal control 

environment.   

Regular progress reporting 

to senior management and 

Audit Committee each 

quarter. 

 

CONTACT OFFICER 

Report Author:  Peter Harrison  

TIAA Limited  

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix 

No. 
 

1 Internal Audit Progress Report 

2 Audit Reports – Executive Summaries 

3 Follow Up Report 

 

 

Page 79



TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 

Director 

Portfolio 

Holder 

Solicitor to the 

Council 

SMT Scrutiny 

Committee 

01/04/2017 n/a 06/04/17  30/3/17 n/a 

Executive 

(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 

Officer 

Monitoring 

Officer 

n/a 20/04/2017 n/a 01/04/2017 06/4/17 

Human 

Resource 

Services 

Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 

Councillor(s) 

 

    

n/a n/a n/a   

 

 

Page 80



South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 

2016/17

Internal Audit 

March 2017 FINAL

Appendix 1

P
age 81



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17 

 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This summary report provides the Audit Committee with an update on the progress of our work at South Lakeland District Council as at March 2017. The report is 
based on internal audit work carried out by TIAA and management representations that have been received during the period since the last meeting of the Audit 
Committee. 

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2016/17 ANNUAL PLAN 

2. Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2016/17 is set out in Appendix A. 

AUDITS COMPLETED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO COMMITTEE 

3. The table below sets out details of audits carried out since the previous meeting of the Audit Committee. 

  Report history Number of Recommendations 

Review Evaluation Draft 
issued 

Responses 
Received Final issued 1 2 3 OE 

Risk Management Reasonable 24/11/2016 23/03/2017 28/03/2017 - 3 2 - 

ICT Network Security and Cybercrime Reasonable 01/12/2016 23/03/2017 28/03/2017 1 3 5 1 

Local Government Transparency Code Reasonable 06/12/2016 27/03/2017 28/03/2017 - 4 - 1 

Data Assurance Reasonable 09/12/2017 27/03/2017 28/03/2017 - 4 2 1 

Main Accounting Systems Reasonable 14/03/2017 27/03/2017 28/03/2017 - 1 1 1 

Cash Receipting – Car Parking Reasonable 21/03/2017 28/03/2017 28/03/2017 - 5 - - 

Debtors Reasonable 21/03/2017 27/03/2017 28/03/2017 - 5 1 - 

Taxi Licensing Reasonable 21/03/2017 22/03/2017 24/03/2017 - 5 1 - 

CHANGES TO THE ANNUAL PLAN 2016/17 

4. The high level scopes of the 2016/17 plan are set out at Appendix B. The review of Electoral Registration will be considered for inclusion in the 2017/18 annual plan.  

 Page 1 
 

P
age 82



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17 

 
 

FRAUDS/IRREGULARITIES 

5. We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities in the period since the last summary report was issued. 

PROGRESS ACTIONING PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 

6. We  have made one Priority 1 recommendation (i.e. fundamental control issue on which action should be taken immediately).  Our review of ICT Network Security and 
Cybercrime identified that there are a number of user accounts with passwords set not to expire, including some Administrator accounts. Management have 
represented that they have already taken action to resolve this issue. 

RESPONSIBILITY/DISCLAIMER 

7. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. 
The matters raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. No 
responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty 
of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by 
their reliance on our report. 

 Page 2 
 

P
age 83



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17 

 
Appendix A 

Progress against the Annual Plan for 2016/17 
 

System Days Current Status Comments Date of Audit Committee 

Risk Management 5 Completed.  20th April 2017 

ICT Network Security and Cybercrime 5 Completed.  20th April 2017 

Local Government Transparency Code 10 Completed.  20th April 2017 

Data Assurance 10 Completed.  20th April 2017 

Main Accounting Systems 10 Completed.  20th April 2017 

Cash Receipting – Car Parking 10 Completed.  20th April 2017 

Debtors 10 Completed.  20th April 2017 

Taxi Licensing 10 Completed  20th April 2017 

Procurement 15 Fieldwork completed Report due for issue by 31/03/2017 20th July 2017 

Capital Investment 20 Fieldwork completed Report due for issue by 31/03/2017 20th July 2017 

Contract Management 15 Fieldwork completed Report due for issue by 31/03/2017 20th July 2017 

Digital Innovation 10 Fieldwork completed Report due for issue by 31/03/2017 20th July 2017 

Flood Grants 10 Commenced 23rd March 2017.  20th July 2017 

National Non-Domestic Rates 10 Commenced 29th March 2017.  20th July 2017 

Electoral Registration 10 Deferred to 2017/18.  20th July 2017 
 
KEY:  

  = To be commenced 
 = Site work commenced 
 = Draft report issued 
 = Final report issued 

 Page 3 
 

P
age 84



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17 

 
Appendix B 

Annual Plan – 2016/17 
 

 

Audit Type Days Scope 

Capital Investment Assurance 20 The Council’s Capital Strategy sets out how the Council manages its capital investments 
in line with the strategic objectives within the Council Plan. The review will consider the 
programme of capital investment including identification of the need for investment, 
appraisal criteria, programme delivery and monitoring, resource implications and reporting 

Local Government Transparency 
Code 

Compliance 10 The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) published a revised 
Local Government Transparency Code in February 2015 which specifies what open data 
local authorities must publish. The Local Government (Transparency Requirements) 
(England) Regulations 2015 regulates the Code. The review will assess the extent to which 
SLDC complies with the Code and the extent to which it seeks to exceed the requirements. 

Data Assurance Assurance 10 There are certain requirements placed on organisations regarding the handling of data, 
particularly regarding personal data. These requirements are subject to increasingly tighter 
control under revised EU legislation. The review will consider the arrangements in place 
for storing and managing data, including categorisation, retention and disposal. 

Electoral Registration Assurance 10 SLDC is one of three local authorities involved in the Electoral Registration Pilot Scheme 
being run by the Cabinet Office. This review will consider the implementation of the pilot 
scheme, including clarity in its aims and objectives, methodology, evaluation criteria, the 
impact on the completeness and accuracy of the electoral register, and the costs/savings 
of the new processes.  

Risk Management Appraisal 5 This high-level review will consider the arrangements in place for the identification and 
management of risks.  

Digital Innovation Assurance 10 Significant investment is being made in the Council’s digital platform to provide more 
accessible and innovative means of communication and interaction with the public. The 
review will consider the arrangements in place for project assurance and programme 

 Page 4 
 

P
age 85



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17 

 
Audit Type Days Scope 

governance for the digital platform. 

ICT Network Security and 
Cybercrime 

Assurance 5 Organisations are increasingly reliant on ICT systems for everyday operations and service 
delivery. This review will assess the arrangements in place for maintaining the integrity of 
the computer network. This will include server configuration and patching, threat detection, 
change control, remote access, user administration and desktop control policies as well as 
examining supporting policy and procedural documentation. The review will also consider 
the arrangements for the pro-active identification, prioritisation and mitigation against 
cyber-crime.   

Procurement Assurance 15 Procurement is a key corporate function which supports the effective delivery of all council 
priorities. The review will consider the Council’s strategic approach to procurement, 
including the delivery of value for money and social value, and assess the controls in place 
to ensure that procurement meets the relevant procurement rules along with the Council’s 
own contract standing orders and financial regulations. This review was deferred from 
2015/16.  

National Non-Domestic Rates Assurance 10 Approximately 8,000 National Non-domestic Rates bills were issued by SLDC for the 
2016/17 financial year. The review will consider the calculation and application of business 
rates, collection, business rate relief and refunds, interest and appeals. This review forms 
part of the rolling three-year programme of reviews of main financial systems. 

Flood Grants Assurance 10 South Lakeland was deeply affected by the floods that hit Cumbria in December 2015, with 
the effects still being felt well in to 2016. SLDC was charged with administering Property 
Level Resilience Grants to those affected on behalf of Cumbria County Council and the 
DCLG. The review will focus on the management and administration of grants to provide 
assurance on the effectiveness of the scheme (although not on the effectiveness of the 
specific measures put in place through use of the grant).  

Debtors Assurance 10 This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of reviews of main financial 
systems. The review will assess the systems in place for the management of debtors, 
including identification, monitoring, recovery action and reporting.  

 Page 5 
 

P
age 86



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17 

 
Audit Type Days Scope 

Main Accounting Systems Assurance 10 The review will assess procedures and controls within the main accounting systems to 
ensure that:  
• Control accounts and bank reconciliations are carried out regularly;  

• Transactions are transferred accurately from feeder systems;         

• The integrity and security of the main accounting system is maintained·         

• Responsibilities and processes for journal entries and year end processing are 
appropriately defined and allocated;  

• Transactions are accurately valued and allocated correctly within the general ledger.  
This audit will focus on the arrangements for the overall governance of the system and the 
controls and risks related to the general ledger.  

Taxi Licensing Compliance 10 Issues regarding taxi licensing have been have recently been highlighted at Derby City 
Council and South Ribble Borough Council, and carries significant reputational risk. The 
review will assess the controls in place to ensure there are appropriate checks in place for 
operators, drivers and vehicles in line with SLDC policy. 

Cash Receipting – Car Parking Assurance 10 Car parking income represents a significant proportion of the Council’s annual income. 
This review also forms part of the rolling three-year programme of reviews of main financial 
systems. This review will focus on cash receipts for car parking, taking in to account 
collection, storage, banking and the insurance arrangements. It will also consider the 
controls in place around the increasing use of alternative payment methods, such as 
through mobile phones and other devices.   

Contract Management  Assurance 15 The review will consider the arrangements in place for managing major contracts and 
programmes including grounds and general maintenance, refuse collection, leisure 
services and property services.   

Follow Up Follow Up 10 The review will provide an independent update on the implementation of internal audit 
recommendations and their current status. Follow up work will be on-going throughout the 
year and incorporate the recommendations made by the previous internal audit provider.  

 Page 6 
 

P
age 87



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17 

 
Audit Type Days Scope 

Audit Management  20 This includes overall contract management, attendance at Audit Committee, planning and 
reporting, including the Internal Audit Annual Report and opinion for 2016/17. It also 
includes attendance at SMT and other groups/forums as required, ad-hoc management 
advice and support relating to risk, internal control and governance.   

 Total days 190  

 
 

 Page 7 
 

P
age 88



Internal Audit 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Cash Receipting – Car Parking Arrangements 

2016/17 

March 2017 FINAL 

Appendix 2a

P
age 89



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Cash Receipting – Car Parking Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT KEY FINDINGS 

 

 The audit trail of cash receipts from machine to ledger is 
fundamentally sound. 

 The reporting and monitoring of cash variances is not sufficiently 
effective. 

 Security arrangements for the collection and transportation of cash 
can be enhanced. 

 Reconciliation processes could be enhanced by the introduction of 
"mystery shopper" exercises and consistent completion of 
monthly reconciliations. 

 Documented procedures are in place for car park cash collection. 
 

 

SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

This review focussed on cash receipts for car parking, taking in to account collection, 
storage, banking and the insurance arrangements. It also considered the controls in 
place around the increasing use of alternative payment methods, such as through 
mobile phones and other devices.   
 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 5 0 0 

 

  

 Page 1 

 

P
age 90



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Cash Receipting – Car Parking Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Compliance Observation of processes of cash 
transportation and the safe where cash 
is held identified some security aspects 
which could be easily enhanced.   

Security arrangements be 
enhanced by changing the keypad 
codes for the strong room and the 
safe on a periodic basis and review 
the practice of counting cash. 

2 Arrangements have been put in 
place to change the existing codes 
within the next month and subject to 
a priority request with the 
appropriate contractor.  The cash 
handling suite, when completed, will 
require an operating manual and the 
regular change of door and safe 
codes will be included.     

Code change by 
30th April 2017. 

 
Operating system 

subject to 
completion of works 
and likely to be 1st 

August 2017 

Principal 
Lake and 
Parking 
Services 
Officer 
 
Principal 
Lake and 
Parking 
Services 
Officer 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 2 

 

P
age 91



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Cash Receipting – Car Parking Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Compliance The control procedure in place for the 
monitoring of cash errors is that “overs” 
and “unders” of £10 or more, are 
recorded on a Cash Errors report, which 
is independently monitored by the Lake 
and Parking Services Officer.  
A sample of four months collection 
between April-July 2016 was reviewed. 
In this period there were 27 variances 
over £10. Of these, 18 were not 
recorded on the Cash Error report. 
Details were forwarded to the 
Community and Leisure Manager for 
investigation. 

The cash errors identified which 
were not recorded on the Cash Error 
report for independent review 
should be investigated and an 
explanation be provided.                           

2 An investigation has commenced.  
The 18 identified variances relate to 
machines within the Westmorland 
shopping Centre and have resulted 
from an ongoing issue with coin and 
validator jams that require the cash 
hopper to be emptied.  A system is 
being trialled that will require two 
staff to count and verify the cash 
collected that has not been subject 
to printed audit ticket. 

Investigation 
complete by 30th 

April 2017. 
 

System of 
accounting 

implemented by 
30th April 2017 

Principal 
Lake and 
Parking 
Services 
Officer 
 
Principal 
Lake and 
Parking 
Services 
Officer 

3 Compliance A sample of four months collection 
between April-July 2016 was reviewed. 
In this period there were 27 variances 
over £10. Of these, 18 were not 
recorded on the Cash Error report. 

All cash errors of £10 or over should 
be recorded on the Cash Error 
report and be independently 
reviewed to ensure there was an 
appropriate reason for the variance.  

2 The department did not consider 
these as cash errors as they are the 
result of machine faults however 
following the audit it has been 
established that when such faults 
occur two staff will count the coin 
and sign accordingly and these will 
be monitored in the same way as 
cash discrepancies over £10 and on 
a separate Cash Error report so as 
to easily be able to monitor machine 
faults.  

30 April 2017 Principal 
Lake and 
Parking 
Services 
Officer 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 3 

 

P
age 92



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Cash Receipting – Car Parking Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

4 Compliance The reconciliation of debit/credit card 
income commences from the 
information downloaded from the Credit 
Call website and therefore there is an 
inherent assumption that this 
information includes all income due to 
the Council.  
The reconciliation of payments by 
phone, commences from the 
information downloaded from the 
PayByPhone website and therefore 
there is an inherent assumption that this 
information includes all income due to 
the Council. 

Mystery shopping exercises in 
respect of parking charges paid for 
via mobile phones, debit and credit 
card including contactless 
payments should be conducted at 
least quarterly using various 
amounts (which correspond to the 
increments of the parking tariffs), 
from various mobile phone 
numbers, and for various parking 
spaces. The payments then be 
reconciled to income processed by 
PayByPhone and CreditCall. Each 
mystery shopping exercise should 
be fully documented, and any 
supporting records should be 
retained. 

2 
 

We have considered this and will 
agree dates for trial using the pre-
existing Council VISA Card and 
Mobile Phone systems.  The VISA 
card will be subject to approval of 
the use by finance.  Mobile Phone 
options will be agreed following roll 
out of new mobile devices by IT. 

VISA trial in place 
by 30th June 2017. 

 
Mobile Phones.  No 
date for roll out yet 

agreed.  

Community 
and Leisure 
Manager with 
Lake and 
Parking 
Services 
Officer 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 4 

 

P
age 93



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Cash Receipting – Car Parking Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

5 Compliance All car park income received, recorded 
against each car park site across the 
Council, is reconciled on a monthly 
basis and independently reviewed by 
the Community and Leisure Manager.  
Monthly reconciliations had not been 
undertaken since Summer 2016 until 
recently. The absence of regular 
reconciliation increases the risk of 
errors and income losses not being 
identified for some time, potentially 
leading to increased losses.  

Reconciliation and independent 
review of car park income occur on 
a monthly basis. 

2 Car Park income is monitored on a 
monthly basis with figures supplied 
by finance.  The process for monthly 
reconciliations is in place and has 
been other than for a short period in 
the summer of 2016 due to a 
temporary reduction in staffing 
resource.  The car park system are 
in addition to the monthly monitoring 
carried out above and therefore any 
anomalies would have been 
identified quickly.  The reconciliation 
will be up to date by 31st March 
2017.   

Completed by 31st 
March 2017 

Community 
and Leisure 
Manager 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 5 

 

P
age 94



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Cash Receipting – Car Parking Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 
Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

   
ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures, rather than on a one-by-one basis 

 Page 6 

 

P
age 95



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Cash Receipting – Car Parking Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Detailed Findings 
 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in February and March 2017 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2016/17. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment 
of the overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

2. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 
Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

3. The review focused on cash receipts for car parking, taking in to account collection, storage, banking and the insurance arrangements. It also considered the controls 
in place around the increasing use of alternative payment methods, such as through mobile phones and other devices. This review formed part of the rolling three-
year programme of reviews of main financial systems.  

4. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

MATERIALITY 

5. It is projected that the Council will take £4.3m from car parking charges in 2016/17, representing a significant proportion of the Council's income. 

DISCLAIMER 

6. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 
and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 
has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 
and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

  

  

 Page 7 

 

P
age 96



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Cash Receipting – Car Parking Arrangements 2016/17 
 

RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

7. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage 
the risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the time of our review were being consistently 
applied. 

Reasonable Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation's 
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls 
to mitigate these risks. 

Limited Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to ensure that organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the 
continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are required to improve the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks. 

No Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon 
them to manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Immediate action is required to improve the controls 
required to mitigate these risks. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

8. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Jonathan Idle 
Jonathan.Idle@tiaa.co.uk 
07775 508351 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 
peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 
07970 376542 

 

 

 

 

  

 Page 8 

 

P
age 97

mailto:Jonathan.Idle@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Cash Receipting – Car Parking Arrangements 2016/17 
 

 

AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

9. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Simon Rowley, Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services 
Jim McGuire, Community and Leisure Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

10. The table (Figure 1) below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 21st March 2017  

Date management responses received: 28th March 2017  

Date final report issued: 28th March 2017  

 

  

 Page 9 

 

P
age 98



Internal Audit 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Debtors 

2016/17 

March 2017 FINAL 

Appendix 2b

P
age 99



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Debtors  2016/17 
 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT KEY FINDINGS 

 

 There is a need to define which officers can authorise the raising of 
invoices and the associated financial limits. 

 Actions need to be taken more promptly in the pursuance of outstanding 
debt, particularly when a debt is placed "under query." 

 The value of invoices could generally be substantiated to supporting 
documentation such as a lease or a rental agreement. 

 Aged debt analysis is regularly reported. 
 

SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

The audit assessed the systems in place for the management of debtors, including 
identification, monitoring, recovery action and reporting. 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 5 1 0 

 

  

 Page 1 

 

P
age 100



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Debtors  2016/17 
 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Compliance Given that there is no separation of 
duties between the persons requesting 
and raising an invoice, there is greater 
emphasis upon the appropriateness of 
the authoriser of the invoice as a 
compensatory internal control. The 
Sales Ledger general procedures does 
not refer to any levels of staff whom can 
or cannot raise invoices.  

The authorisation levels for the 
raising of accounts be defined and 
this be reflected in procedures. 

2 Management acknowledge that 
some additional control over raising 
of invoices may be appropriate and 
will review whether financial limits 
for certain grades should be 
introduced.  

31/09/17 Finance 
Officer 
(systems) 
Deadline to 
allow time to 
consult with 
services 

2 Compliance The majority of invoices were raised 
promptly. Four out of 25 should have 
been raised more promptly, details of 
which were provided to management 
during the review.   
A sample of 25 credit notes raised 
during 2016/17 was reviewed. All had 
been authorised by an appropriate 
manager, the amounts credited were all 
accurate and could be traced to the 
original invoice details. 10 out of the 25 
credit notes, however, had not been 
raised promptly. 

Departments be reminded of the 
importance of raising invoices and 
credit notes in a prompt manner.        

2 Management agree that raising 
invoices and credit notes promptly is 
important and will re-iterate this 
message through an email to all 
integra users/budget holders and on 
an ongoing basis through monthly 
budget monitoring process. 

30/04/17 Chief 
Accountant to 
re-iterate 
message, 
Budget 
Holders to 
implement, 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 2 
 

P
age 101



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Debtors  2016/17 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Compliance The value of the majority of the invoices 
could be substantiated to supporting 
documentation to verify accuracy. One 
invoice within the testing sample was 
not adequately supported as it was 
based on a previous lease agreement.  

The issue raised in relation to 
invoice 474304 be followed through 
to ensure the correct amounts are 
now being raised and that 
processes to substantiate invoice 
amounts are strengthened. 

2 This item relates to an annual 
invoice where the agreement was 
amended after the annual bills had 
been raised. There had been no 
notification of the change to the 
agreement. Since this occurred, 
there has been a change of property 
services provider and a permanent 
asset manager put in place.  

New contractor and 
asset manager in 
place. Invoicing 

now being rectified 
Invoicing to be 
rectified with 

immediate effect. 

Property 
Services / 
Asset 
Manager   

4 Compliance Testing sequential numbering for all 
invoices raised in 2016/17 identified 
gaps at 45860 and 50029-50060. This 
was discussed with the FSO-S and the 
explanation provided was that it would 
appear to have been a glitch when an 
interface to the system was being run. 

Periodic monitoring of the numerical 
sequencing of debtor accounts be 
undertaken and any breaks in 
sequence be investigated. 

2 The breaks in sequence have been 
investigated and relate to specific, 
non-recurring system issues. 
Numerical sequencing will be 
reviewed as part of year end 
processes. 

With immediate 
effect for year end 
2016/17 onwards 

Financial 
Services 
Officer 
(Systems) 

6 Compliance A sample of 25 outstanding debts as at 
January 2017 was reviewed for 
evidence of actions as recorded on 
Integra and / or the Information at Work 
document management system. It was 
identified that although the pursuit of the 
debt can be placed "under query", there 
was still significant delay in resolving 
the pursuit of the debt, specifically in 
respect of encroachment debt. 

Arrears action to chase outstanding 
debt be undertaken more promptly 
with specific emphasis upon 
encroachment () debts ‘under query’ 
and for a review of the monitoring of 
such debts. 

2 Management acknowledge that 
encroachment debts have been a 
long standing issue and are taking 
time to resolve. However, progress 
is being made; there is an existing 
process in place to resolve the 
accounts under query with 
dedicated resource in Legal 
Services and specific monitoring 
through Lake Administration 
Committee. 

Resources already 
put in place to 

address 
encroachment debt 

issues. 

Solicitor to 
the Council 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 3 
 

P
age 102



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Debtors  2016/17 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

5 Compliance A sample of ten periodic rents, including 
encroachment, property and car park 
rents was reviewed. In nine out of 10 
cases, the rents were confirmed to be 
accurate and were verified to the 
respective lease or rental agreement. 
For one rent in the sample, The Pinfold, 
Ambleside, it was identified that the 
property rent appeared not to have 
been reviewed since 2008. 

The rent for The Pinfold, Ambleside 
be subject to review. 

3 Management acknowledge the 
importance of ensuring rent reviews 
are up to date, This specific case 
had been identified by the property 
services contractor and Legal 
services as an agreement that 
needed review. 

31/05/17 Property 
Services 
Contractor / 
Asset 
Manager 

 

  

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 4 
 

P
age 103



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Debtors  2016/17 
 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 
Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 5 
 

P
age 104



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Debtors  2016/17 
 

Detailed Findings 
INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in January – February 2017 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2016/17. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment 
of the overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

2. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 
Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

3. The review formed part of the rolling three-year programme of reviews of main financial systems and assessed the systems in place for the management of debtors, 
including identification, monitoring, recovery action and reporting. This included consideration of the following: 

• Adequate policies and procedures are in place and accessible to all relevant staff; 
• System access is restricted to authorised personnel only; 
• Invoices and credit notes are raised following appropriate authorisation, and are actioned promptly and accurately;  
• Regular reconciliations are carried out between the sales ledger module and the general ledger control account; 
• Regular reviews of outstanding debtors are undertaken using aged debtor listing, with arrears action carried out promptly in accordance with procedures; 

and 
• Write-offs are approved by senior officers in accordance with procedures. 

4. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

MATERIALITY 

5. The Council uses an integrated financial systems application, Integra, for General Ledger, Accounts Payable and Accounts Receivable. 

DISCLAIMER 

6. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 
and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 
has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 
and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

  

 Page 6 

 

P
age 105



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Debtors  2016/17 
 

RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

7. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage 
the risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the time of our review were being consistently 
applied. 

Reasonable Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation's 
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls 
to mitigate these risks. 

Limited Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to ensure that organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the 
continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are required to improve the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks. 

No Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon 
them to manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Immediate action is required to improve the controls 
required to mitigate these risks. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

8. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Jonathan Idle 
Jonathan.Idle@tiaa.co.uk 
07775 508351 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 
peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 
07970 376542 

 

 

  

  

 Page 7 

 

P
age 106

mailto:Jonathan.Idle@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Debtors  2016/17 
 

AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

9. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 
Pete Notley, Chief Accountant 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

10. The table (Figure 1) below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 21st March 2017  

Date revised draft report issued: 24th March 2017  

Date management responses received: 27th March 2017  

Date final report issued: 28th March 2018  

 

 

  

 Page 8 

 

P
age 107



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 108



Internal Audit 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of the Data Assurance Arrangements 

2016/17 

March 2017 FINAL 

Appendix 2c

P
age 109



 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of the Data Assurance Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT KEY FINDINGS 

 

 An information asset inventory and data sharing register are required. 
 The Council’s Data Retention Policy needs to be applied consistently to 

both digital records and documents across the Council. 
 Measures are required to ensure that personal data occasionally sent 

outside of the Council via email is secured / encrypted. 
 

SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the arrangements for effective information governance 
processes including data classification, general data security arrangements, the 
approval process for permitting electronic data to be passed to third parties, the transit 
arrangements designed to minimise unauthorised access to the data whilst it is in 
transit and the monitoring arrangements. 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 4 2 1 

 

  

 Page 1 

 

P
age 110



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Data Assurance Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed There is no centrally held information 
asset inventory, nor a record of the 
occasions when data is shared with 
third parties detailing the security 
arrangements which apply during 
transmission or the data sharing 
agreements in place.  

An information asset inventory 
detailing the types of confidential, 
personal and sensitive data held, 
both electronic and otherwise, be 
compiled and a central data sharing 
register be maintained recording the 
occasions when personal data is 
shared with third parties, including 
the reason and method of data 
transfer and nature of the data 
sharing agreement.    

2 Information Asset Inventory 
(Register) to be developed. 
Central Data Sharing Register to be 
developed. 

30/09/17 
 

30/09/17 

Principal 
Performance 
& Intelligence 
Officer 

2 Directed There is a Security Incident Policy in 
place which describes actions to be 
taken in the event data is lost, stolen, 
disclosed or accessed inappropriately.  
Procedures could, however, be 
strengthened by drafting a more 
detailed incident response plan, for 
example, response to data loss will be 
different to a ransomware incident. 

Procedures be strengthened by 
drafting a more detailed information 
security incident response plan. 

2 Agreed – Security Incident. 
Response Plan developed as part of 
Security Incident Policy. 

31/05/17 Principal 
Performance 
& Intelligence 
Officer 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 2 

 

P
age 111



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Data Assurance Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

4 Directed Although it may occasionally be 
necessary for sensitive or personal 
information to be sent to third parties 
outside of the Council, there is no 
guidance on the Authorities approved 
method(s) of doing so. 

A Secure Data Transmission Policy 
be formulated and implemented.  

2 Agreed – Secure Data. 
Transmission Policy included as 
part Information Sharing Policy and 
associated protocols. 

31/05/17 Principal 
Performance 
& Intelligence 
Officer 

6 Compliance There is a Records Retention Policy 
and schedule based on best practice 
advice from the Information 
Commissioner and other sources. 
Currently this is inconsistently applied to 
both manual and electronic records, 
including emails, across the Council, 
which may result either in a breach of 
Data Protection regulations or 
increased cost of data storage, or both. 

Arrangements for the consistent 
application of the Records 
Retention Policy be agreed with 
managers within the Council. 

2 Agreed – Implementation Plan has 
been developed for the consistent 
application of Records Retention. 

30/09/17 Principal 
Performance 
& Intelligence 
Officer 

3 Directed Senior Management Team require a 
training needs analysis / training plan to 
be produced and delivered once the 
Governance Framework policy portfolio 
is complete.  

A training needs assessment be 
undertaken and the results arising 
from delivery of the training plan be 
reported to Senior Management 
Team. 

3 Agreed – Training Needs. 
Assessment to be developed 
following completion of Information 
Governance Project. Discussion 
with Organisational Development 
Team. 

31/05/17 Principal 
Performance 
& Intelligence 
Officer 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 3 

 

P
age 112



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Data Assurance Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

5 Directed Although staff interviewed were well 
informed regarding the handling of 
personal information, there are no 
written procedures or guidance relating 
to the disclosure of personal information 
over the phone, for example the types 
of information which could be disclosed 
and to whom, together with means of 
establishing the identity of the caller. 

Detailed advice regarding the 
disclosure of personal information 
be produced.   

3 Agreed – to be factored in as part of 
overall Implementation Plan (as 
detailed under Rec 6). 

30/09/17 Principal 
Performance 
& Intelligence 
Officer 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 4 

 

P
age 113



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Data Protection and Assurance Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 
Comments 

1 Compliance The Council to consider extending the use of its end point protection software 
to provide improved data loss prevention arrangements, for example, to 
manage the attachment of external hard drives to the network. 

  

 

   
ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures, rather than on a one-by-one basis 

 Page 5 

 

P
age 114



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Data Protection and Assurance Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Detailed Findings 
INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in November 2016 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2016/17. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment of the 
overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

2. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 
Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

3. The review considered the arrangements for effective information governance processes including data classification, general data security arrangements, the 
approval process for permitting electronic data to be passed to third parties, the transit arrangements designed to minimise unauthorised access to the data whilst it 
is in transit and the monitoring arrangements. 

4. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

MATERIALITY 

5. SLDC places considerable reliance on the security, integrity and availability of its computer systems for day to day operations and to achieve its business objectives. 
Data Protection is a key element of good governance. Data loss can render the Council liable to fines of up to £500,000 by the Data Commissioner as well as adverse 
publicity and loss of credibility. 

DISCLAIMER 

6. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 
and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 
has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 
and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

 

  

  

 Page 6 

 

P
age 115



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Data Protection and Assurance Arrangements 2016/17 

 
RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

7. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage 
the risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the time of our review were being consistently 
applied. 

Reasonable Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation's 
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls 
to mitigate these risks. 

Limited Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to ensure that organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the 
continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are required to improve the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks. 

No Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon 
them to manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Immediate action is required to improve the controls 
required to mitigate these risks. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

8. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Peter Simpson 
peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk  
07580 700415 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 
peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 
07970 376542 

 

 

 

  

 Page 7 

 

P
age 116

mailto:peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

Review of Data Protection and Assurance Arrangements 2016/17 

 
AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

9. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Simon McVey, Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 
Claire Gould, Partnerships and Organisational Development Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

10. The table (Figure 1) below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 9th December 2016  

Date management responses received: 27th March 2017  

Date final report issued: 28th March 2017  

 

  

 Page 8 

 

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 118



Internal Audit 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of Network Security and Cybercrime Arrangements 

2016/17 

March 2017 FINAL 

Appendix 2d

P
age 119



 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of Network Security and Cybercrime Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT KEY FINDINGS 

 

• Information security policies are not baselined against a recognised 
industry standard. 

• Some network user accounts including Administrator accounts had 
passwords set not to expire. 

• Server security scans identified server user accounts with weak 
password security. 

• Server patching arrangements should be detailed in a patching 
policy including treatment of critical security patches. 

 

SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

This review assessed the arrangements in place for maintaining the integrity of the 
computer network. This included server configuration and patching, threat detection, 
change control, remote access, user administration and desktop control policies as 
well as examining supporting policy and procedural documentation. The review also 
considered the arrangements for the pro-active identification, prioritisation and 
mitigation against cyber-crime.   

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

1 3 5 1 

 

  

 Page 1 

 

P
age 120



 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of Network Security Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

4 Compliance A MBSA server scan report, requested 
during the audit, indicated that there are 
a number of accounts with passwords 
set not to expire, including some 
Administrator accounts. 

User accounts set not to expire, 
identified in the MBSA scan, be 
reset to ensure compliance with the 
ICT Security / Active Directory 
Group Policy. Any exceptions to be 
risk assessed and recorded in the 
ICT Security Policy. 

1 Action already taken on this and the 
issue has been resolved. 

Complete IT  Manager 

1 Directed The Council is undertaking a thorough 
review of its information governance 
framework, policies and procedures.  
ISO 27001 is the international standard 
for an Information Security 
Management System framework and 
ISO 27002 contains details of 
recommended security policies. 
Policies based on these standards will 
describe both the control framework 
operating within an organisation and 
provide for continuity of control, for 
example, during staff turnover.  

Standards such as those contained 
in ISO 27002 (or equivalent) be 
used as a checklist to ensure 
completeness of coverage of the 
Council’s information security 
policies and procedures within its 
newly developed information 
governance framework. 

2 Documentation will be created and 
maintained in line with the 
Information Security Policy and 
associated Protocols. 

31/08/17 Principal 
Performance 
and 
Intelligence 
Officer 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 2 

 

P
age 121



 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of Network Security Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

5 Compliance MBSA server scans identified that not 
all server logs were switched on, in 
some cases server password 
complexity was weak and some 
apparently unnecessary services were 
running (worldwide web publishing 
service).  

Server configuration and Group 
Policy settings be reviewed and 
updated to ensure that server 
security logs are turned on by 
default and password complexity is 
enforced. The Council's 
requirements to monitor network 
availability, capacity and security be 
detailed in a Monitoring Policy. 

2 Server configurations will be 
reviewed and amended to resolve 
issues with logs and password 
complexity 
 
The requirements of a monitoring 
policy will be reviewed as part of the 
Information Governance project 

31/05/17 
 
 
 
 

31/08/17 

IT Manager 
 
 
 
 
Principal 
Performance 
and 
Intelligence 
Officer 

7 Compliance A monthly server patching cycle is 
operated. Patches are first deployed to 
a test group of servers before being 
rolled out across the remainder of the 
server estate. However, these 
arrangements are not detailed in a 
patching policy / procedure. The policy 
should cover the approach and 
timescales regarding the application of 
patches and any special arrangements, 
for example regarding the application of 
critical security patches.  

The arrangements for server 
security patching be detailed in a 
Patching Policy.  

2 Documentation covering the 
patching of servers will be updated 
and shared with the information 
Governance project to be adopted 
along with the other documents. 

31/08/17 Principal 
Performance 
and 
Intelligence 
Officer 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 3 

 

P
age 122



 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of Network Security Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Compliance An examination of a list of network user 
accounts, provided for use during the 
audit, identified a number of user, 
service and test accounts which had not 
be accessed for more than six months 
and may, therefore, no longer be 
required. The ongoing requirement for 
network user accounts which have not 
been accessed for some time should be 
subject to periodic review.  

The list of network accounts, 
provided for use during the audit, be 
reviewed and any accounts no 
longer required be disabled or 
deleted. Network user accounts 
also be subject to periodic review. 

3 Network user accounts will be 
reviewed and disabled/deleted as 
necessary.  They will be subjected 
to regular review. 

31/03/17 IT Manager 

3 Compliance Privileged / Administrator access to the 
network is only granted to nominated 
staff, however, there is no privileged 
access policy. 

The arrangements for controlling 
privileged access to the ICT network 
be detailed in a Privileged Access 
Policy. The policy should include 
approval, review and termination of 
privileged access accounts. 

3 A document will be created detailing 
how we deal with Privileged or 
administrator access to the network 
and will be shared with the 
Information Governance project for 
adoption. 

31/03/17 Principal 
Performance 
and 
Intelligence 
Officer 

6 Compliance A review of the Council’s anti-virus 
console identified that virus signature 
updates on a small number of machines 
were out of date. 

Machines identified by the  
console as having out of date DAT 
files be identified and connected to 
the network / updated as required.   

3 Devices will be identified and the 
issues will be resolved  

28/02/17 IT Manager 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 4 

 

P
age 123



 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of Network Security Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

8 Compliance A firewall is in place at the South 
Lakeland House site. Failover 
arrangements for the firewall are 
currently being implemented. The 
firewall is configured via a central 
management console on a lock down, 
open up basis. Firewall rules were 
sample checked during the audit and 
are reviewed annually as part of the 
Council's PSN accreditation. The 
firewall also facilitates web filtering.  

The ICT Security Policies be 
updated to include a firewall policy 
outlining the Council’s standards 
regarding ownership, configuration, 
maintenance and change 
management, on-going fitness for 
purpose, replacement and business 
continuity arrangements for all 
firewalls. Changes to firewall rules 
be recorded in a management 
spreadsheet and approved. 

3 Documentation will be created and 
maintained for the firewalls along 
with policy documentation which will 
be shared with the information 
governance project for adoption. 

31/08/17 Principal 
Performance 
and 
Intelligence 
Officer 

9 Compliance A successful disaster recovery test was 
undertaken earlier in the year, however 
the results of the test were not 
documented. 

IT disaster recovery tests be 
documented and the next test 
signed off by end users. 

3 A Test will be scheduled and 
coordinated with appropriate end 
users.  

31/03/18 IT Manager 

 

  

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 5 

 

P
age 124



 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of Network Security Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 
Comments 

1 Directed Consideration be given to updating the controls mitigating staff turnover in the 
risk map to include: the availability of well-defined and documented procedures 
and staff succession planning. 

Agreed, the risk register will be updated along with the continued development 
and improvement of documentation. 

 

   
ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures, rather than on a one-by-one basis 

 Page 6 

 

P
age 125



 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of Network Security Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Detailed Findings 
INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in November 2016 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2016/17. Based on the work carried out an assessment of the overall 
adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

2. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 
Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

3. This review assessed the arrangements in place for maintaining the integrity of the computer network. This included server configuration and patching, threat 
detection, change control, remote access, user administration and desktop control policies as well as examining supporting policy and procedural documentation. 
The review also considered the arrangements for the pro-active identification, prioritisation and mitigation against cyber-crime. The review did not consider access 
control to application software running on the network or the appropriateness of the specification/manufacturer of hardware or software used by the Council. 

4. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

MATERIALITY 

5. South Lakeland District Council places considerable reliance on the security, integrity and availability of its computer systems for day to day operations and to achieve 
its business objectives. 

DISCLAIMER 

6. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 
and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 
has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 
and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

 

 

  

 Page 7 

 

P
age 126



 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of Network Security Arrangements 2016/17 

 
RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

7. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage 
the risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the time of our review were being consistently 
applied. 

Reasonable Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation's 
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls 
to mitigate these risks. 

Limited Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to ensure that organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the 
continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are required to improve the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks. 

No Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon 
them to manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Immediate action is required to improve the controls 
required to mitigate these risks. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

8. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Peter Simpson 
peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk  
07580 700415 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 
peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 
07970 376542 

 

 

 

  

 Page 8 

 

P
age 127

mailto:peter.simpson@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

ICT Review of Network Security Arrangements 2016/17 

 
AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

9. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Simon McVey, Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 
Ben Wright, Shared ICT Services Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

10. The table (Figure 1) below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 1st December 2016  

Date management responses received: 23rd March 2017  

Date final report issued: 28th March 2017  

 

  

 Page 9 

 

P
age 128



Internal Audit 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of the Main Accounting Systems Arrangements 

2016/17 

March 2017 FINAL 

Appendix 2e

P
age 129



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of the Main Accounting Systems Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT KEY FINDINGS 

 

 Opening balances are brought forward promptly and accurately. 
 Bank reconciliations are undertaken regularly and are independently 

checked. 
 Disabling access to the Integra system for leavers is not being done 

promptly. 
 

 

 

 

SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

The review assessed procedures and controls within the main accounting systems 
within Integra to ensure that: 
• Control accounts and bank reconciliations are carried out regularly;  

• Transactions are transferred accurately from feeder systems; 
• The integrity and security of the main accounting system is maintained; 

• Responsibilities and processes for journal entries and year end processing are 
appropriately defined and allocated; and 

• Transactions are accurately valued and allocated correctly within the general 
ledger. 

The audit also focused on the arrangements for the overall governance of the system 
and the controls and risks related to the general ledger (policies, procedures, system 
access). 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 1 1 1 

 

  

 Page 1 

 

P
age 130



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of the Main Accounting Systems Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Compliance From a total of 56 leavers in 2016/17 to 
date (not all of whom would have 
necessarily had any Integra access), 
nine still had live access recorded on 
the Integra Security report and upon 
enquiry, eight of the employees were 
still enabled on Integra.  

Security settings for Integra for 
employees leaving the Council be 
disabled more promptly and 
consistently. 

2 Management acknowledge the 
importance of ensuring access to 
Integra is controlled. Where a leaver 
is not deactivated on Integra, there 
is a mitigating control as a log-on to 
the SLDC network is also required 
for access. However, de-activation 
of leavers will be integrated into the 
month end systems check list.   

31/03/17 Financial 
Services 
Officer 
(Systems) 

2 Compliance A test comparing line manager 
authorisation of new users for access to 
Integra with the Integra Security report 
of Active Users highlighted that all  of a 
sample of 10  new set ups were indeed 
active users but for two employees, 
additional Security Groups to those 
requested by the line manager had 
been set up.  

Care be taken to ensure that the 
creation up of security groupings on 
Integra reflects the security 
groupings requested by the relevant 
authorising manager.  

3 For the cases identified, both 
received extra view-only enquiry 
functions which all users get by 
default, albeit this is not reflected on 
the authorisation form. One user 
was granted access to a function 
that was not in line with their use of 
the system. Management 
acknowledge the risk associated 
with this and will re-design the 
request form to include a counter 
signatory within finance, to double 
check the permissions granted in 
the system align with the manager’s 
request. 

31/03/17 Financial 
Services 
Officer 
(Systems) 

 
            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 2 

 

P
age 131



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of the Main Accounting Systems Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 
Comments 

1 Compliance Consideration be given to enhancing monthly budgetary information based on 
suggestions by budget holders. 

The level and type of information provided to managers can be tailored to the 
needs of the service. Monthly monitoring meetings will be used to check 
whether any further information is required by budget holders. 

 

   
ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures, rather than on a one-by-one basis 

 Page 3 

 

P
age 132



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of the Main Accounting Systems Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Detailed Findings 
INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in January 2017 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2016/17. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment of the 
overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

2. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 
Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

3. The review assessed procedures and controls within the main accounting systems (within Integra) to ensure that:  

• Control accounts and bank reconciliations are carried out regularly;  

• Transactions are transferred accurately from feeder systems; 

• The integrity and security of the main accounting system is maintained; 

• Responsibilities and processes for journal entries and year end processing are appropriately defined and allocated; and 

• Transactions are accurately valued and allocated correctly within the general ledger. 

The audit also focused on the arrangements for the overall governance of the system and the controls and risks related to the general ledger (policies, procedures, 
system access). 

4. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

MATERIALITY 

5. The Council uses an integrated financial systems application, Integra, for General Ledger, Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable and Cash Management with 
feeder systems in place covering other fundamental financial systems such as payroll. 

  

  

 Page 4 
 

P
age 133



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of the Main Accounting Systems Arrangements 2016/17 
 

DISCLAIMER 

6. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 
and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 
has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 
and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

7. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage 
the risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the time of our review were being consistently 
applied. 

Reasonable Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation's 
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls 
to mitigate these risks. 

Limited Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to ensure that organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the 
continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are required to improve the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks. 

No Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon 
them to manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Immediate action is required to improve the controls 
required to mitigate these risks. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

8. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Jonathan Idle 
Jonathan.Idle@tiaa.co.uk 
07775 508351 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 
peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 
07970 376542 

 

  

 Page 5 
 

P
age 134

mailto:Jonathan.Idle@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of the Main Accounting Systems Arrangements 2016/17 
 

AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

9. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 
Pete Notley, Chief Accountant 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

10. The table (Figure 1) below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 14th March 2017  

Date revised draft report issued: 24th March 2017  

Date management responses received: 27th March 2017  

Date final report issued: 28th March 2017  

 

  

 Page 6 
 

P
age 135



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 136



Internal Audit 

South Lakeland District Council 

Appraisal Review of the Risk Management Arrangements 

2016/17 

March 2017 FINAL 

Appendix 2f

P
age 137



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Appraisal Review of the Risk Management Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT: REASONABLE KEY FINDINGS 

 

 The Audit Committee has overall responsibility for providing assurance 
on the adequacy of the Councils risk management arrangements. 

 The Risk Management Process has been documented by the Council, 
however further guidance on the operational aspects of risk 
management is required. 

 Risk management training has recently been provided to members but 
has not been included in the Corporate Development Programme for 
officers. 

 The arrangements for the review and update of the Strategic Risk 
Register has been complied with, including regular reports to SMT and 
Committee. 

 Service Plans include Operational Risk Registers, however, it was 
found that very few risks had been noted, increasing the probability 
that not all risks are being managed. 

 

SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

This high-level review considered the arrangements in place for the identification and 
management of risks. 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 3 2 0 

 

  

 Page 1 

 

P
age 138



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Appraisal Review of the Risk Management Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Operational The Risk Management Process 
document is also the procedural 
document for assisting officers with risk 
management. It was noted that the 
process document includes sections on 
strategic risks, operational risks, 
partnership risks and the links with audit 
findings. However, each section is short 
and from discussions with staff, it was 
confirmed that further guidance and 
information on the risk management 
process, and how this should be 
undertaken, is required. 

Further guidance on the operational 
aspects of risk management be 
documented and provided to 
relevant staff to ensure all officers 
involved in risk management 
understand their responsibilities and 
the actions which they must 
undertake to ensure risks are 
identified and managed as required. 
 

2 The new staff intranet now has a 
page created for risk management – 
this has been developed to help 
guide all staff with identifying and 
managing risks.  
The next step is to promote this 
page to all staff including 
Operational Managers for their 
review of operational risks listed in 
their service plans. 

01/03/17 Performance 
and Risk 
Officer 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 2 

 

P
age 139



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Appraisal Review of the Risk Management Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Operational A copy of the Corporate Development 
Programme for officers was reviewed, 
however, it was identified that there was 
no risk management training included. 
From discussions with Operational 
Managers, it was confirmed that some 
training had been provided and that the 
Performance and Risk Officer was 
available to assist when required, 
however there has been no recent 
refresher training provided to staff. 

Risk Management training be 
included in the Corporate 
Development Programme and 
refresher training on risk 
management be provided to all 
relevant officers. 

2 Risk Management Training will be 
listed in the Corporate Development 
Programme. The new staff intranet 
page on Risk Management and 
refreshed training material is in 
place to deliver training. Operational 
Managers will be trained as part of 
their review of their operational risk 
registers during December 2016 
and January 2017. 

01/03/17 Performance 
and Risk 
Officer 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 3 

 

P
age 140



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Appraisal Review of the Risk Management Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

4 Operational Operational Risk Registers are required 
to be reviewed and updated on an 
annual basis as part of the review and 
update of each areas Service Plan. 
Eight Service Plans were provided as 
evidence. In each instance, it was 
confirmed that the corporate process for 
documenting risks had been utilised 
and risks prioritised using the corporate 
risk matrix. However, it was identified 
that the Operational Risk Registers only 
included between one and four risks. 
Due to the limited number of risks noted 
in the Operational Risk Registers, there 
is a concern that Operational Managers 
are not fully aware of the processes for 
identifying and documenting the risks 
which may impact on their service area 
and that not all risks are being managed 
appropriately.  

The arrangements for operational 
risk management be reviewed by 
Senior Management to ensure all 
relevant staff are aware of their 
responsibilities and are regularly 
reviewing and updating their 
Operational Risk Registers to 
ensure that risks posed to the 
Council are being identified and 
managed as required. 

2 Operational risk registers will be 
reviewed with operational managers 
and refresher training provided as 
part of service planning activity 
during December 2016 and January 
2017. 

01/03/17 Performance 
and Risk 
Officer 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 4 

 

P
age 141



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Appraisal Review of the Risk Management Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Operational The Councils Strategic Risk Register is 
reported, in line with performance 
management arrangements, to the 
Senior Management Team each 
quarter end. These reports are then 
presented to Members at the next 
Performance Sub-Committee and then 
the Cabinet. From a review of the role 
and scope of the Performance Sub-
Committee, it was identified that there 
was no reference made to risk 
management.  

It be agreed which Committee is to 
receive the quarterly updates on the 
Strategic Risk Register and that this 
responsibility is noted within the 
terms of reference for the relevant 
Committee. 

3 The Risk Management role will be 
written into the scope of 
Performance Sub-Committee as 
part of the review of the Constitution 
in February 2017. The Constitution 
will be approved by Council at the 
end of March 2017. 

31/03/17 Performance 
and Risk 
Officer 

5 Operational It was also noted that at no time are the 
Operational Risk Registers reported to 
the Audit Committee or the 
Performance Sub-Committee to ensure 
Members have a full knowledge and 
understanding of all the risks which are 
facing the Council and its operations. 

The operational risks, which are 
above the tolerance level, be 
reported to the Audit Committee on 
an annual basis, as a minimum, to 
ensure that Members are aware of 
the operational risks which have 
been identified and are being 
managed. 

3 Options for the reporting of 
Operational Risks will be reported to 
Senior Management Team and a 
decision made during May 2017. 
(Decision will inform the Risk 
Management Page on the intranet, 
operational service plans, training 
material, committee roles and the 
Risk Management Process). 

31/05/17 Performance 
and Risk 
Officer 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 5 

 

P
age 142



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Appraisal Review of the Risk Management Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 
Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

   
ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures, rather than on a one-by-one basis 

 Page 6 

 

P
age 143



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Appraisal Review of the Risk Management Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Detailed Findings 
INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in October 2016 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2016/17. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment of the 
overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

2. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 
Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

3. This high-level review considered the arrangements in place for the identification and management of risks. 

4. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

MATERIALITY 

5. Per the Council Plan, South Lakeland District Council aims to become a fairer and greener Council ensuring that South Lakeland is the best place to live, work and 
explore. The Council has budgeted expenditure of £26.9million in 2016/17 in order to work towards achieving this. 

DISCLAIMER 

6. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 
and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 
has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 
and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

 

 

 

  

  

 Page 7 

 

P
age 144



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Appraisal Review of the Risk Management Arrangements 2016/17 

 
 

RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

7. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance Based upon our findings arising from a review which did not consider the internal control arrangements the expected practices and processes are in 
place. 

Reasonable Assurance Based upon our findings arising from a review which did not consider the internal control arrangements some of the expected practices and processes 
are in place, although improvements could be made to the arrangements. 

Limited Assurance Based upon our findings arising from a review which did not consider the internal control arrangements a small number of the expected practices and 
processes are in place. Significant improvements to the arrangements are required. 

No Assurance Based upon our findings arising from a review which did not consider the internal control arrangements there is a fundamental absence of the expected 
practices and processes. Immediate action is required to improve the arrangements. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

8. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Louise Carmichael 
louise.carmichael@tiaa.co.uk 
07970 830514 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 
peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 
07970 376542 

 

 

  

  

 Page 8 

 

P
age 145

mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

Appraisal Review of the Risk Management Arrangements 2016/17 

 
AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

9. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Simon McVey, Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 
Paul Mountford, Principal Performance & Intelligence Officer 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

10. The table (Figure 1) below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 24th November 2016  

Date management responses received: 23rd March 2017  

Date final report issued: 28th March 2017  

 

 

 

  

 Page 9 

 

P
age 146



Internal Audit 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Taxi Licensing Arrangements 

2016/17 

March 2017 FINAL 

Appendix 2g

P
age 147



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Taxi Licensing Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT KEY FINDINGS 

 

 A comprehensive and clear Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Policy is in place.  

 The Licensing Register held on the Council website includes out of date 
driver and vehicle details. 

 Processes require amending in relation to the period of time which 
Disclosure Barring Service Certificates are retained. 

 The required documentation for the processing of driver and vehicle 
license applications was obtained and retained in the majority of cases. 

 

SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

The review assessed the controls in place to ensure there are appropriate checks in 
place for operators, drivers and vehicles in line with SLDC policy and to ensure the 
service meets its legal and regulatory obligations. The review also covered the 
complaints/appeals process and any action taken to identify unlicensed operators, 
drivers or vehicles. The review also explored whether there is any actual or perceived 
pressure brought to bear when attempting to obtain a licence.  

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 5 1 0 

 

  

 Page 1 

 

P
age 148



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Taxi Licensing Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Compliance From a sample of 50 driver and vehicle 
licenses recorded on the Licensing 
Register on the Council website, 12 
were historical, for which no records 
were maintained on the Civica Flare 
system. 

Historical out-of-date driver and 
vehicle license details held on the 
Licensing Register on the council’s 
website be deleted and the Register 
brought up to date.  

2 Out of date records will be archived 
off the register. The functionality 
within the system to do this will be 
picked up with Civica when they are 
onsite on the 23rd March 2017. 

01/10/18  Public 
Protection 
Manager 

2 Compliance Proprietorship Declarations were 
incorrectly completed/retained for two 
applications. 

Checks be undertaken to verify the 
accuracy of Proprietorship 
Declarations submitted as part of 
Vehicle License applications. 

2 The form will be reviewed to 
determine what information is 
mandatory to remove any 
information which is not required. 
Further monitoring to take place 
which could include changes to the 
IT package.   

01/07/17 Public 
Protection 
Manager 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 2 
 

P
age 149



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Taxi Licensing Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Compliance In respect of DBS documentation, it was 
identified that there had been occasions 
when a license has been issued or 
backdated prior to the date of the DBS 
certificate. In one instance in 2015, a 
license was granted for an application 6 
months before the actual DBS was 
received and despite two reminders to 
the applicant involved. Representation 
was made that this procedure had 
changed in 2016. 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Licenses only be granted upon 
receipt of an acceptable DBS 
certificate.  

2 The occasional historic occurrence 
of a licence being issued prior to 
arrival of the DBS certificate ceased 
at least 12 months ago. There had 
been previous issues with delays 
with the DBS and we are now 
providing the driver three months’ 
notice to get all the information to 
make a valid renewal application. If 
this information is not received prior 
to the expiry of the licence, the 
licence expires and the driver will 
need to make a new application.  

Completed  Public 
Protection 
Manager 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 3 
 

P
age 150



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Taxi Licensing Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

4 Compliance DBS Certificates are retained on the 
Civica Flare system for the majority of 
completed license applications, but 
should not be retained for longer than is 
necessary for the purpose of processing 
the application, as per the Data 
Protection Act 1998.   

DBS Certificates be retained only for 
periods in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act 1998 with system 
prompts established as a reminder 
of this requirement.                           

2 To ensure compliance with the Data 
Protection Act we will implement the 
following practice. If there are no 
concerns with convictions we will 
record that we have viewed the info, 
if there are convictions and we need 
the information to submit the 
findings at a subcommittee hearing 
we will retain the information until 
the date after the appeal to the 
decision and then the information 
will be destroyed.  
The data retention policy for the 
Council may need to be amended to 
reflect this practice.  

15/04/17 Public 
Protection 
Manager 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 4 
 

P
age 151



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Taxi Licensing Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

5 Compliance DBS Certificates are retained on the 
Civica Flare system for the majority of 
completed license applications. The 
Department needs to address retention 
and archiving periods to ensure the 
Council is compliant with data 
protection legislation. 

Clear procedures be established to 
destroy any hardcopy and electronic 
DBS certificates held on the Civica 
Flare system which are no longer 
required and should no longer be 
retained. 

2 To ensure compliance with the Data 
Protection Act we will implement the 
following practice. If there are no 
concerns with convictions we will 
record that we have viewed the info, 
if there are convictions and we need 
the information to submit the 
findings at a subcommittee hearing 
we will retain the information until 
the date after the appeal to the 
decision and then the information 
will be destroyed.  
The data retention policy for the 
Council may need to be amended to 
reflect this practice. 

15/04/17 Public 
Protection 
Manager 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 5 
 

P
age 152



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Taxi Licensing Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

6 Compliance The Department has an informal target 
of aiming to process applications within 
five working days unless there is a 
specific issue with the application. For 
the sample of driver and vehicle 
applications, the time taken between 
the receipt of applications and the 
issuing of the license was 25 days for 
driver’s applications and eight days for 
vehicle applications.  

The Department consider 
incorporating performance indicator 
capacity into the new specification 
for a taxi licensing system, which 
enables management to monitor the 
efficiency of the processing of 
applications. 

3 Applications are received in various 
conditions. If we receive all the 
information and the application can 
be processed, we aim to turn them 
around within five working days. 
There are cases when part 
information is provided (missing a 
DBS) or incorrect and applications 
cannot be processed until we have 
a full valid application. The current 
IT system is limited in integration of 
the performance stats and this will 
be a requirement for the new 
system. Also we will be 
commencing some review of end to 
end processes to make the process 
more lean, customer friendly with 
the ambition of same day 
applications. The implementation 
date has been set to tie in with the 
estimated date of the system 
change. 

01/10/18 Public 
Protection 
Manager 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 6 
 

P
age 153



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Taxi Licensing Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 
Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

   
ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures, rather than on a one-by-one basis 

 Page 7 

 

P
age 154



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Taxi Licensing Arrangements 2016/17 
 

Detailed Findings 
 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in February 2017 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2016/17. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment of the 
overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

2. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 
Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

3. The review assessed the controls in place to ensure there are appropriate checks in place for operators, drivers and vehicles in line with SLDC policy and to ensure 
the service meets its legal and regulatory obligations. The review also covered the complaints/appeals process and any action taken to identify unlicensed operators, 
drivers or vehicles. The review also explored whether there is any actual or perceived pressure brought to bear when attempting to obtain a licence.  

4. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

MATERIALITY 

5. Issues regarding taxi licensing have been have recently been highlighted at Derby City Council and South Ribble Borough Council, and carries significant reputational 
risk. The Licensing Department uses the Civica Flare Public Protection Licensing system to process taxi licenses; it is currently considering acquiring a new system. 

DISCLAIMER 

6. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 
and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 
has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 
and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

  

  

 Page 8 

 

P
age 155



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Taxi Licensing Arrangements 2016/17 
 

RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

7. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage 
the risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the time of our review were being consistently 
applied. 

Reasonable Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation's 
management of risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Improvements are required to enhance the controls 
to mitigate these risks. 

Limited Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to ensure that organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the 
continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are required to improve the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks. 

No Assurance 
Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon 
them to manage risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Immediate action is required to improve the controls 
required to mitigate these risks. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

8. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Jonathan Idle 
Jonathan.Idle@tiaa.co.uk 
07775 508351 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 
peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 
07970 376542 

 

 

 

AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

  

 Page 9 

 

P
age 156

mailto:Jonathan.Idle@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Taxi Licensing Arrangements 2016/17 
 

9. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Simon Rowley, Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services 
Fiona Inston, Public Protection Manager 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

10. The table (Figure 1) below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 21st March 2017  

Date management responses received: 22nd March 2017  

Date final report issued: 23rd March 2017  

Date revised final report issued: 27th March 2017  

 

  

 Page 10 

 

P
age 157



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 158



Internal Audit 

South Lakeland District Council 

Compliance Review of Local Government Transparency Code 

2016/17 

March 2017 FINAL 

Appendix 2h

P
age 159



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Compliance Review of Local Government Transparency Code Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT: REASONABLE KEY FINDINGS 

 

• The Council is largely compliant with the Transparency Code, however, 
there are some areas of the code where more information is required. 

• Data is published in accordance with the open data format requirements. 

• Although a process is in place to identify employees by initials only, a 
review of expenditure open data identified instances where employees 
had been named. 

SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) published a revised 
Local Government Transparency Code in February 2015 which specifies what open 
data local authorities must publish. The Local Government (Transparency 
Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015 regulates the Code. The review assessed 
the extent to which SLDC complies with the Code and the extent to which it seeks to 
exceed the requirements. 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 4 0 1 

 

  

 Page 1 

 

P
age 160



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Compliance Review of Local Government Transparency Code Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Compliance A review of the dataset for September 
2016 payments identified transactions 
where individuals had been identified by 
name in the payment description. 
Discussion with responsible Officers 
noted that internal procedures require 
Officers to identify persons by use of 
initials when raising a purchase order to 
prevent the reporting of sensitive 
information. On this occasion, the data 
had not been subject to review. 

Extracted data be subject to review 
to confirm that sensitive data is 
retracted. Processes be reiterated 
to responsible Officers raising 
purchase orders to ensure headline 
purchase order descriptions clearly 
summarise the purpose of the 
expenditure in accordance with the 
Council expectations. 

2 All the data currently published 
regarding payments over £250 has 
been reviewed and any records 
where personal information was 
included have been updated. Going 
forward the data will be reviewed 
before publication on the 
government website and all ordering 
officers have been contacted to 
inform them not to include personal 
information in the first line of the 
order narrative, as this forms part of 
the published data. 

01/01/17 Financial 
Services 
Officer 
(Systems) 

2 Compliance A review of Government Procurement 
Card open data identified that the 
required details per transactions were 
published with the exception of the date 
of transaction. It is understood that the 
date was not reported in recent datasets 
due to incorrect data formatting.  

Data extraction of Procurement 
Card transactions be reviewed to 
ensure the date of transaction is 
published. 

2 The monthly spreadsheet has been 
adjusted to include the transaction 
date and this will be used going 
forward. The narrative against each 
transaction is also checked to 
ensure no individuals’ names are 
included. 

01/01/17 Financial 
Services 
Officer 
(Systems) 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 2 

 

P
age 161



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Compliance Review of Local Government Transparency Code Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Compliance A link to the organisational chart is 
available via the website. Published in 
PDF format, the job title and department 
is stated for the top three levels of the 
Council. The Code requires the 
following information to be shown for 
the top three levels of staff: 

• Grade. 

• Job Title. 

• Local authority department or 
team. 

• Whether permanent or 
temporary. 

• Contact details. 

• Salary in £5,000 brackets. 

• Salary maximum. 

The Organisation Chart be revised 
to include the data as stated in the 
Code. 

2 The Organisation Chart has been 
updated and published on the 
website 

31/03/17 Community 
Engagement 
Officer 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 3 

 

P
age 162



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Compliance Review of Local Government Transparency Code Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

4 Compliance The Council’s car parking account 
states income and expenditure data for 
off-street car parks that it owns or 
manages. The Council does not collect 
income or enforce on-street parking. A 
breakdown of how the Council has 
spent a surplus, however, is not 
included. 

A breakdown of how the Council has 
spent a surplus on its parking 
account be published.  

2 The website will be amended to 
include an account of how the 
Council has spent the surplus on the 
parking account 

31/03/17 Financial 
Services 
Manager to 
prepare 
account, 
Community 
Engagement 
Officer to 
update 
website 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 4 

 

P
age 163



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Compliance Review of Local Government Transparency Code Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 
Comments 

1 Compliance Details of invitations to tender or invitations to quote that are likely to be issued 
in the next twelve months be published in the same format as the contracts 
register. 

The Procurement Schedule will be added to the website each year once 
approved by Council as part of the budget process. 
Implementation timetable: 30/4/17. 
Responsible Officer: Procurements and Contracts Manager. 

 

   
ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures, rather than on a one-by-one basis 

 Page 5 

 

P
age 164



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Compliance Review of Local Government Transparency Code Arrangements 2016/17 

 

Detailed Findings 
INTRODUCTION 

1. This review was carried out in November 2016 as part of the planned internal audit work for 2016/17. Based on the work carried out an overall assessment of the 
overall adequacy of the arrangements to mitigate the key control risk areas is provided in the Executive Summary. 

KEY FINDINGS & ACTION POINTS 

2. The key control and operational practice findings that need to be addressed in order to strengthen the control environment are set out in the Management and 
Operational Effectiveness Action Plans. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed for their full impact before they are implemented. 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

3. The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) published a revised Local Government Transparency Code in February 2015 which specifies what 
open data local authorities must publish. The Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015 regulates the Code. The review assessed 
the extent to which SLDC complies with the Code and the extent to which it seeks to exceed the requirements. 

4. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

MATERIALITY 

5. The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) published a revised Local Government Transparency Code on 27 February 2015 which includes 
new requirements. The revised Code came into effect on 1 April 2015. 

DISCLAIMER 

6. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 
and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 
has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 
and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

 

  

  

 Page 6 

 

P
age 165



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Compliance Review of Local Government Transparency Code Arrangements 2016/17 

 
 

RISK AREA ASSURANCE ASSESSMENTS 

7. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance Based upon our findings from a review of a sample of transactions the approved policy and procedure is complied with. 

Reasonable Assurance Based upon our findings from a review of a sample of transactions the approved policy and procedure is complied with, although the evidence to 
support the processing of the transactions could be more robust. 

Limited Assurance Based upon our findings from a review of a sample of transactions the approved policy and procedure is not being continuously complied with. 
Significant improvements in the processing of transactions could be more robust. 

No Assurance Based upon our findings from a review of a sample of transactions there is a fundamental breakdown or absence of compliance with the approved 
policy and procedure. Immediate action is required to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of controls. 

AUDIT CONTACTS 

8. For any queries or to discuss the content of this report, please contact either of the following: 

Lead Auditor: Samantha Lee 
Samantha.Lee@tiaa.co.uk 
07580 700444 

 

Head of Internal Audit: Peter Harrison 
peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 
07970 376542 

 

AUDIT REPORT DISTRIBUTION 

9. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the course of our work. 

For Action: Simon McVey, Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 
Claire Gould, Partnerships and Organisational Development Manager 

  

 Page 7 

 

P
age 166

mailto:Samantha.Lee@tiaa.co.uk
mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


 

South Lakeland District Council 

Compliance Review of Local Government Transparency Code Arrangements 2016/17 

 

For Information: Shelagh McGregor, Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

10. The table (Figure 1) below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 6th December 2016  

Date management responses received: 27th March 2017  

Date final report issued: 28th March 2017  

 

  

 Page 8 

 

P
age 167



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 168



Internal Audit 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 

2016/17 

March 2017 DRAFT

Appendix 3

P
age 169



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 

 
 

Executive Summary  
 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This follow up review by TIAA established the management action that has been taken in respect of recommendations arising from the internal audit reviews listed 
below at South Lakeland District Council. The review was carried out in March 2017. 

 

Review Year 

Agency and Interim Staff 
 

2015/16 

Asset Management 
 

2015/16 

Bereavement Services 
 

2015/16 

General IT Controls 
 

2015/16 

Grounds Maintenance 
 

2014/15 

Homelessness(Social Lettings)Scheme 
 

2015/16 

Housing Benefits 
 

2015/16 

Housing Services 
 

2015/16 

Housing Standards 
 

2015/16 

Lake Windermere Services 
 

2014/15 

Leisure Services 
 

2015/16 

Street Cleaning 2015/16 

 Page 1 
 

P
age 170



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 

 
KEY FINDINGS 

2. The follow up review considered whether the management action taken addresses the control issues that gave rise to the recommendations. The implementation of 
these recommendations can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss. From the work carried out the following evaluations 
of the progress of the management actions taken to date have been identified. 

 

Evaluation Number of Recommendations 

Implemented 23 

In Process of Being Implemented 8 

No Longer Applicable 1 

Not Implemented 14 

 

3. The key issue identified is that there are four high priority (as determined by the previous provider) recommendations which remain outstanding.  

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

4. The review considers the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the previous internal audit reports and to establish the extent to which 
management has taken the necessary actions to address the control issues that gave rise to the internal audit recommendations. 

5. The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all 
strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity, should there be any, 
although the audit procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control 
may not be proof against collusive fraud 

6. For the purposes of this review reliance was placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to staff and to accounting records and transactions and 
to ensure the authenticity of these documents. 

 

 

 

 

 Page 2 
 

P
age 171



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 

 
KEY 

7. The following key has been applied to illustrate the status of each recommendation: 

Outstanding The recommendation has not yet been implemented but is still on target to meet its target date. 

Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date has not been met. 

Outstanding There is no tangible evidence that the recommendation is being progressed. 

Completed The recommendation has been implemented and is now considered closed. 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

8. The table below sets out the history of this report. 
 

Date draft report issued: 29th March 2017 

Date management responses recd:  

Date final report issued:  

 

 

 Page 3 
 

P
age 172



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Detailed Report  
 

FOLLOW UP 

9. Management representations were obtained on the action taken to address the recommendations. Only limited testing has been carried out to confirm these 
management representations. The following matters were identified in considering the recommendations that have not been fully implemented: 

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS REMAIN OUTSTANDING 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Agency and 
Interim Staff 

The Recruitment and 
Selection policy should be 
reviewed to ensure it 
includes all information 
Managers may require 
when recruiting agency 
workers. Where changes 
to the policy are made / 
guidance introduced, they 
should be communicated 
and staff trained on it as 
appropriate.  We also 
recommend that a lead 
officer should be made 
responsible for ensuring 
the policy and guidance 
are kept up to date and 
applied across the 
Council 

2 The procedure and 
documentation will be 
reviewed and updated to 
ensure the correct procedure 
is in place. Written 
'Guidance' will be provided 
alongside training of the 
relevant employees. Update 
23/08/16: The R&S 
procedure is being reviewed 
and is due to be considered 
by HR on the 15 November 
2016. Update 17/11/16: 
Review of R&S procedure 
has been delayed until other 
elements of the Customer 
Connect project are 
completed and future 
requirements are better 
understood. 

HR Manager 31/12/2016 30/06/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 The update to procedures 
has been delayed until 
elements of the Customer 
Connect projects are 
completed, so that 
recruitment processes are 
aligned to future 
requirements. The 
Customer Connect project 
will, however, be 
implemented over a two to 
three year timeframe. 
Consideration should be 
given to whether existing 
guidance is suitable for 
current and short term 
needs.  

  

 

 Page 4 

 

P
age 173



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Agency and 
Interim Staff 

A corporate purchasing 
arrangement should be 
put in place for the supply 
of agency / interim 
workers which provides 
value for money, is 
reviewed for best value on 
a regular basis, meets the 
needs of all service areas, 
and which is then used for 
the recruitment of all 
agency / interim workers. 
Following the introduction 
of a corporate purchasing 
arrangement relevant 
monitoring of compliance 
with this and appropriate 
contract management 
arrangements should be 
established as necessary. 

2 Improvements to this area 
have already been 
implemented. These will be 
reviewed and updated as 
necessary as part of the 
above procedure and 
guidance manual. Update 
23/08/16: Working with 
procurement to develop 
arrangements - progress is 
slower than anticipated due 
to the vacancies in the HR 
section which were recruited 
to in early Sept. Update 
17/11/16: Discussions 
started.  Operational 
Managers have been 
approached to ensure 
existing arrangements are 
captured in the procurement 
process.  Potential use of 
frameworks being examined. 

HR Manager 31/03/2017 31/07/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017  HR and the Procurement 
team are currently 
reviewing the supplier 
arrangements with 
recruitment agencies 
regarding the supply of 
temporary workers with a 
view to putting the 
arrangements onto a more 
formal business 
arrangement. In the 
meantime, whilst there is 
currently no formal contract 
in place with Adecco, steps 
have been taken to ensure 
that the arrangements are 
controlled, including 
reminding all Operational 
Managers regarding the 
use of recruitment agencies 
and the need to advise HR 
of any new agency 
arrangements prior to them 
being agreed, and a 
negotiated agreement with 
Adecco in Kendal for a flat 
fee of Â£250 when making 
a temporary employee 
permanent. 

  

 

 Page 5 

 

P
age 174



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Asset 
Management 

The Council should have 
an overarching strategy of 
what is required / 
expected from its 
investment property 
portfolio. 

2 Follow up Conclusion: The 
recommendation will be 
implemented as part of the 
property/asset management 
strategy review. Update 
14/03/16: Preparation of a 
comprehensive medium term 
Strategic asset management 
Plan is a key action in year 1 
of the re-tendered Property 
Management contract which 
commences in 2016/17. 
Ahead of that the Council has 
already commissioned a 
Town Centre master plan 
exercise for Kendal, this will 
also inform strategic 
decisions about the 
investment portfolio Update 
13/06/16: The new Property 
Services Management 
Provider will undertake a 
strategic review of the whole 
of the Council's portfolio in 
the first twelve months of the 
new contract. Update 
23/08/16: The contract starts 
on 1st October 2016 and will 
deliver recommendations in 
first twelve months. Update 
17/11/16: contract 
commenced, work 
commenced, draft will be 
delivered by 30/6/17. 

Assistant 
Director 
(Strategic 
Development) 

30/09/2017 30/09/2017 Outstanding 14/03/2017 This recommendation 
remains on target. It is a 
requirement of the new 
contract with Lambert Smith 
Hampton to undertake this 
strategic review within the 
first year of their contract 
with the Council.  

  

 

 Page 6 

 

P
age 175



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Asset 
Management 

Management should 
review the process to log 
and follow up rent review 
cases to ensure rent 
reviews are undertaken 
and enforced on a timely 
basis. 

2 Update 14/03/16: There is a 
performance indicator in the 
new property management 
contract which highlights 
performance on completion 
of rent reviews over set time 
periods from giving 
instruction. It should be noted 
however that some tenants 
are less than constructive in 
seeking to agree rent 
reviews, in which case an 
independent process has to 
be actioned in order to reach 
a conclusion on those rent 
reviews. In the meantime 
progress on faster 
completion is being 
monitored with the property 
services contractor at the e 
monthly meetings. Update 
13/06/16: Monthly review 
meetings have commenced 
between Legal and the 
Property Services provider to 
progress these issues. 
Update 23/08/16: Progress is 
on track - process 
improvements are 
embedded in the new 
contract. Update 17/11/16: 
monthly list now submitted to 
Corporate Asset Manager for 
action. 

Assistant 
Director 
(Strategic 
Development) 

31/03/2017 30/04/2017 Outstanding 22/03/2017 The new proposed KPIs for 
the Property Service 
Provider Contract includes 
a measure that the Property 
Services Provider should 
enter dialogue with tenants 
within 3 months (or notice 
period as set out in the 
lease) of any rent review to 
protect the Council’s 
interest with a related 
indicator. This will be 
reported on a monthly basis 
from the end of March 
2017. The delay in reporting 
is due to the change in 
Property Services provider 
and allowing a period of 
time for the new provider to 
deal with a high level of 
backlog issues left by the 
previous provider. A revised 
date of the end of April 2017 
has been set. 

  

 

 Page 7 

 

P
age 176



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Asset 
Management 

Relevant contract 
manager(s) should 
ensure that there is 
corrective action(s) in 
place that is agreed with 
the Property Services 
Contractor to increase 
completion rate of rent 
reviews/lease renewals. 

2 The new Property Services 
Contract commences in 
October 2016. One of the key 
year 1 actions is to develop a 
draft asset management 
strategy; this can be 
completed and the political 
process gone through in time 
for the implementation date 
agreed in the audit report of 
March 2017.Additionally the 
new contract now has time 
related KPI`s for the 
completion of rent reviews 
(and lease renewals) 
following good practice. This 
KPI can be negotiated with 
the current provider NPS for 
the remainder of their (now 
extended) contract. Update 
13/06/16: A new set of 
performance indicators is 
included in the Property 
Services Management 
Contract which targets 
completions. Update 
23/08/16: Progress is on 
track - process 
improvements are 
embedded in the new 
contract starting on the 1st 
October 2016.Update 
17/11/16: Progress is on 
track to complete agreement 
of KPIs by end of December 
2016. 

Assistant 
Director 
(Strategic 
Development) 

31/03/2017 30/04/2017 Outstanding 22/03/2017  The new proposed KPIs for 
the Property Service 
Provider Contract includes 
a measure that the Property 
Services Provider should 
enter dialogue with tenants 
within 3 months (or notice 
period as set out in the 
lease) of any rent review to 
protect the Council’s 
interest with a related 
indicator. This will be 
reported on a monthly basis 
from the end of March 
2017. The delay in reporting 
is due to the change in 
Property Services provider 
and allowing a period of 
time for the new provider to 
deal with a high level of 
backlog issues left by the 
previous provider. 

  

 

 Page 8 

 

P
age 177



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Bereavement 
Services 

The Community and 
Leisure Service Plan 
should be developed to 
include specific objectives 
and targets for 
Bereavement services 
which clearly contribute to 
Council priorities. 
Arrangements should be 
put in place to monitor and 
report on performance 

1 The service is flexibly 
delivered to meet customer 
needs at what is often a very 
difficult time for grieving 
families, we do not believe 
that the service would benefit 
from specific targets at this 
time. The service does 
contribute to the broader 
outcomes of the council plan 
in making the area the best 
place to live, work and 
explore and to provide 
excellence in how it delivers 
the service . The current and 
future objectives for the 
service will be considered in 
the drafting of the Parks and 
Open Spaces Strategy.  A 
target date for completion of 
the strategy is December 
2016.Update 23/08/16: A 
draft Parks and Open 
Spaces Strategy will be in 
place by December 
2016.Update 17/11/16: 
Parks and Open Spaced 
Strategy to be finalised for 
31/3/17 so concurrent with 
the commencement of 
grounds maintenance 
contract extension. 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer 

31/12/2016 31/07/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 The Community and 
Leisure Service Plan is 
being updated but it will not 
include performance 
measures for the 
bereavement service. The 
service will be measured 
instead through the 
Grounds Maintenance 
Partnership Board and this 
will be more on qualitative 
measures rather than 
specific targets, which are 
not considered entirely 
appropriate. The Board will 
meet quarterly and 
inclusion of the 
Bereavement Service in the 
agenda/minutes will satisfy 
the requirements of this 
recommendation. 

  

 

 Page 9 

 

P
age 178



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Bereavement 
Services 

Management should 
make arrangements to 
develop comprehensive 
documented procedures 
for Bereavement 
Services. 

2 The development and 
documenting of procedures 
has been set as a target for 
the Bereavement Services 
Officer, as part of the 
appraisal process.  The 
target date for achievement 
was July 2015.  Whilst some 
procedures have been 
documented Further work is 
required to complete this task 
and a new timescale will be 
set. Update 23/08/16: Six 
procedures have been 
identified to document and 
these will be completed by 
31/03/17.Update 17/11/16: 
on target. 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer 
/ Bereavement 
Services 
Officer 

31/03/2017 30/04/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 Some procedures have 
been updated, but 
elements that link to the 
contractor and the way that 
the service will be delivered 
going forward have not 
been completed. The 
Principal Community 
Spaces Officer is keen to 
ensure that these are 
completed. 

Bereavement 
Services 

Business continuity 
actions for bereavement 
services should be 
progressed 

2 The training of a Support 
Assistant to provide cover for 
the Bereavement Services 
Officer role has been 
included as a target as part of 
the Bereavement Services 
Officer's appraisal.  The 
target date for achievement 
was July 2015. This activity 
has commenced but due to 
staff changes further work is 
required to complete this task 
and a new timescale will be 
set. Update 23/08/16: a team 
restructure will deliver 
business continuity 
arrangements by 
31/03/17.Update 17/11/16: 
on target. 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer 
/ Bereavement 
Services 
Officer 

31/03/2017 30/09/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 Business continuity 
arrangements mainly 
between the Bereavement 
Services Officer (BSO) and 
the contractor need to be 
formalised. Cover for the 
BSO would currently be 
provided by immediate line 
management. The Service 
has been operating with a 
temporary member of staff 
to support the BSO. This 
will become a permanent 
role from May 2017 
following the authority to 
recruit having been given; 
training up the appointee in 
all aspects of the service 
will provide additional 
contingency. 

 

 Page 10 

 

P
age 179



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Bereavement 
Services 

Management should 
assure themselves that 
efficiencies relating to 
future service planning 
opportunities have been 
fully explored and actions 
identified and progressed 
as appropriate. 

2 Fees and charges for this 
service area are reviewed 
annually. Emerging best 
practice and service 
enhancements are 
considered including 
alternative burial options in 
light of customer need and 
appropriate legislation at the 
time. These will additionally 
be considered in the drafting 
of the Parks and Open 
Spaces Strategy. Update 
23/08/16: A draft Parks and 
Open Spaces Strategy will 
be in place by December 
2016.Update 17/11/16: 
Parks and Open Spaced 
Strategy to be finalised for 
31/3/17 so concurrent with 
the commencement of 
grounds maintenance 
contract extension. 

Community 
and Leisure 
Manager/ 
Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer 
/ Bereavement 
Services 
Officer 

31/12/2016 30/09/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 Efficiencies have been 
considered through the 
contract extension. Tasks 
are being structured around 
resources and will be 
considered as part of the 
update to the Parks and 
Open Spaces Strategy. 

  

 

 Page 11 

 

P
age 180



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Bereavement 
Services 

There should be a 
mechanism in place to 
ensure that risks 
associated with the 
Service are identified, 
assessed and managed. 

1 Service operational risks 
associated with the work 
undertaken in Cemeteries is 
comprehensively recorded 
and reviewed by the 
contractor undertaking this 
activity and is subject to 
scrutiny and consideration by 
the client officers .  Risks 
associated with business 
continuity will be considered 
and assessed in accordance 
with the corporate risk 
management approach. 
Target Sept 2016 Update 
23/08/16: risks will be 
identified and developed as 
part of the service planning 
process by Dec 2016.Update 
17/11/16: Service planning 
process to commence in 
early 2017 for completion by 
March 2017. 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer 

31/12/2016 30/04/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 Risks will be considered in 
the Service Plan which will 
be complete by the end of 
April 2017. 

Bereavement 
Services 

Management should 
ensure that adequate 
arrangements are in place 
to review and assess the 
Services future planning 
arrangements.  This could 
include ensuring provision 
can be maintained, 
identifying ways of 
improving the service and 
possible cost reductions 
for the Council. 

1 Risks identified with future 
provision including business 
continuity will be managed 
utilising the corporate risk 
management approach. 
Target Sept 2016 for risks to 
be identified and assessed. 
Update 23/08/16: risks will be 
identified and developed as 
part of the service planning 
process by Dec 2016.Update 
17/11/16: Service planning 
process to commence in 
early 2017 for completion by 
March 2017. 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer 

31/12/2016 31/07/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 It is expected that future 
service provision will be 
considered through the 
Service Plan and the 
Partnership Board for the 
Grounds Maintenance 
contract which is being 
established. First quarter 
reporting is expected by the 
end of July 2017. 

  

 

 Page 12 

 

P
age 181



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Bereavement 
Services 

Once objectives and 
performance targets have 
been established for the 
service (see 
recommendation 1), 
Senior management 
should define the 
frequency and type of 
reporting they require to 
effectively monitor the 
service.   

2 In light of the comments 
made for recommendation 1 
above Management will 
define a reporting framework 
based on exceptions. 
Update: Reporting and 
monitoring mechanisms will 
be completed as part of the 
partnership with CLL and the 
Business Plan  - deadline 
31/03/17Update 17/11/16: 
Service planning process to 
commence in early 2017 for 
completion by March 2017 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer 

31/03/2017 31/07/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 The Community and 
Leisure Service Plan is 
being updated but it will not 
include performance 
measures for the 
bereavement service. The 
service will be measured 
instead through the 
Grounds Maintenance 
Partnership Board and this 
will be more on qualitative 
measures rather than 
specific targets, which are 
not considered entirely 
appropriate. The Board will 
meet quarterly and 
inclusion of the 
Bereavement Service in the 
agenda/minutes will satisfy 
the requirements of this 
recommendation. 

  

 

 Page 13 

 

P
age 182



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

General IT 
Controls 

All system users should 
be requested to complete 
a declaration to confirm 
their receipt, 
understanding of and 
compliance to the IT 
Acceptable Use Policy. 
These declarations 
should be retained. 
Consideration may also 
be given to the 
automation of this 
declaration through the 
network log on process. 

2  All new staff read and sign 
the appropriate policies prior 
to being given access to the 
council network - we haven't 
requested all users resign as 
yet because the policies still 
need to be reviewed and 
updated. Update 13/06/16: 
Policies are being prepared 
for HR Committee in 
September as part of the 
information Governance 
Project. Due date amended 
to 30/09/16.Update 23/08/16 
The IT Acceptable Use 
Policy was approved by the 
HR Committee on 
06/09/16.This will be 
communicated to staff and 
managers. 

IT Services 
Manager 

30/09/2016 30/09/2016 Outstanding 22/03/2017 Acceptable Use Policy and 
following Protocols adopted 
by HR Committee: ICT 
Access Protocol, ICT 
Infrastructure Security 
Protocol; Remote Working 
Protocol and Social Media 
Protocol. Implementation 
Plan in Place to 
communicate policies 
across all 14 Operations.  
To be completed by 
September 2017. 
 
New Starter declarations 
retained by ICT. GCSx 
Protocol to be agreed as 
part of Information Security 
Policy by 28 April 2017. 
 
Records Retention Policy, 
Records Retention 
Schedule and Records 
Disposal Protocol adopted 
at 25 January 2017 
Cabinet. 

General IT 
Controls 

Once all policies are 
refreshed, the procedure 
to be applied in the event 
of potential / known IT 
security breaches should 
be defined and 
documented. These 
arrangements should be 
made available to key 
staff. 

2  Agreed that this will be part 
of the new policies that are 
created as part of the wider 
Information Governance 
project. The project has 
created the high level 
governance framework but 
the policies at this level 
haven't been updated as yet. 
We are aiming to have the 
newly amended policies 
presented at the Sept HR 
Committee.  They will be 
rolled out after they have 
been approved. 

IT Services 
Manager 

31/03/2016 31/03/2016 Outstanding 22/03/2017 Information Security Policy 
in place.  Agreed as part of 
overall Information 
Governance Framework.  
Details approved 16 
September 2015.  Security 
Incident Policy and 
Confidential Waste 
Protocol complete and to be 
approved by Senior 
Management by 28 April 
2017.  Implementation Plan 
in Place to communicate 
policies across all 14 
Operations.  To be 
completed by September 
2017. 

 

 Page 14 

 

P
age 183



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Grounds 
Maintenance 

The key performance 
indicators and the system 
for recording and 
monitoring against them 
should be decided.  

2 The report was completed 
Sept 2015 and taken to 
October Cabinet.  The 
recommendation is to extend 
the contract with CLL and 
develop a partnership and a 
business plan.  Discussions 
are currently taking place to 
ascertain what is required to 
make this happen for 1 April 
2017Update 07/06/16: 
Progress is on track for 
01/04/17.Update 23/08/16: 
Progress is on track Update 
17/11/16: monthly meetings 
held with CLL and SLDC 
staff: progress is on track. 

Principal 
Community 
Spaces 
Officer/Assista
nt Director 

01/04/2017 01/04/2017 Outstanding 22/03/2017 The extension of the 
contract with CLL from 1st 
April 2017 is in the latter 
stages of being finalised. It 
will be run under a 
Management Plan and 
generic/site specific action 
plans, KPIs for which have 
largely been determined 
Progress is on track and 
monitoring will be effected 
from 1st April 2017. 

Housing 
Services 

a) Management should 
ensure that a timescale is 
set for the review and 
update of the 
procurement and 
tendering arrangements 
to select and award work 
consistently on a 
competitive basis and to 
support value for money. 
All checks performed 
should be formally 
documented and decision 
making clearly defined 
and transparent. b) 
Management should 
ensure that a timescale is 
set for the review and 
update of the list of 
contractors to procure and 
tender for DFGs work and 
to introduce a formal 
system for accrediting 
contractors to undertake 
DFGs work. 

1 a) and b) The DFG 
procurement and tendering 
arrangements, including 
awarding contracts and 
accrediting contractors, are 
included in the Corporate 
Procurement Strategy that 
has been approved by 
Cabinet. These 
arrangements and a list of 
approved contractors will be 
undertaken by the end of this 
financial year. Update 
23/08/16: Progress is on 
track. 

Housing 
Strategy & 
Delivery 
Manager 

31/03/2017 30/04/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 The procurement of 
contractors to deliver DFGs 
is largely complete and is to 
come in to effect from 
01/04/2017. 

 

 Page 15 

 

P
age 184



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Housing 
Services 

a) Management should 
ensure that a timescale is 
set for deciding the stage 
of the project when a site 
view inspection visit to 
assess and evaluate the 
contractors' work 
progress and who will 
perform these visits prior 
to approving payment 
requests.  b) Management 
should ensure that a 
timescale is set for the 
review of management 
information to use in 
monitoring the variances 
in contractors' types of 
works and pricing to assist 
in decision making and 
support value for money. 

2 a) and b) A small working 
group led by the Housing 
Strategy & Delivery Manager 
will be established to review 
the DFG policy and 
procedures. The revised 
procedures will reflect the 
stage of the project when a 
site inspection visit will take 
place and the information to 
be used to monitor variances 
in contractors' types of work 
and pricing. Update 
23/08/16: Progress is on 
track. 

Housing 
Strategy & 
Delivery 
Manager 

31/01/2017 30/04/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 This recommendation ties 
in to update of procedures 
which will be complete by 
early April 2017. 

  

 

 Page 16 

 

P
age 185



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Housing 
Standards 

a) The DFGs Policy 
should be reviewed and 
updated and this should 
be formally documented. 
b) The DFGs system 
procedure notes should 
be reviewed and updated 
to reflect all current 
working practices and to 
support the DFGs policy. 
The DFGs procedural 
notes should clearly 
define all current working 
practices that includes; 
procuring and tendering of 
works; validation and 
approval checks and 
reflect other related 
Council's procedures and 
guidance i.e. Council's 
Contractual Procedural 
Rules. c) Those 
accountable  for 
approving and awarding 
DFGs should be reminded 
of their responsibility for 
being assured that the  
procedures to follow and 
the checks to be 
performed to verify the 
accuracy, validity and 
consistency of DFGs 
procurement and financial 
information are formally 
documented. d) A 
timescale should be set 
for the review and update 
of the DFGs Policy and 
Procedure notes including 
the relevant approval 
arrangements. 

2 a) and b) A small working 
group led by the Housing 
Strategy & Delivery Manager 
will be established to review 
the DFG policy and 
procedures. b) and c) The 
revised procedures will 
reflect all current working 
practices. The DFG policy 
and procedures will be 
communicated to staff d)The 
revised DFG policy will be 
submitted to Cabinet for 
approval by January 
2017.Update 23/08/16: 
Progress is on track. Update 
17/11/16: Progress is on 
track. 

Housing 
Strategy & 
Delivery 
Manager 

31/01/2017 30/04/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 It is understood that the 
new policy is to be 
presented to Cabinet on 
22nd March 2017 with 
procedures being updated 
and promulgated to those 
staff involved by early April 
2017. 

 

 Page 17 

 

P
age 186



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Housing 
Standards 

Procedures should be 
introduced to support the 
enforcement policy.  They 
should define expected 
guidance for staff to follow 
in order to process 
enforcement of housing 
standard cases and 
include: clearly defined 
the roles and 
responsibilities; task to be 
undertaken, timescale 
requirements; documents 
to use; and reporting 
arrangements.  A 
timescale should be set 
for preparing the 
procedures including the 
approval arrangements. 

2 The same small working 
group led by the Housing 
Strategy & Delivery Manager 
as referred to in Rec 3 will 
review the enforcement 
policy to include guidance on 
the implementation of the 
policy. Update 23/08/16: 
Progress is on track. 

Housing 
Strategy & 
Delivery 
Manager 

31/01/2017 30/04/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 It is anticipated that 
procedures will be updated 
by early April 2017. 

  

 

 Page 18 

 

P
age 187



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Lake 
Windermere 
Services 

The Council should 
develop its operational 
service planning 
arrangements for 
Windermere Lake 
Services to more clearly 
link service objectives and 
associated performance 
measures to wider 
Council's priorities and 
the Strategic Vision of the 
partnership. 

2 Management recognised this 
is issue. There is to be a 
refresh of the Windermere 
Strategy; the Director of 
People and Places is leading 
on this review with LDNP. 
The timetable for the 
refreshed strategy has been 
revised with the LDNPA and 
reported to Lake 
Administration Committee, 
with a completion date of the 
end of October 2016Draft 
action points from the 2011-
15 Windermere Strategy are 
to be aligned to corporate 
priorities and will be 
incorporated into the Service 
Plan for year commencing 
Jan 2016. Progress is on 
track for inclusion in service 
plans for 2016/17.Update 
09/06/16: Draft action points 
are now incorporated into the 
Service Plan - this rec is now 
partially implemented Update 
23/08/16: The completion 
date is now revised to 
01/04/17 following 
agreement of Windermere 
Management Strategy 
Working Group (members of 
SLDC and LDNPA) 

Director of 
People and 
Places 

01/04/2017 30/06/2017 Outstanding 14/03/2017 

 

 

The Council has worked 
with stakeholders, 
predominantly LDNPA to 
refresh the Lake 
Windermere Management 
Strategy from 2017 to 2022. 
The strategy is largely 
developed and requires the 
final endorsement of 
various stakeholders before 
being presented to the Lake 
Administration Committee 
in June 2017 at which point 
the strategy can begin to be 
implemented.   

  

 

 Page 19 

 

P
age 188



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Street 
Cleaning 

The Service Plan should 
include specific actions 
relating to Education & 
Enforcement to reflect the 
Council Plan's overall 
Environment priority. 
These actions should be 
targeted at the areas of 
greatest need and 
supported by clear 
objectives, budgets, 
targets and performance 
measures which can be 
independently reviewed 
by management and 
enable performance 
reporting of service 
outputs and outcomes. 

2 Agreed management action: 
The Clean Streets Campaign 
Action Plan will be revised to 
include specific targeted 
programs of educational / 
enforcement activity that are 
considered appropriate and 
proportionate and as may be 
considered necessary led by 
intelligence gathered from 
the contact centre. A 
separate Education Plan is 
not considered necessary 
nor enhanced resources 
needed to directly deliver 
educational messages at this 
time. We will continue to 
work with partner 
organisations LDNPA, CCC 
and LAPS and Town 
Councils to support them 
delivering their statutory and 
civic responsibilities. Current 
evidence points to an 
ongoing reduction in fly 
tipping incidents, Dog fouling 
issues, and recent limited 
feedback from a district wide 
parish council consultation 
did not indicate widespread 
nor significant littering 
concerns. Update 10/06/16: 
Since restructuring from April 
2016 a working draft for 
Clean Streets has been 
developed. The due date has 
been reviewed and amended 
to 31/03/17.Update 23/08/16: 
Progress is on track for the 
above actions. 

Street Scene 
Manager 

31/03/2017 30/04/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017  This will be considered 
within the 2017/18 Service 
Plan which is yet to be 
finalised. It is envisaged 
that this will be complete by 
the end of April 2017. 

  

 

 Page 20 

 

P
age 189



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Street 
Cleaning 

Management should 
consider whether 
Education & Enforcement 
requirements should be 
formally included within 
the Waste, Recycling and 
Street Cleansing service 
specification. 

2 Agreed management action: 
Consideration will be given to 
including additional details 
regarding the Street Care 
enforcement and education, 
aims and objectives, as 
detailed within the service 
specification and any specific 
matters including key 
targeted project work will be 
Included within the service 
plan and clean streets 
campaign action plan. 
Update 10/06/16: This 
particular service is not 
included in the waste and 
recycling contract, however, 
it forms part of the Street 
Scene Managers 
responsibilities and is the 
critical eye on the delivery of 
both in-house and external 
contracts. This would need to 
be discussed with the 
Assistant Director as to 
whether this should be 
included. Working closely 
enables a quick response 
and value for the customer. 
Update 23/08/16: Progress is 
on track. Changes may be 
required to the structure of 
Neighbourhood Services. 

Street Scene 
Manager 

31/03/2017 30/04/2017 Outstanding 29/03/2017 This service comes in-
house from 1st April 2017. 
The (wider) service 
specifications need to be 
determined and 
incorporated into the 
delivery of the service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 21 

 

P
age 190



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS HAVE BEEN IMPLEMENTED  

 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Agency and 
Interim Staff 

Management should set out 
the management information 
requirements to enable them 
to monitor the use of agency / 
interim workers and identify 
any issues arising in this 
area. Once defined the 
information should be 
regularly reported at an 
appropriate level e.g. 
Assistant Director Group 

2 Chief Accountant 
& HR Manager 

31/07/2016 31/07/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 This is now being included in the 
quarterly monitoring report. 

Asset 
Management 

 

 

 

Management need to ensure 
a system is in place to enable 
proper co-ordination between 
the Property Services 
Contractor, the PS Manager, 
Legal and Finance sections 
to ensure all 
tenants/leaseholders are 
invoiced for the correct 
amount on a timely basis. 
Management should also 
monitor the effective 
operation of this system and 
apply accuracy checks to 
ensure the amounts charged 
are correct. 

1 Assistant Director 
(Strategic 
Development) 

31/03/2017 31/03/2017 Closed 22/03/2017 Monthly meetings are now in place 
between the Property Services 
Contract Manager, the property 
Services Contractor, Legal and 
Finance which discuss any issues 
related to invoicing and any 
outstanding debts. 

Bereavement 
Services 

Management should ensure 
that there is a mechanism in 
place to confirm the accuracy 
of charges made to 
customers. 

2 Community & 
Leisure Manager / 
Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer 

31/10/2016 31/10/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 Sample checking of fees and 
charges is now carried out. 

Bereavement 
Services 

Arrangements should be in 
place to give management 
assurance that the service 
keeps abreast of changes to 
legislation relating to 
bereavement services. 

2 Community & 
Leisure Manager / 
Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer 

30/09/2016 30/09/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 The BSO role requires the individual 
to keep up to date with legislation 
and changes; this is done through 
training and attendance at seminars. 

 

 Page 22 

 

P
age 191



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Homelessness
(Social 
Lettings)Sche
me 

The methodology for 
calculating fees should be 
revisited to aid better 
transparency of the data and 
fees charged for each aspect. 

2 Principal Housing 
Solutions & 
Homelessness 
Officer 

31/10/2016 31/10/2016 Closed 22/03/2017 Closed 

Housing 
Benefits 

The draft targeted quality 
checking procedures should 
be finalised and 
communicated to staff. 
Management should ensure 
that training is provided if 
necessary, that controls are 
in place to ensure procedures 
are complied with and that 
procedures are maintained 
up to date. 

2 Shared Benefits 
Manager 

31/07/2016 31/07/2016 Closed 14/03/2017 Procedures have been finalised. 
There is a limited number of staff 
who need to have access to and 
understand the quality checking 
process; it was confirmed during the 
audit that these staff were aware of 
and had access to the procedures. 
This recommendation has been 
implemented. 

Housing 
Benefits 

Management should formally 
set out their requirements in 
relation to 'housekeeping' 
reports and their use to 
ensure they can be confident 
in the assurances they take 
from this process. 

2 Shared Benefits 
Manager 

30/09/2016 30/09/2016 Closed 14/03/2017 The suite of reports that are required 
for housekeeping purposes has 
been determined and updated, 
including the frequency with which 
they are run. 

Housing 
Benefits 

Management should review 
the arrangements in place 
around performance 
monitoring and reporting to 
ensure that they are satisfied 
with the controls in place to 
mitigate risks in this area. 

2 Shared Benefits 
Manager 

31/12/2016 31/12/2016 Closed 14/03/2017 The performance monitoring 
arrangements have been reviewed 
and processes/procedures put in 
place to enable someone other than 
the normal postholder to produce the 
information in their absence.  

  

 

 Page 23 

 

P
age 192



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Housing 
Services 

a) Management should 
ensure that a timetable is set 
to review the arrangements 
for regularly monitoring 
staffing establishment for the 
enforcement of housing 
standards and DFGs that 
includes setting a target to 
monitor, evaluate and report 
the enforcement of housing 
standards performance 
activity against target. b) 
Managers should be 
reminded of the need to 
retain a record of regular 
meetings with staff that 
supports discussions made 
regarding the Housing 
Standards Team 
performance etc. Any 
outcomes from such 
meetings should be reported 
and escalated and where 
appropriate corrective action 
taken should be documented. 

2 Development 
Strategy & 
Housing Manager 

31/05/2016 31/05/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 This recommendation has been 
implemented. 

Housing 
Services 

2Training should be provided 
to all staff involved in the DFG 
procurement arrangement on 
their responsibilities for 
declaring relevant business 
interests which may lead to 
conflict of interests and to 
make contractors aware of 
the need to share any 
potential conflicts of interests. 

2 Housing Strategy 
& Delivery 
Manager 

30/09/2016 30/09/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 

 

 

 

This has been implemented. The 
DFG procurement is largely 
complete. 

  

 

 Page 24 

 

P
age 193



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Housing 
Services 

Management should ensure 
a timetable is set for 
comparing the staffing 
arrangements for the 
enforcement of housing 
standards and DFGs with 
other local authorities to 
assist in improving existing 
arrangements and identify 
new opportunities to deliver 
value for money. 

4 Housing Strategy 
& Delivery 
Manager/Policy 
and Performance 
Manager 

31/10/2016 31/10/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 Implemented. The need for an 
additional housing surveyor has 
been approved and recruitment is 
underway. 

Housing 
Standards 

Training and guidance should 
be provided to managers on 
their responsibilities for 
appropriately identifying, 
assessing and managing 
risks within their service area.   

2 Development 
Strategy & 
Housing Manager 

30/04/2016 30/04/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 Training has been provided. 

  

 

 Page 25 

 

P
age 194



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Housing 
Standards 

a) The objectives/priorities 
and performance targets that 
relate to enforcement of 
housing standards and DFGs 
should be included or cross-
referenced to the 2015/16 
Development Strategy  
Service Plan in order to 
monitor and evaluate delivery 
of these. b) Arrangements 
should be made to link 
personal objectives to service 
objectives and these should 
be monitored and evaluated 
as part of the staff appraisal 
process. c) Details of the 
review and approval of the 
2015/16 Development 
Strategy Service Plan and 
Housing Standards Team's 
plan should be formally 
documented. d) Details of the 
2015/16 Development 
Strategy Service Plan should 
be communicated for staff to 
access and understand. e) 
Training and guidance should 
be provided to managers on 
the purpose of the service 
plan and their responsibilities 
for establishing a mechanism 
to check and to formally 
document the monitoring, 
evaluation and reporting the 
delivery of service 
objectives/actions. 

2 a)Development 
Strategy & 
Housing Manager 
b)Housing 
Strategy & 
Delivery Manager 
c)Development 
Strategy & 
Housing Manager 
d)Development 
Strategy & 
Housing Manager 
e)Assistant 
Director & 
Development 
Strategy & 
Housing Manager 

31/12/2016 31/12/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 This recommendation is now 
complete - included in Service Plan 

  

 

 Page 26 

 

P
age 195



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Housing 
Standards 

Arrangements should be 
introduced for monitoring and 
reporting compliance and 
non-compliance with the 
Enforcement policy and 
DFGs policy. Arrangements 
for non-compliance should be 
clearly defined and 
documented in each policy. A 
timescale should be set for 
documenting and 
implementing these 
arrangements. 

1 Housing Strategy 
& Delivery 
Manager 

31/01/2017 31/01/2017 Closed 14/03/2017 Individual targets are monitored 
through the appraisal process and 
are now linked to team 
plans/objectives. 

Housing 
Standards 

The scheme of delegation for 
enforcement officers should 
be reviewed, updated and 
authorised by relevant 
officers including the Legal 
department to reflect the 
most up-to-date legislation 
and to ensure they are 
correctly specified. b) A 
timescale should be set for 
the review and update of the 
schemes of delegation 
including the relevant sign-off 
arrangements. 

1 Housing Strategy 
& Delivery 
Manager 

30/04/2016 30/04/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 This recommendation has been 
implemented.  

Leisure 
Services 

All responsibilities under the 
contract should be formally 
assigned and documented 
and objectives and measures 
of success are 
communicated through 
annual appraisals. The 
Director / Assistant Director 
should establish 
arrangements to be assured 
that all aspects of contract 
activity and monitoring are 
being undertaken in 
accordance with 
organisational requirements. 

2 Assistant Director 
Neighbourhood 
Services 

01/11/2016 01/11/2016 Closed 22/03/2017 Implemented 

 

 Page 27 

 

P
age 196



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Leisure 
Services 

To further strengthen the new 
Leisure Partnership risk 
management process, 
management should formally 
consider the key risks that 
SLDC faces with respect to 
the Leisure Partnership to 
inform the Community and 
Leisure Services Plan and 
the corporate risk 
management process. 

2 Director People 
and Places 

01/11/2016 01/11/2016 Closed 22/03/2017 Completed 

Leisure 
Services 

Arrangement should be in 
place to obtain regular 
documented assurances that 
the provider has the required 
level of insurance cover in 
place during the life of the 
contract. Arrangements 
should be introduced for the 
Council to receive periodic 
assurances that the Leisure 
Partner complies with all 
legislative requirements set 
out in the Leisure 
Partnership. 

1 Community and 
Leisure Manager 

31/08/2016 31/08/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 Insurances are checked annually 
with the client. The extant certificates 
have been provided as evidence that 
currently there is insurance in place. 

Leisure 
Services 

Procedures for the monitoring 
of the Leisure Partnership 
contract should be 
documented, and aligned 
with the Council's contract 
monitoring policy and 
procedure, financial and 
contract procedure rules and 
other relevant internal 
regulations. 

2 Community and 
Leisure Manager 

31/12/2016 31/12/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 This is being done through the 
Partnership Board. 

Leisure 
Services 

A deadline for receipt of the 
delivery plan for future years 
should be agreed with the 
Leisure Partner and 
arrangements introduced to 
ensure that this is received by 
the due date. 

1 Community and 
Leisure Manager 

31/08/2016 31/08/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 The plan has been finalised. 

 

 Page 28 

 

P
age 197



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Leisure 
Services 

To strengthen SLDC's 
performance monitoring of  
'Wellbeing' related services, 
higher level and operational 
indicators addressing the 
themes set out in the 
Partnership Agreement, 
should be fully developed and 
reported through the 
quarterly contract 
management meetings. The 
Council should ensure that 
the performance indicators 
and targets are translated 
into work tasks and targets 
throughout the organisation. 

2 Operational 
Indicators / 
targets: 
Community and 
Leisure Manager 
NCL Contract 
manager to 
ensure reflection 
of targets in 
organisations 
work 
programmes. 
Higher level 
outcomes: 
Community and 
Leisure Manager, 
Assistant Director 
Neighbourhood 
Services 

31/05/2017 31/05/2017 Closed 29/03/2017 Management are currently satisfied 
with the accuracy of reporting by 
NCL. 

Leisure 
Services 

Management should formally 
document the risk 
assessment that supports the 
decision not to undertake 
independent verification of 
the performance information 
provided by the Leisure 
Partner.  The risk 
assessment should follow the 
Council's risk management 
process, and should include 
input from relevant 
professionals such as Legal 
Services to ensure that the 
Council is not exposed to 
unacceptable contract-
related risks. 

2 Risk 
documentation: 
Director People 
and Places 
Verification: 
Community and 
Leisure Manager 

30/10/2016 30/10/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 This is reported through the 
Partnership Board 

  

 

 Page 29 

 

P
age 198



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review 2016/17 
 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 
Officer 

Due 
Date 

Revised  
Due Date 

Status Last 
Update 

Latest Response 

Leisure 
Services 

Regular contract 
management meetings 
between the lead officers 
should be held as per the risk 
mitigation identified on the 
Partnership risk register.  To 
ensure there is transparency 
and an accurate record of 
decisions taken, 
Management should review 
procedures for the 
administration of meetings to 
ensure that agendas pick up 
all outstanding actions and 
minutes fully record: When an 
action is required, who is 
required to resolve the action, 
what is required from the 
action 

2 Community 
Leisure Manager / 
NCL Contract 
Manager 

31/12/2016 31/12/2016 Closed 29/03/2017 Monthly meetings now taking place 

Homelessness
(Social 
Lettings)Sche
me 

Procedures should be 
established to ensure that 
each property with an 
established tenancy has an 
expected date in which the 
landlord will take possession 
and onward responsibility for 
the tenancy. Also, the current 
arrangements for assisting 
clients to move onward to 
alternative accommodation 
should be reviewed and a 
procedure documented for 
action. 

1 Principal Housing 
Solutions & 
Homelessness 
Officer 

31/10/2016 31/10/2016 No 
Longer 

Appropri
ate 

14/03/2017 Accepted as superseded at last 
Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

--------------- 

 

 Page 30 

 

P
age 199



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 200



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

20
th

 April 2017 

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 2017-18 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources 
and Section 151 Officer 

REPORT AUTHORS: Peter Harrison - Internal Audit Manager (Director, 
TIAA Limited) 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

KEY DECISION NO: Not applicable 

  

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1. Internal Audit is required, under the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS), to prepare an annual risk based audit plan for approval by 
the Audit Committee.  

2.0  RECOMMENDATION  

2.1  It is recommended that the Audit Committee:  

(1) Approves the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017-18 which is attached at 
Appendix 1.  

3.0  BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS  

3.1  The Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors describes internal auditing as “an 
independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve an organisation’s operations. Internal audit helps the 
Council to achieve its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of risk management, 
control and governance processes.”  

3.2.  The Accounts and Audit Regulations requires the Council to undertake an 
adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its 
system of internal control in accordance with proper practices in relation to 
internal control. Proper Practices are now defined within the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which became mandatory for all UK public 
sector internal auditors from 1st April 2013.  

3.3.  The PSIAS affirm the need for annual risk based audit plans to be developed 
in order that the Head of Internal Audit can form an annual opinion on the 
Council’s systems of risk management, governance and internal control.  

Page 201

Item No.13



3.4  The draft Internal Audit Annual Plan attached at Appendix 1 has been 
prepared following review of corporate documents including the Council’s 
Corporate Risk Register, corporate plans and recent internal audit coverage. 
There has also been consultation with the Council’s senior management 
team, whose input has helped to determine those areas where it is considered 
that Internal Audit can add the greatest value.  

4.0  INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE DELIVERY  

4.1  The PSIAS require that the Internal Audit plan sets out a high level statement 
of how the Internal Audit Service will be delivered and developed in 
accordance with the internal audit charter and how it links to the 
organisational objectives and priorities.  

4.2.  Internal Audit for South Lakeland District Council is delivered by TIAA Limited 
under a contractual arrangement for three years commencing 1st April 2016.  

4.3.  Internal Audit supports the delivery of the Council Priorities as set out in the 
Council Plan by providing independent assurance over the arrangements in 
place across the Council to deliver priorities and objectives.    

4.4.  It is a requirement of the PSIAS that the Council has an Internal Audit Charter 
which has been approved by senior management and the Audit Committee. 
The Charter, approved by the Committee at its meeting in July 2017, sets out 
the arrangements for the delivery of the Internal Audit service to South 
Lakeland District Council (the Council).    

5.0  ROLES OF MANAGEMENT AND OF INTERNAL AUDIT  

5.1  It is the role of management to establish effective systems of governance, risk 

management and internal controls in order to:  

 safeguard the Council’s resources and prevent fraud;  

 ensure the completeness and reliability of records;  

 monitor adherence to laws, regulations, policies and procedures;  

 promote operational efficiency demonstrate the achievement of value 

for money; and  

 manage risk.  

5.2  It is the responsibility of management to establish the checks and balances 
needed to confirm that their systems are working effectively, that all 
information within them is accurate, that they are free from fraud or error.  

5.3  Internal audit’s role is to provide assurance that management are undertaking 
the appropriate checks over their systems to confirm that they are working 
effectively.  It is not the role of internal audit to re-perform management’s 
checks or to undertake such checking on management’s behalf.    

Page 202



5.4  In order to safeguard its independence, Internal Audit does not have any 
operational responsibilities and is not responsible for any of the decision 
making, policy setting or monitoring of compliance within the Council.     

6.0  INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES   

6.1  The Director of Resources (S151 Officer) has contracted with TIAA Limited to 
deliver 190 days of Internal Audit time in 2017-18. This is deemed a sufficient 
number of audit days in which to provide an opinion on the systems of 
governance, risk and internal control in line with the PSIAS and in order to 
support the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement.  

6.2  The PSIAS also reflect the requirement for internal audit plans to be flexible in 
order to respond to new and emerging risks to the organisation. The Plan will 
be subject to regular review to ensure it remains appropriate and may be 
subject to revision. In this event, revisions would be considered and agreed by 
the Assistant Director of Resources and reported to the Audit Committee, 
including the need for any additional audit resources if appropriate. Any 
request for significant consulting activity by Internal Audit would be approved 
by the Audit Committee in line with the requirements of the PSIAS.  

7.0  CATEGORIES OF INTERNAL AUDIT WORK  

7.1  Corporate Reviews – these are reviews which are strategic in nature or which 
cut across the entire Council. These reviews are designed to provide 
assurance that the Council has effective governance and risk management 
arrangements to mitigate strategic risks.  

7.2  Departmental Risk-Based Audit Reviews – these reviews have been identified 
in consultation with senior management and following review of corporate 
plans and the Corporate Risk Register. These reviews are spread across 
service areas following a risk assessment to ensure that Internal Audit 
resources are targeted at the areas where the greatest benefit will be 
achieved.   

7.3  Financial System Reviews – A three-year programme has been devised which 
will ensure that each main financial system is reviewed in depth at least once 
every three years.    

7.4  Governance System Reviews – a provision is included for cyclical reviews of 
key governance systems.  

7.5  Computer Audit – the Plan includes provision for computer audit work which 
will provide assurance over the technical controls in place for key IT systems 
and processes.  

7.6  Audit Management, Advice and Guidance – capacity has been built into the 
Plan for audit management, planning and reporting. This also includes some 
provision for formal advice and guidance to all services across the Council.    

7.7  The follow up of previous audit requirements is a key requirement of the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards to provide assurance on the successful 

Page 203



implementation of agreed recommendations. Where an audit has received a 
lower level assurance rating (i.e. partial or limited assurance) in the previous 
year, Internal Audit will now undertake a formal follow up of the management 
actions which have been undertaken to address the agreed audit 
recommendations; this will include formal interviewing, audit testing and 
reporting to provide senior officers and members with the required 
independent assurance that key areas for improvement address have been 
addressed.     

8.0  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

8.1  The production of a risk based audit plan is a key requirement of the PSIAS. 
There are no alternative options.  

9.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES  

9.1  Internal Audit supports the delivery of the Council Priorities as set out in the 
Council Plan by providing independent assurance over the arrangements in 
place across the Council to deliver priorities and objectives.  

10.0  IMPLICATIONS  

10.1  Financial and Resources  

10.1.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report. The Audit   

10.2  Human Resources  

10.2.1 There are no direct staffing implications arising from this report.  

10.3  Legal  

10.3.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.  

10.4  Health, Social, Economic and Environmental. 

10.4.1 Have you completed and Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?  

Yes ☐ No ☒  

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your 
reasons.  

This proposal is considered to be neutral in terms of Health, Social, Economic 
and Environmental impacts.  

10.5  Equality and Diversity.  

10.5.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  

Yes ☐ No ☒  

Page 204



If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your 
reasons.  

This proposal is considered to be neutral in terms of Equality and Diversity 
impacts.  

10.6  Risk  

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Internal Audit coverage 

does not address the high 

risk areas of Council 

activity.   

Internal Audit coverage 

does not address the 

high risk areas of Council 

activity.   

Non-delivery of the agreed 

Audit Plan.  Unplanned 

work which arises in year 

which requires audit 

attention. 

The Council would be more 

vulnerable to risk. 

The Council does not 

receive adequate 

assurance over the 

internal control 

environment.   

Potential breach of the 

statutory requirement to 

maintain an adequate and 

effective system of internal 

control.   

Risk based annual audit 

planning.  

Regular progress reporting 

to senior management and 

Audit Committee each 

quarter.  

A degree of flexibility in the 

Plan to accommodate 

unplanned work. 

 

CONTACT OFFICER 

Report Author:  Peter Harrison  

TIAA Limited  

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix 

No. 
 

1 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017-18 

 

 

 

Page 205



TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 

Director 

Portfolio 

Holder 

Solicitor to the 

Council 

SMT Scrutiny 

Committee 

01/04/2017 n/a n/a  30/03/2017 n/a 

Executive 

(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 

Officer 

Monitoring 

Officer 

n/a 20/04/2017 n/a 01/04/2017 06/03/2017 

Human 

Resource 

Services 

Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 

Councillor(s) 

 

    

n/a n/a n/a   

 

 

Page 206



Internal Audit 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 

2017/18 

March 2017 DRAFT
 

Appendix 1

P
age 207



 

Test Organisation 

Audit Strategic Plan and Annual Plan 2017/18 
 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 

INTRODUCTION 

This Annual Plan is drawn up in accordance with the Terms of Reference of 
TIAA and the Internal Audit Strategic Plan.  

AUDIT STRATEGY METHODOLOGY 

We adopt a risk based approach to determining your audit needs each year 
which includes reviewing your risk register and risk management framework, 
previous internal audit work, the regulatory framework and assessment of 
South Lakeland District Council, external audit recommendations together 
with key corporate documentation such as your business and corporate plan, 
standing orders, and financial regulations. The Strategy will be based 
predominantly on our understanding of the inherent risks facing South 
Lakeland District Council and those within the sector and has been developed 
with senior management and Committee. 

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 

The Annual Plan (Annex A) sets out the reviews that will be carried out, the 
planned times and the scopes for each of these reviews. Annex B sets out the 
rolling programme of key financial and governance audits that are carried out 
on a three year cycle. The plan will be subject to ongoing review and could 
change as the risks change for the organisation and will be formally reviewed 
with senior management and the Audit Committee mid-way through the 
financial year or should a significant issue arise. 

The planned time set out in the Annual Plan for the individual reviews includes: 
research, preparation and issue of terms of reference, production and review 
of working papers and reports and site work. The timings shown in the Annual 
Plan assume that the expected controls will be in place.  

Substantive testing will only be carried out where a review assesses the 
internal controls to be providing ‘limited’ or ‘no’ assurance with the prior 

approval of South Lakeland District Council and additional time will be 
required to carry out such testing. South Lakeland District Council is 
responsible for taking appropriate action to establish whether any loss or 
impropriety has arisen as a result of the control weaknesses. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 

It is the responsibility of the Audit Committee to determine that the number of 
audit days to be provided and the planned audit coverage are sufficient to 
meet the Committee’s requirements and the areas selected for review are 
appropriate to provide assurance against the key risks within the organisation. 

REPORTING 

Assignment Reports: A separate report will be prepared for each review 
carried out. Each report will be prepared in accordance with the arrangements 
contained in the Terms of Reference agreed with TIAA and which accord with 
the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  

Progress Reports: Progress reports will be prepared for each Audit 
Committee meeting. Each report will detail progress achieved to date against 
the agreed annual plan. 

Annual Report: An Annual Report will be prepared for each year in 
accordance with the requirements set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS). The Annual Report will include our opinion of the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of South Lakeland District Council’s governance, 
risk management and operational control processes. 

SATISFACTION QUESTIONNAIRES 

A satisfaction questionnaire will be issued with each draft report to comply with 
our ISO requirements. An annual client satisfaction survey will also be issued 
with the annual report with the feedback received from these survey(s) being 
used to develop staff and the service we provide.   

 

 Page 1 
 

P
age 208



 

Test Organisation 

Audit Strategic Plan and Annual Plan 2017/18 
 

 

LIAISON WITH THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR  

We will liaise with South Lakeland District Council’s External Auditor. Any 
matters in the areas included in the Annual Plan that are identified by the 
external auditor in their audit management letters will be included in the scope 
of the appropriate review. 

ASSURANCE RATINGS 

For each assurance review an assessment of the combined effectiveness of 
the controls in mitigating the key control risks will be provided. The assurance 
rating process is set out in Annex C. 

AUDIT REMIT 

The Audit Remit (Annex D) formally defines internal audit’s purpose, authority 
and responsibility. It establishes internal audit’s position within South Lakeland 
District Council and defines the scope of internal audit activities and ensures 
compliance with the PSIAS. 

PERFORMANCE 

The following Performance Targets will be used to measure the performance 
of internal audit in delivering the Annual Plan: 

 

Area Performance Measure Target 

Achievement of the plan 

Completion of planned audits. 100% 

Audits completed within time 
allocation. 

100% 

Reports Issued 

Draft report issued within 10 
working days of exit meeting. 

  95% 

Final report issued within 10 
working days of receipt of 
responses. 

  95% 

Professional Standards Compliance with Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. 

100% 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

We are not aware of any conflicts of interest and should any arise we will 
manage them in line with PSIAS requirements, the South Lakeland District 
Council’s requirements and TIAA’s internal policies. 

KEY CONTACT INFORMATION 

Name Contact Details 

Peter Harrison 
Director 

peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk 
07970 376542 

Jane Butterfield 
Business Assurance Manager 

jane.butterfield@tiaa.co.uk 
07580 164521 

LIMITATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY 

Internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
against misstatement or loss. The limitations on assurance include the 
possibility of one or more of the following situations, control activities being 
circumvented by the collusion of two or more persons, human error, or the 
overriding of controls by management. Additionally, no assurance can be 
provided that the internal controls will continue to operate effectively in future 
periods or that the controls will be adequate to mitigate all significant risks that 
may arise in future.  

The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with 
management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon 
to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal 
audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity, 
should there be any, although the audit procedures have been designed so 
that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even 
sound systems of internal control may not be proof against collusive fraud. 

 Page 2 
 

P
age 209



 

Test Organisation 

Audit Strategic Plan and Annual Plan 2017/18 
 

Reliance will be placed on management to provide internal audit with full 
access to staff and to accounting records and transactions and to ensure the 
authenticity of these documents. 

The matters raised in the audit reports will be only those that come to the 
attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit reviews and are 
not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist 
or all the improvements that might be made. The audit reports are prepared 
solely for management's use and are not prepared for any other purpose. 

RELEASE OF REPORT 

The table below sets out the history of this plan. 

Date plan issued: 29th March 2017 

 Page 3 
 

P
age 210



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017/18 
 
 
 
 

 

Annex A 
 
 

Annual Plan – 2017/18 
 

 
Department Review Type Days Rationale 

Corporate 
Cross-cutting 

Performance Monitoring Assurance 10 The review will consider the arrangements in place for measuring and 
reporting performance across the Council. This will include the reporting 
of KPIs, delivery of Service Plans and delivery of the Council Plan. 

Corporate 
Cross-cutting 
 

Compliance with the Local Code of 
Corporate Governance 

Compliance 10 The review will assess compliance with selected elements of the Local 
Code of Corporate Governance to assess the extent the Council can 
demonstrate that it complies.  
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key 
governance audits. 

Corporate 
Cross-cutting 
 

Awarding of Grants Assurance 10 The importance of ensuring that the awarding of grants aligns with council 
priorities, are supported by a robust business case and do not breach any 
rules on state aid is illustrated by recent events involving Bolton 
Metropolitan Borough Council. The review will consider the process for 
authorising and awarding grants, including the gate-keeping processes 
that ensure the awarding of grants does not breach any rules.     

Policy and Performance ICT Disaster Recovery Assurance 5 Organisations are increasingly reliant on ICT systems for everyday 
operations and service delivery. The review will consider the 
arrangements in place to deal with a loss of service and how the restoring 
of service is to be managed. 

Resources Payroll  Assurance 15 Payroll represents a significant expenditure stream for the Council. The 
review will include travel and subsistence claims and the treatment of 
contractors/consultants in light of recent changes in IR35 requirements.  
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system 
audits.  

  

 Page 4 
 

P
age 211



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017/18 
 

Resources Creditor Payments Assurance 10 The review will assess the arrangements in place for processing creditor 
payments, including the process of authorisation and the measures in 
place to guard against internal and external fraud. 
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system 
audits. 

Resources Council Tax Assurance 20 Council Tax represents a significant source of revenue for the Council. 
The review will look at the end-to-end process covering setting, discounts, 
billing, income collection, recovery action, write-offs and reporting.  
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system 
audits. 

Resources Insurance Assurance 10 South Lakeland District Council is required to have appropriate levels of 
insurance cover in place to mitigate against insurable risks, or has 
explicitly determined those areas where it does not consider it needs 
cover. The review will look at the process of procuring insurance cover 
and the levels required, as well as how it handles insurance claims and 
takes mitigating actions to reduce the likelihood of insurance claims 
arising.  
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system 
audits. 

Neighbourhood Services Asset Management Assurance 10 The objective of the audit is to seek assurance that controls and 
procedures are effective and ensure that all land and property assets are 
identified and recorded, valuations are made in accordance with 
Accounting Standards and that the accounts accurately reflect the value 
of identified assets.  
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system 
audits. 

Neighbourhood Services Lake Services – Moorings and 
Encroachments 

Assurance 10 Moorings and encroachments represent a valuable income stream for the 
Council. The review will consider the process in place for setting fees and 
charges, service provision, enforcement and income collection.  

Neighbourhood Services Licensing – Premises and Clubs Assurance 10 The review will cover: dealing with applications and renewals; whether 
activities are appropriately licensed in accordance with relevant 
legislation; whether licensed activities are monitored to ensure compliance 
with appropriate conditions; that enforcement action is undertaken as 
necessary and in accordance with relevant legislation and/or best practice 
guidance; and that accurate and appropriate records are maintained. 

This review will provide assurance in one of the key areas of compliance 
that the Audit Committee requested coverage.  

 Page 5 
 

P
age 212



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017/18 
 

Strategic Development Development Control Assurance 20 The review will consider the arrangements in place to ensure that its 
planning function meets its service and enforcement obligations. This 
review will also consider the transition of planning responsibility following 
the expansion of the national parks.  
This review will provide assurance in one of the key areas of compliance 
that the Audit Committee requested coverage. 

Strategic Development Building Control Assurance 20 The review will consider the arrangements in place to ensure that its 
building control function meets its service and enforcement obligations. 
This review will also consider the transition of planning responsibility 
following the expansion of the national parks.  
This review will provide assurance in one of the key areas of compliance 
that the Audit Committee requested coverage. 

 Follow Up Follow Up 10 The review will provide an independent update on the implementation of 
internal audit recommendations and their current status. Follow up work 
will be on-going throughout the year and incorporate the 
recommendations made by the previous internal audit provider.  

 Audit Management  20 This includes overall contract management, attendance at Audit 
Committee, planning and reporting, including the Internal Audit Annual 
Report and opinion for 2016/17.  

It also includes attendance at SMT and other groups/forums as required, 
ad-hoc management advice and support relating to risk, internal control 
and governance.   

  Total days 190  

   

 

  

 Page 6 
 

P
age 213



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017/18 
 

 
Annex B 

Three year rolling programme of main financial and governance systems 
 
 

Review Area 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Payroll    

Creditors    

Council Tax    

Performance Management    

Asset Management    

Insurances    

Corporate Governance – Compliance with Local Code    

Budgetary Control    

Treasury Management    

Housing Benefits    

Information Management including FoI and Transparency    

Procurement    

Debtors    

Cash Receipting    

NNDR    

Risk Management    

Income Management – Car Parking    

Contract Management    

Main Accounting System    

 

 Page 7 
 

P
age 214



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017/18 
 

 
Annex C  

Providing Assurance 
 
 

Corporate assurance risks 

We consider four corporate assurance risks; directed; compliance; operational 
and reputational. The outcomes of our work on these corporate assurance risks 
informs both the individual assignment assurance assessment and also the 
annual assurance opinion statement. Detailed explanations of these assurance 
assessments are set out in full in each audit report. 

Assurance assessment gradings 

We use four levels of assurance assessment: substantial; reasonable, limited 
and no. Detailed explanations of these assurance assessments are set out in 
full in each audit report. 

Types of audit review 

The Annual Plan includes a range of types of audit review. The different types 
of review focus on one or more of the corporate assurance risks. This approach 
enables more in-depth work to be carried out in the individual assignments than 
would be possible if all four assurance risks were considered in every review. 
The suite of audit reviews and how they individually and collectively enable us 
to inform our overall opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
governance, risk and control arrangements is set out in the assurance mapping 
diagram. 

 
 

 

 

 Page 8 
 

P
age 215



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017/18 
 

Annex D 

Audit Remit 
 

Role 

The main objective of the internal audit activity carried out by TIAA is to provide, in 
an economical, efficient and timely manner, an objective evaluation of, and opinion 
on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the South Lakeland District Council's 
framework of governance, risk management and control. TIAA is responsible for 
giving assurance to South Lakeland District Council's “Governing Body” (being the 
body with overall responsibility for the organisation) on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of South Lakeland District Council’s risk management, control and 
governance processes. 

Scope 

All South Lakeland District Council's activities fall within the remit of TIAA. TIAA may 
consider the adequacy of controls necessary to secure propriety, economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in all areas. It will seek to confirm that South Lakeland 
District Council’s management has taken the necessary steps to achieve these 
objectives and manage the associated risks. It is not within the remit of TIAA to 
question the appropriateness of policy decisions. However, TIAA is required to 
examine the arrangements by which such decisions are made, monitored and 
reviewed. 

TIAA may also conduct any special reviews requested by the board, audit 
committee or the nominated officer (being the post responsible for the day to day 
liaison with the TIAA), provided such reviews do not compromise the audit service’s 
objectivity or independence, or the achievement of the approved audit plan. 

Standards and Approach 

TIAA's work will be performed with due professional care, in accordance with the 
requirements of the PSIAS. 

Access 

TIAA has unrestricted access to all documents, records, assets, personnel and 
premises of South Lakeland District Council and is authorised to obtain such 
information and explanations as they consider necessary to form their opinion. The 
collection of data for this purpose will be carried out in a manner prescribed by 

TIAA’s professional standards, Information Security and Information Governance 
policies. 
 

Independence 

TIAA has no executive role, nor does it have any responsibility for the development, 
implementation or operation of systems. However, it may provide independent and 
objective advice on risk management, control, governance processes and related 
matters, subject to resource constraints. For day to day administrative purposes 
only, TIAA reports to a nominated officer within South Lakeland District Council and 
the reporting arrangements must take account of the nature of audit work 
undertaken. TIAA has a right of direct access to the chair of the board, the chair of 
the audit committee and the responsible accounting officer (being the post charged 
with financial responsibility). 

To preserve the objectivity and impartiality of TIAA’s professional judgement, 
responsibility for implementing audit recommendations rests with South Lakeland 
District Council’s management. 

Consultancy activities are only undertaken with distinct regard for potential conflict 
of interest. In this role we will act in an advisory capacity and the nature and scope 
of the work will be agreed in advance and strictly adhered to.  

Irregularities, Including Fraud and Corruption 

TIAA will without delay report to the appropriate regulator, serious weaknesses, 
significant fraud, major accounting and other breakdowns subject to the 
requirements of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2003. 

TIAA will be informed when evidence of potential irregularity, including fraud, 
corruption or any impropriety, is discovered so that TIAA can consider the adequacy 
of the relevant controls, evaluate the implication of the fraud on the risk 
management, control and governance processes and consider making 
recommendations as appropriate. The role of TIAA is not to investigate the 
irregularity unless commissioned to do so. 

 Page 9 
 

P
age 216



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 20 April 2017 

Annual Governance Statement and review of 
effectiveness of the Local Code of Governance 

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable 

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources 
and Section 151 Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Pete Notley - Chief Accountant 

WARDS: Corporate Issue 

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 The expected outcome is that:  

 Audit Committee are assured over the process of preparing the Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) and  

 that Audit Committee have the opportunity to challenge the statement and 
proposed action plan  

This is prior to the draft statement being signed by the Leader and Chief 
Executive and publication along-side the draft 2016/17 statement of accounts 
by 31/5/2017.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 

(1)  Consider the draft Annual Governance Statement (Appendix 2) and 
the draft Action Plan (Appendix 3) and suggest any amendments. 

3 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 
 

3.1 Local authorities should have in place an effective system of internal control 
(SIC). For South Lakeland District Council, the key features of the SIC are 
described within the Local Code of Governance.  

3.2 Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015), the Council is required to 
review the effectiveness of the SIC annually and to report this through an 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS). This is done alongside the statement 
of accounts and must be prepared in accordance with proper practices.  

3.3 CIPFA have recently published a revised version of their governance 
framework for local authorities, ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government: Framework (2016)’. This counts as proper practice and is to be 
applied for financial years from 1/4/2016 onwards. This has slightly re-
arranged the previous framework moving from 6 principles to 7. This is in line 
with CIPFA’s broader International Framework: Good Governance in the 

Page 217

Item No.14



Public Sector (2014). The underlying content of the new framework is broadly 
similar to the previous version although there are some amendments.  

3.4 The provisions of CIPFA’s new framework have been reviewed with 
amendments made to the Local Code of Governance. These were presented 
to Audit Committee on 1 December 2016 with the amendments to the Local 
Code approved by Council on 15 December 2016.  

ANNUAL REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS  

3.5 Similar to the previous framework, CIPFA have issued detailed guidance 
which includes specific examples around how each principle might be 
implemented. This best practice framework has been used to help review the 
effectiveness of the Local Code.  

3.6 Similar to the previous framework, a self-assessment exercise has been 
completed by Officers with a proposed action plan to address any areas 
where there may be scope for potential improvements. The outcome of this 
review and any other relevant sources of evidence (e.g. the internal audit 
annual opinion) is set out in the Annual Governance Statement. This is to be 
published as part of the Statement of Accounts. The self-assessment has not 
resulted in any significant governance issues, but a number of areas where 
there is an opportunity for improvement have been identified. The detailed 
results of this review is included at Appendix 1. 

3.7 In prior years a sub group of Audit Committee Members have met between 
the April and July meetings to review the AGS. Given the change to the 
accounts timescales the draft AGS is now to be included on the April Audit 
Committee agenda. This still gives time for the Committee to review the AGS 
and supporting documents and to propose amendments prior to the draft 
statement being signed by the Leader and Chief Executive. The draft AGS is 
to be published alongside the statement of accounts by 31/5/2017. The final 
AGS will be brought back for approval by Audit Committee in July, following 
external audit of the accounts. 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

3.8 Alongside changes to the principles of good governance, CIPFA has also 
amended its guidance around preparation of the AGS. The expectation is now 
that the AGS is strategic and focuses on the review of effectiveness. A 
detailed description of governance arrangements is not required. Instead, the 
AGS should cross refer to the Local Code of Governance. 

3.9 The AGS should include a confirmation that the governance arrangements are 
fit for purpose and should also note any changes to the action plan, including 
new actions and updates on existing actions. The requirement for sign off by 
the Leader and Chief Executive is still in place.  

3.10 As a result of these changes to guidance, the AGS is now much reduced in 
size, contains only the key messages and cross refers to the recently 
reviewed Local Code, where appropriate. 

3.11 The Audit Committee has a key role to play in terms of: 

 Reviewing the method of preparation and how the conclusions have 
been arrived at. 

Page 218



 Assessing the conclusions against their knowledge of the authority to 
give assurance that the action plan is both complete and reasonable. 

 Reviewing the wording and format of the statement 

3.12 The draft AGS is presented at Appendix 2. The draft action plan is presented 
at Appendix 3. 

 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Officers have reviewed the existing Local Code of Governance and the new 
CIPFA LASAAC. Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 
Framework (2016). Officers from Policy and Performance, Legal and 
Democratic Services, Finance, Internal Audit, External Audit and SMT have all 
been consulted as part of preparing the draft AGS. 

 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The Council has a statutory duty to publish an AGS. The Committee can 
challenge and propose amendments, however it should ensure that any 
amendments comply with best practice and the legislative framework. 

 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The system of internal control as described in the Local Code underpins the 
achievement of all Council priorities. 

 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 This report has no direct financial implications 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no direct human resources implications of this report. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 There are no direct legal implications of this report other than adherence to 
the statutory deadline for publication of an Annual Governance Statement, in 
line with the Accounts and Audit regulations (2015).  

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1  

Have you completed and Health, Social, Economic 
and Environmental Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is attached to the report 
in the appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, 
please explain your reasons. 

The AGS/Local Code of 
Governance has no direct HSEE 
implications. 

Page 219



 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1  

Have you completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is attached to the 
report in the appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis, please explain your reasons. 

The AGS/Local Code of Governance 
has no direct Equality and Diversity 
implications. 

 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Weaknesses identified 
in the Annual 
Governance Statement 
action plan are not 
addressed adequately. 

Non-compliance with Local 
Code of Corporate governance 
with possible loss of public 
confidence about the way the 
Council conducts its business 

Regular reporting schedule 
so that Members and senior 
officers can monitor 
progress in addressing the 
weaknesses identified. 

Local Code prepared 
that is not in line with 
proper practice 

Potential gaps in system of 
internal control 

Regular review of Local 
Code; annual review of 
effectiveness based on 
CIPFA framework 

AGS not prepared in 
tandem with statement 
of accounts; AGS not 
ready for publication in 
line with statutory 
deadlines. 

Possible loss of public 
confidence about the way the 
Council conducts its business 

Effective planning of AGS 
work and review of both 
deadlines and method of 
preparation in line with early 
closure of the accounts. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Pete Notley, Chief Accountant, ext 3157, p.notley@southlakeland.gov.uk 
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, ext 3147, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT  

Appendix No.  

1 Local Code of Governance 2016/17 detailed review of 
effectiveness  

2 Draft Annual Governance Statement 2016/17 

3 AGS Action Plan 2016/17 

Page 220

mailto:p.notley@southlakeland.gov.uk


 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

International Framework: Good Governance in 
the Public Sector IFAC/CIPFA 

http://tinyurl.com/lvqtdx2 

Review of Local Code of Governance, Council 
15 December 2016 

http://tinyurl.com/hnnwya5 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

30/3/17 n/a 30/3/17 30/3/17 n/a 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

n/a 20/4/2017 n/a 30/3/17 30/3/17 

Human Resource Services 
Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

n/a n/a n/a  

 

Page 221

http://tinyurl.com/lvqtdx2
http://tinyurl.com/hnnwya5


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 222



Appendix 1

Local Code Provision
Responsible 

Officer
Comments

Self assessment 

level (1 to 4)
Action Plan

1.    make a Chief Executive (or equivalent) responsible and 

accountable to the authority for all aspects of operational 

management;

Council 

constitution
In place 4 N/A

2.    make a senior officer (the Section 151 Officer) responsible to the 

authority for ensuring that appropriate advice is given on all financial 

matters, for keeping proper financial records and accounts, and for 

maintaining an effective system of internal financial control;

Council 

constitution
In place 4 N/A

3.    appoint a professionally qualified and experienced Chief Finance 

Officer (Section 151 Officer), who will lead the promotion and delivery 

of good financial management, safeguarding public money and 

ensuring appropriate, economic, efficient and effective use of funds; 

together with professional accountability for finance staff throughout 

the Council;

Council 

constitution
In place 4 N/A

4.    make a senior officer (the Monitoring Officer) responsible to the 

authority for ensuring that agreed procedures are followed and that all 

applicable statutes, regulations and other relevant statements of good 

practice are complied with.

Council 

constitution
In place 4 N/A

5.    develop and maintain shared values including leadership values 

both for the Council and its staff reflecting public expectations about 

the conduct and behaviour of individuals and groups within and 

associated with the Council;

Council 

constitution

In place. Section 5 of the constitution sets out general principles of 

conduct based on the 7 Nolan Principles of public life. Behaviour 

monitored through standards committee/line managers. 

Expectations around behaviour included on induction check list; 

Members required to disclose interests and these are published on 

the website.

4 N/A

6.    use the Council’s shared values to act as a guide for decision 

making and as a basis for developing positive and trusting 

relationships within the Council;

Council 

constitution

The Council's values are embedded in the decision making process. 

This is ensured through the decision limits which ensure material 

decisions come through committee and are reported in a consistent, 

complete and open way in line with published timescales. There is 

also a section in the Council Plan which explicitly sets out the 

Council's values

4 N/A

7.    develop and adopt formal codes of conduct defining standards of 

personal behaviour;

Council 

constitution

In place within the constitution and reviewed through standards 

committee
4 N/A

8.    develop and maintain an effective standards committee that acts 

as the main means to raise awareness and take the lead in ensuring 

high standards of conduct are firmly embedded within the local 

culture;

Council 

constitution
In place with annual review of committee effectiveness produced. 4 N/A

The purpose of this appendix is to set out the details of the corporate self assessment against the Local Code

Principle A   Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

P
age 223



Local Code Provision
Responsible 

Officer
Comments

Self assessment 

level (1 to 4)
Action Plan

9.    put in place arrangements to ensure that members and staff of 

the Council are not influenced by prejudice, bias or conflicts of interest 

in dealing with different stakeholders and put in place appropriate 

processes to ensure that they continue to operate in practice;

Council 

constitution

Various measures in place including registers of interest, gifts and 

hospitality and committee protocols, all overseen by standards 

committee, Monitoring Officer and/or committee services. 

4 N/A

10. put in place arrangements to ensure that procedures and 

operations are designed in conformity with appropriate ethical 

standards, and to monitor their continuing compliance in practice;

Council 

constitution

Constitution includes main procedures for Council governance, 

reviewed at least annually. Expectations about how we should do 

things have been made explicit through revised Performance 

Appraisals including Personal Qualities framework, reviewed with all 

staff at least annually.

4 N/A

11. ensure that systems and processes for financial administration 

and control, protection of the Authority’s resources and assets, are 

designed in conformity with appropriate ethical standards; and are 

subject to monitoring of their effectiveness;

S McGregor

Overall, financial control is designed to achieve the aims set out in 

the CIPFA CFO statement 2016. The constitution includes explicit 

financial regs, including procurement procedures that embody 

transparent, unbiased, robust financial controls. All decisions and 

policies are subject to review against sustainability and equality 

criteria and proper accounting practices as set out in the CIPFA 

Code. Recent external audit reports on VFM and financial 

statements provide evidence that these are effective.

4 N/A

12. put in place arrangements so that conflicts of interest on behalf of 

members and employees can be avoided and put in place appropriate 

processes to ensure that they continue to operate in practice;

Council 

constitution
See 9 above 4 N/A

13. put in place effective transparent and accessible arrangements for 

dealing with complaints;
D Storr/S McVey

There is a clear system for registering complaints as set out on the 

Website. These are monitored through standards committee with a 

clear trail of improvements as a result??

4

There was a previous action plan item in relation to data 

quality around the complaints procedure; the 

improvements are judged to have been implemented.

14. actively recognise the limits of lawful activity placed on the Council 

by the ultra vires doctrine but also strive to utilise the Council’s 

powers to the full benefit of our communities;

A Lowe

Legal are consulted on all significant decisions to ensure that 

proposed actions are within the Council's powers. Legal also 

contribute pro-actively to business change initiatives, eg the recent 

ARK review which proposes setting up a company structure to 

deliver more house building in the district.

4 N/A

15. observe all specific legislative requirements placed upon the 

Council as well as the requirements of general law, and in particular 

integrate the key principles of administrative law – rationality, legality 

and natural justice into the Council’s procedures and decision making;

A Lowe

Legal are consulted on all significant decisions to ensure that 

proposed actions are within the Council's powers. This advice is 

evidenced through the committee reports templates.

4 N/A

16. put in place effective systems to protect the rights of staff. Ensure 

that policies for whistle blowing which are accessible to staff and 

those contracting with the authority, and arrangements for the support 

of whistle blowers, are in place;

A Reay/ H Smith

Comprehensive HR policies are freely available to all staff on the 

intranet. Whistleblowing policy is in place with clear guidelines for 

both employees and contractors.

4 N/A

P
age 224



Local Code Provision
Responsible 

Officer
Comments

Self assessment 

level (1 to 4)
Action Plan

17. put in place effective anti-bribery, fraud and corruption policies 

that comply with the Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud 

and Corruption (CIPFA, 2014). 

H Smith Policies in place, action plan developed to get to full implementation 3

Polices are in place although still in process of full 

implementation; existing action plan item updated for 

progress to date.

1.    develop protocols to ensure effective communication between

members and officers in their respective roles;

Council 

constitution
Explicit within constitution 4 N/A

2.    develop protocols to ensure that the leader and chief executive

negotiate their respective roles early in their relationship and that a

shared understanding of roles and objectives is maintained;

Council 

constitution
Explicit within constitution 4 N/A

3.    ensure that the Council’s vision, strategic plans, priorities and

targets are developed through robust mechanisms, and in

consultation with the local community and other key stakeholders, and

that they are clearly articulated and disseminated;

C Gould

Council plan is refreshed on an annual basis with a process for 

consulting and disseminating. Record of public consultations on the 

website. Joint strategic needs assessment done at County level with 

South Lakeland as part.  There was widespread consultation on the 

last full refresh of the Council Plan (2014). Since then the priorities 

have not changed so there has not been annual consultation on 

such a scale. It is expected that there will be wide consultation for 

the next full refresh.

4 N/A

4.    in pursuing partnerships, agree a set of values against which

decision making and actions can be judged in line with and having

referred to the Partnership Working Framework.

C Gould

The council constitution sets out expectations around values which 

extend to any partnership working. These would be subject to 

review on a partner by partner basis. There are existing corporate 

policies around partnership working but these might need review in 

terms of how relevant and applicable they are across different types 

of partner. In terms of major partnerships in terms of the AGS 

definition, there is the IT shared service, property services, grounds 

maintenance and Leisure, these are defined contractually. 

3

Review the Local Code with reference to provisions 

around partnership working (NB this rec applies to all 

subsequent local code provisions around partnerships)

5.    develop and maintain open and effective mechanisms for

documenting evidence for decisions and recording the criteria,

rationale and considerations on which decisions are based;

A Lowe

The Council uses committee report templates to ensure a full record 

of decisions is kept. These are kept under review with updates as 

and when required.

4 N/A

6.    put in place effective arrangements designed to encourage

individuals from all sections of the community to engage with,

contribute to and participate in the work of the authority;

C Gould

Have a young persons officer, with programme of work for 

consulting with younger residents, eg White Noise and Loud Mouth 

initiatives. There are existing relationship with third sector groups eg 

AGE UK, and these can be used to engage with particular groups 

eg via coffee mornings etc.

4 N/A

7.    make clear to ourselves, all staff and the community, to whom we

are accountable and for what;
C Gould

Accountabilities, delegations and aspirations are contained within 

the Council plan and Constitution. PM and JD offer bespoke support 

to ensure targets put into relevant service plans.

4 N/A

8.    consider those institutional stakeholders to whom we are

accountable and assess the effectiveness of the relationships and

any changes required;

C Gould

There is an existing list of stakeholders which is used to send out 

the Council Plan. This will be reviewed and updated to support the 

next full iteration of the Council plan.

4 N/A

Principle B Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

P
age 225



Local Code Provision
Responsible 

Officer
Comments

Self assessment 

level (1 to 4)
Action Plan

9.    establish clear channels of communication with all sections of the

community and other stakeholders and put in place monitoring

arrangements to ensure that they operate effectively;

C Gould/Richard M

Will continue to use existing channels for communication. Comms 

plans are included for major consultations eg Council Plan. 

'Customer Connect' will enhance communication with all residents.

3

The need to have a clear customer focus has been 

acknowledged corporately through the ongoing 

Customer Connect programme. A key strand of this is 

how we communicate with our communities and how this 

can be enhanced through greater or better use of 

technology. Forms part of an existing action plan item

10. put in place arrangements to enable the authority to engage with

all sections of the community effectively. These arrangements will

recognise that different sections of the community have different

priorities and establish explicit processes for dealing with these

competing demands;

C Gould

Plan that customers will have 'my account' will be able to assess 

demand management to come through customer connect. Plus use 

of existing channels. Overlaps with 9 above.

3 As for 9 above.

11. develop and maintain a clear policy on how staff and their

representatives are consulted and involved in decision making;
A Reay

Workforce Plan 2014-2019 (2015 refresh) section 9 sets out 

arrangements for employee communication.
4 N/A

12. when working in partnership, ensure that engagement and

consultation undertaken by the partnership is planned with regard to

methodology, target audience and required outcomes. Existing

mechanisms and groups will be used where appropriate. In the work

cycle of the partnership it must be clear and demonstrable to the

public what has happened to any feedback and what has changed as

a result.

C Gould

As noted at 4 above, in AGS terms there are a small number of 

material arrangements that are defined contractually, to directly 

achieve elements of the Council's own plan and service 

commitments.  The need for further engagement would be assessed 

on a contract by contract basis.

3 Captured by item at 4 above.

13. To put in place measures to ensure freedom of information 

requests and transparency requirements are adhered to, including 

publication through the Council’s website. 

C Gould

there is a clear process for managing the FOI and transparency 

process with named officers overseeing the dissemination of queries 

and responses. Moving to make more data transparent with less 

FOI.

4 N/A

14. To ensure committee decisions are fully documented through the 

use of appropriate report templates, agenda submission processes 

and minutes.

A Lowe See 5 above. 4 N/A

1.    make a clear statement of the authority’s purpose and vision and

use it as a basis for corporate and service planning and shaping the

community strategy and local area agreements;

C Gould

Council plan in place with monitoring of targets. Quality of life 

surveys completed, results reported to management and Cabinet 

and put on 'have your say' part of website. Goes to OMF for service 

plan specific items and also feeds in to some council plan targets. 

Existing channels for community planning and LAP conferences, 

CALC etc eg highways maintenance, dementia issues.

4 N/a

2.    review on a regular basis the authority’s vision for the local area

and its impact in the authority’s governance arrangements;
C Gould

Council Plan is reviewed annually, last refreshed Feb 2017. Have 

supporting sub strategies with greater detail inside policy framework, 

controls around policy framework elements and additional 

consultation on details.

4 N/a

Principle C   Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits

P
age 226



Local Code Provision
Responsible 

Officer
Comments

Self assessment 

level (1 to 4)
Action Plan

3.    when working in partnership, ensure that there is a common

vision underpinning the work of the partnership that is understood and

agreed by all partners. The vision should:

C Gould See detailed items below: 4 N/a

a.    be supported by clear and measurable objectives with targets

and indicators
C Gould

partnership working would be underpinned by clear terms of 

reference, there are no formal partnering arrangements with shared 

control of resources.

4 N/a

b.    identify quality and cost drivers for deciding what services will be

either provided or commissioned by the partnership.
C Gould

As noted above, the partnerships in AGS terms are contractually 

defined in terms of cost and deliverables.
4 N/a

4.    develop and maintain an effective scrutiny function which 

encourages constructive challenge and enhances the authority’s 

performance overall;

Council 

Constitution

In place, self assessment presented to committee 17 March 2017, 

concluded was effective. Structure of scrutiny has been reviewed 

with Psub merging into main O&S.

4 N/A

5.    produce an annual report on scrutiny function activity;
Council 

Constitution
In place, see above. 4 N/A

6.    ensure performance, financial and non-financial, is reported to 

senior management and Members. 
C Gould/P Notley

Quarterly reports on performance against council plan targets and 

corporate budget monitoring are produced and go through SMT, 

Psub(O&S), Cabinet and Council

4 N/a

7.    Link service plans to agreed measures and targets within the 

Council plan;

Management 

Team

Service plans are linked to the overall Council plan but could make 

greater reference to Social Value with a clear policy on how the 

Council will monitor delivery of Social Value.

3

Best practice would include consideration of how social 

value may be achieved through service delivery methods 

and procurement activity; achievement of social value 

should be monitored.

8.    ensure strategic investment decisions are managed through the 

capital budgeting process and Medium Term Financial Plan, including 

the economic, social and environmental impacts.

S McGregor

Authority adheres to principles of CIPFA statement on role of CFO 

in local government. Investment decisions are made through the 

budget process and/or subject to separate reporting and financial 

appraisal. Longer term strategic issues also identified within 

budget/MTFP.

4 N/a

9.    ensure committee reports are shared with senior management 

and portfolio holders as part of the pre agenda submission process.
A Lowe/SMT

In place, reports have audit trail of who has reviewed reports and 

when. 
4 N/A

1.    decide how the quality of service for users is to be measured and

ensure that the information needed to review service quality

effectively and regularly is available;

Management team

Council plan contains targets and measures of success that are 

monitored through committee. Service plans contain detailed KPIs 

linked to council plan targets, these are reviewed annually.

4 N/A

2.    decide how value for money is to be measured and ensure that

we have the information needed to review value for money and

performance effectively; Measure the environmental impact of

policies, plans and decisions;

Management team

Report templates include financial review of all decisions to include 

VFM consideration and Environmental Impact assessment. All 

spend subject to procurement rules. Regular review of activities and 

outputs through Council plan process plus review of asset usage, eg 

current LSH programme. External Audit issue a VFM opinion, 15/16 

was clean.

4 N/A

Principle D   Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

P
age 227



Local Code Provision
Responsible 

Officer
Comments

Self assessment 

level (1 to 4)
Action Plan

3.    produce timely, accurate and impartial financial information for

decision making, enabling the Authority to meet its objectives and

providing effective stewardship and value for money;

S McGregor

In place, monthly monitoring information and meeting held with 

budget holders, this is consolidated and sent to SMT, reported 

through committee on a quarterly basis. Financial information 

provided to support other business decisions on a case by case 

basis and included within committee report template.

4 N/A

4.    ensure that effective mechanisms exist to monitor service

delivery;
Management team

SMT and committee receive reports on Performance monitoring, 

corporate financial monitoring, complaints procedures, internal audit 

reviews etc.

4 N/A

5.    ensure that those making decisions are provided with information

that is fit for the purpose – relevant, timely and gives clear

explanations of technical issues and their implications;

A Lowe

Committee services manage the decision making process. Report 

templates are used to ensure information to support decision 

making is complete. All committee reports reviewed by Management 

Team and PH's to ensure clear and robust.

4 N/A

6.    produce clear, timely, complete and accurate information for

budget holders and senior officers relating to the budgetary and

financial performance of the Council;

S McGregor

Authority adheres to principles of CIPFA statement on role of CFO 

in local government. Monitoring reported to SMT on a monthly basis 

and through committee quarterly. See also 3 above.

4 N/A

7.    establish a medium term business and financial planning process 

in order to deliver a financial strategy ensuring sustainable finances, a 

robust annual budget process ensuring financial balance and an 

adequate monitoring process; all of which are subject to regular 

review;

S McGregor

Authority adheres to principles of CIPFA statement on role of CFO 

in local government. MTFP regularly updated and reported to SMT 

and Committee, annual VFM opinion issued by external audit 

include review of medium term financial outlook; this was clean for 

2015/16.

4 N/A

8.    when working in partnership: C Gould
As noted above, existing partnerships from AGS perspective relate 

to arrangements that are contractually defined
4 N/A

a.    ensure that there is clarity about the legal status of the 

partnership
C Gould

As noted above, existing partnerships from AGS perspective relate 

to arrangements that are contractually defined
4 N/A

b.    ensure that the roles and responsibilities of the partners are 

agreed so that there is effective leadership and accountability
C Gould

As noted above, existing partnerships from AGS perspective relate 

to arrangements that are contractually defined
4 N/A

c.    ensure that Council representatives make clear to all other 

partners the extent of their authority to bind their organisations to 

partner decisions

C Gould
As noted above, existing partnerships from AGS perspective relate 

to arrangements that are contractually defined
4 N/A

9.    agree annually a calendar of meetings to be used as the basis for

forward planning of decision making
A Lowe Calendar in place 4 N/A

1.    publish an annual report on a timely basis to communicate the 

authority’s activities and achievements, its financial position and 

performance;

C Gould

Some extra detail could be included on financial position and 

performance but this is included in the published accounts; clarity of 

accounts should be helped through 'telling the storey' changes to 

accounting Code.

4

Judged to be sufficient financial information available to 

stakeholders overall with improvements already planned 

to 16/17 statement of accounts.

2.    assess the skills required by members and officers and make 

arrangements to agree a development plan to develop those skills 

and address any training gaps, to enable roles to be carried out 

effectively;

C Gould

Members: have in place Member Development Strategy including 

action plan with steering group.

Officers: Development plan - CCC has a People strand o review 

personal qualities framework. Performance Appraisal system in 

place, contributing to overall IIP silver status

4 N/A

3.    embed financial competencies within all appropriate person 

specifications and appraisals;
A Reay

Existing action plan item for this, progress being made through 

People strand of customer connect programme.
3

Existing action plan item, being progressed in line with 

Customer Connect.

Principle E   Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

P
age 228



Local Code Provision
Responsible 

Officer
Comments

Self assessment 

level (1 to 4)
Action Plan

4.    ensure that Councillor’s roles and responsibilities for monitoring 

financial/budgetary performance are clear; and they are provided with 

and have access to adequate financial skills and training to assist in 

discharging these responsibilities;

C Gould

Member development programme is in place with deputy leader as 

Champion. Cllr roles and responsibilities set out in the constitution; 

financial training offered to all new members with additional briefings 

and training through the year, eg budget briefing 15th Dec 2016.

4 N/A

5.    develop skills on a continuing basis to improve performance, 

including the ability to scrutinise and challenge and to recognise when 

outside expert advice is needed, in line with the member development 

strategy;

C Gould

Organisational Develop section oversee this corporately. Currently 

recognised as IIP silver. Member development programme is in 

place with deputy leader as Champion.

4 N/A

6.    provide induction programmes tailored to individual needs and 

opportunities for members and officers to update their knowledge on a 

regular basis;

C Gould

Inductions provided to staff by line managers; behaviour towards 

others included in checklist. Behaviours also included within 

personal attributes framework reviewed as part of annual 

appraisals.

4 N/A

7.    ensure that the statutory officers have the skills, resources and 

support necessary to perform effectively in their roles and that these 

roles are properly understood throughout the authority;

Management 

Team

All officers, including statutory officers, have annual performance 

appraisals and subsequent training plans to address any skills gaps.
4 N/A

8.    consider career structures for members and officers to encourage 

participation and development;
C Gould

Member development programme is in place with deputy leader as 

Champion. Members are now going for level 2 of the Member 

development charter, demonstrating a commitment to Member 

development.

4 N/A

9.    Manage the strategic Human Resource Management and

Organisational Development needs of the organisation through

relevant policies and accreditation.

A Reay/C Gould

Various policies in place including work force plan and OD plan. 

Going for Gold IIP, currently silver. People board strand of 

Customer Connect to review all policies and plans.

4 N/A

10. Promote the use of technology to enhance efficiency and quality

of service.
S McVey

Web editors are now in place and are enhancing the website to 

align this to how customers want to find information, including CTax 

leaflet; still a work in progress with aspiration to really enhance 

customer experience through the Customer Connect programme.

4

The use of technology is being promoted through eg 

Customer Connect. Still requires full implementation but 

the process of change has already started so the 

'promotion' element not judged necessary as AGS action 

plan item.

1.    maintain a prudential financial framework, balance commitments 

with available resources; and monitor income and expenditure levels 

to ensure this balance is achieved;

S McGregor
Authority adheres to the principle of CIPFA statement on role of 

CFO in local government including Prudential and TM code.
4 N/A

2.    ensure compliance with the CIPFA codes regarding a Prudential 

Framework for Capital Finance and Treasury Management;
S McGregor

Authority adheres to the principle of CIPFA statement on role of 

CFO in local government including Prudential and TM code.
4 N/A

3.    put in place effective arrangements to deal with a failure in 

service delivery;

Management 

Team

Provisions exist with the constitution to give authority to officers to 

address acute failures in service delivery, eg urgent spend 

provisions.

4 N/A

4.    determine a scheme of delegated and reserved powers within the 

constitution and ensure that it is monitored and updated when 

required;

Council 

Constitution
In place, constitution reviewed on an annual basis. 4 N/A

Principle F    Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

P
age 229



Local Code Provision
Responsible 

Officer
Comments

Self assessment 

level (1 to 4)
Action Plan

5.    require appropriate management accounting, functions and 

controls to be in place within the Council, together with outsourced 

and partnership arrangements;

S McGregor

In place, financial procedure rules and procurement rules set out 

within the constitution; reviewed annually. Authority adheres to the 

principle of CIPFA statement on role of CFO in local government.

4 N/A

6.    ensure budget calculations are robust and reserves are 

adequate;
S McGregor

Authority adheres to principles of CIPFA statement on role of CFO 

in local government including compliance with provisions around 

financial planning. strong links between finance and services 

including bid process for service budget updates.

4 N/A

7.    ensure that effective management arrangements are in place at 

the top of the organisation;

Management 

Team

Clear procedures and minuting for regular SMT meetings, Ads hold 

DMT meetings, all staff subject to performance appraisal.
4 N/A

8.    ensure that risk management is embedded into the culture of the 

authority, with members and managers at all levels recognising that 

risk management is part of their job;

Management 

Team

In place. Comprehensive risk management framework in place with 

regular monitoring through committee. Risks also explicitly included 

within service plans.

4 N/A

9.    ensure effective internal control arrangements exist for sound 

financial management systems and processes;
S McGregor

Authority adheres to principles of CIPFA statement on role of CFO 

in local government, see other detailed financial provisions within 

local code. Recent external and internal audit reports support the 

effectiveness of the controls in place.

4 N/A

10. when working in partnership, put in place protocols for working 

together which include a shared understanding of respective roles 

and responsibilities of each organisation;

C Gould

As noted, the partnership arrangements in place are contractually 

defined. The Council pro-actively seeks out other valuable 

partnership opportunities, eg shared services/joint procurements 

with Eden.

4 N/A

11. when working in partnership, ensure that there are robust 

procedures for scrutinising decisions and behaviour and that these 

decisions and behaviour are compliant with any local authority 

rules/codes or comply with any rules/codes developed for the purpose 

of the partnership;

C Gould

Yes, in place, eg Eden shared service run under SLDC procurement 

rules. Other partnerships from an AGS viewpoint are contractually 

defined.

4 N/A

12. review the scope of the Chief Finance Officer’s (Section 151 

Officer’s) non financial areas of responsibility to ensure financial 

matters are not compromised;

S McGregor

Judged to be reasonable, CFO covers finance, revs and bens, 

legal/democratic and hr, all of which feed in to financial and other 

resource plans of the organisation.

4 N/A

13. provide the Financial Services with the resources, expertise and 

systems necessary to perform its role effectively within the Council;
S McGregor

Judged to be reasonable as evidenced by continued high quality 

output of the service (eg audit opinions, Member feedback) and 

generally low levels of sickness/use of agency etc.

4 N/A

14. when working in partnership, ensure that partners individually and 

the partnership collectively share responsibility for appointing people 

to the partnership who have the required skills and are at an 

appropriate level. The partnership should:

C Gould See detail below 4 N/A

a.    identify the capacity and capability requirements of the 

partnership
C Gould

As noted, the partnership arrangements in place are contractually 

defined. 
4 N/A

b.    conduct an audit of the capacity and capability of the partnership 

and partners
C Gould

As noted, the partnership arrangements in place are contractually 

defined. 
4 N/A

c.    develop an effective plan for addressing any gaps. C Gould
As noted, the partnership arrangements in place are contractually 

defined. 
4 N/A

P
age 230



Local Code Provision
Responsible 

Officer
Comments

Self assessment 

level (1 to 4)
Action Plan

15. on an annual basis, publish an annual report giving information on 

the authority’s vision, strategy, plans and financial statements as well 

as information about the outcomes, achievements and the satisfaction 

of service users in the previous period;

C Gould
In place, annual report published annually along with statement of 

accounts.
4 N/A

16. Set out clear financial and contract procedure rules, kept under 

review as part of the overall Constitution of the Council.
S McGregor

In place and reviewed annually although some potential for 

improved understanding and planning around procurement activity.
3

There may be some scope to improve planning around 

procurement activity, potentially by incorporating a 

review of contracts and service delivery mechanisms into 

service plans.

17. Put arrangements in place for sharing, gathering and storing data 

and ensuring data quality. 
C Gould

Suite of policies in place for data management within the Information 

Governance Framework; now being embedded. Processes to 

embedded into system so automated eg data logs, document 

retention and security levels.

3

There was an existing action point around data 

governance so not judged to be an additional AGS 

action plan issue.

18. Put arrangements in place to capture and manage risks 

corporately.

Management 

Team

Comprehensive risk management framework in place and monitored 

by audit committee.
4 N/A

1.    set out a clear statement of the respective roles and 

responsibilities of the Council’s executive committee and the 

members individually and the authority’s approach towards putting 

this into practice;

Council 

Constitution
In place 4 N/A

2.    set out a clear statement of the respective roles and 

responsibilities of the Council’s other committees and members and 

senior officers;

Council 

Constitution
In place 4 N/A

3.    set out the terms and conditions for remuneration of members 

and officers and publish an Annual Pay policy statement in 

accordance with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011;

Council 

Constitution
In place 4 N/A

4.    ensure an effective internal audit function is resourced and 

maintained
H Smith

The internal audit service was recently re-tendered; an annual 

review of effectiveness is completed, the last review concluded 

there was an effective IA in place.

4 N/A

5.    develop and maintain effective arrangements for determining the 

remuneration of senior staff;
A Reay

Annual pay policy statement is published as part of the budget for 

the up coming financial year.
4 N/A

6.    ensure that professional advice on legal and financial matters is 

available and recorded well in advance of decision making and used 

appropriately when decisions have significant legal or financial 

implications;

A Lowe The use of report templates ensures this. 4 N/A

7.    enable the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) to bring 

influence to bear on all material decisions and provide advice on the 

levels of reserves and balances to be retained;

S McGregor

Authority adheres to principles of CIPFA statement on role of CFO 

in local government. CFO does not report direct to CE so in line with 

CIPFA guidance, need to set out local arrangements.

3
Review of reporting between CFO and CE, as per 

CIPFA CFO statement.

8.    require our arrangements for financial and internal control and 

management of risk to be formally addressed within the annual 

governance reports;

S McGregor

An Annual Governance Statement is prepared at the same time as 

the statement of accounts to comment on internal controls over 

finance and other risks.

4 N/A

Principle G   Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability

P
age 231



Local Code Provision
Responsible 

Officer
Comments

Self assessment 

level (1 to 4)
Action Plan

9.    when working in partnership, ensure that partnership papers are 

easily accessible and meetings are held in public unless there are 

good reasons for confidentiality. The partners must ensure that:

C Gould
As noted above, in AGS terms, the relevant partnerships are 

contractually defined.
4 N/A

a.    the partnership receives good quality advice and support and 

information about the views of citizens and stakeholders, so that 

robust and well reasoned decisions are made; and

C Gould N/A 4 N/A

b.    risk is managed at a corporate and operational level; and C Gould
would expect these to be in place and to be evidenced as part of the 

procurement process.
4 N/A

c.    all partners comply with the Bribery Act 2010 regarding offering, 

promising or giving of an advantage, and the requesting, agreeing to 

receive or accepting of an advantage.

C Gould
would expect these to be in place and to be evidenced as part of the 

procurement process.
4 N/A

10. ensure that the authority as a whole is open and accessible to the 

community, service users and staff and make a commitment to 

openness and transparency in all our dealings, including partnerships 

subject only to the need to preserve confidentiality in those specific 

circumstances where it is proper and appropriate to do so;

A Lowe

Decision making is transparent and information publicised through 

committee agendas and transparency information. Information 

withheld or restricted only when necessary through use of part II 

sections of reports. Transparent mechanism for use of part II at 

committees.

4 N/A

11. develop and maintain an effective audit committee which is 

independent of the executive and scrutiny functions;
H Smith see 13 below 4 N/A

12. enable the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) to have 

direct access to the Council’s Audit Committee and External Auditor
S McGregor

Authority adheres to the principles of CIPFA statement on role of 

CFO in local government.
4 N/A

13. Ensure audit committee complies with Audit Committees: Practical 

Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (CIPFA, 2013).
H Smith

Audit committee performs self assessment of effectiveness 

annually, including reference to CIPFA 2013 guidance, see 

December 2016 AC agenda

4 N/A

P
age 232



          Appendix 2 
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

(H) THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17  
DRAFT 

 

 

1. Scope of Responsibility 
 
South Lakeland District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise 
of its functions, and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
South Lakeland District Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of  
Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework 
“Delivering Good Governance in Local Government” (2016). A copy of the Local Code is 
on our website at www.southlakeland.gov.uk or can be obtained on written request to 
the Council at South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, Cumbria, LA9 4DQ. 
 
This statement explains how the Council has complied with the Code, identifies any 
areas of weakness with an action plan to address these weaknesses, and also meets 
the requirements of regulation 6(1)(b) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015). 
 
 
2. Purpose of the Governance Framework 
 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes for the direction and 
control of the authority and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and 
leads the community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic 
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of 
appropriate, cost-effective services. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk or failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an 
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of South 
Lakeland District Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of 
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them 
efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 
The governance framework has been in place at South Lakeland District Council for the 
year ending 31 March 2017 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 
statement of accounts. 
 
 
 
 

Page 233

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


          Appendix 2 
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

(H) THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17  
DRAFT 

 

 

3. The Principles of Good Governance and the Governance Framework 
 

The CIPFA/SOLACE framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
sets out seven core principles of good governance, these are:  
 
Principle A –  Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 
 
Principle B – Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
 
Principle C –  Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits 
 
Principle D –  Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 

intended outcomes 
 
Principle E –  Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 
 
Principle F –  Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 

public financial management 
 
Principle G – Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 

effective accountability 

 
 
The key strategic elements to the Council’s Governance arrangements are: 
 

 A regularly reviewed Council Plan that includes explicit outcomes. This is derived 
through stakeholder engagement and sets out the Council’s aspirations. It drives 
strategic decision making, financial planning and detailed service planning. 

 

 A comprehensive and regularly reviewed Constitution setting out how the Council 
operates. Officers and Members ensure that the protocols in the constitution and 
other relavant statutes, regulations and guidance are both followed and lead to 
transparent, ethical and legal decision making. This ensures effective accountability 
and stong financial management. 

 

 A structure including Standards and Overview and Scrutiny committees which are 
independent of the Cabinet. These monitor delivery against both financial and 
Council plan targets as well compliance with the Council’s high ethical and 
behavioural expectations. Audit Committee monitors internal control corporately, 
including the arrangements to manage risk. All committees are supported by qualified 
professional officers to provide timely, relevant information which is open and 
transparent. 

 

 The Council recognises a need for continued investment in technology, innovation 
and organisational development. This is reflected in the recent Investors in People 
process as well as the ongoing ‘Customer Connect’ project. This will re-shape the 

Page 234



          Appendix 2 
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

(H) THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17  
DRAFT 

 

 

Council and enhance how it uses technology to engage with local tax payers and 
improve customer service. 

 
These show at a strategic level, that the Council’s key governance arrangements are 
consistent with the 7 core principles. The Local Code of Governance sets out the 
detailed arrangements in place at South Lakeland District Council. This has been 
reviewed against the detailed framework provided by CIPFA/LASAAC. 
 
 
4. Review of Effectiveness 

 
South Lakeland District Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 
review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of Internal 
Control. The key elements of this review are as follows: 
 
Corporate Level review 
A Working Group of key Officers has conducted a detailed review of the Council’s 
governance arrangements against the Local Code of Governance. The working group 
has undertaken a self-assessment against the seven core Governance Principles and 
supporting principles in the Local Code, together with the key principles relating to the 
role of the Chief Finance Officer. No significant issues have been identified. 
 
Director/ Assistant Director Level review 
Senior Management Team consider and challenge all performance, risk management 
and internal audit reports. They have reviewed the Local Code of Governance in year. 
The Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer also have input through their 
membership of the Senior Management Team. No significant governance issues have 
been identified. 
 
Scrutiny Committee self assessment 
The Council has operates with one Overview and Scrutiny Committee which has a 
Performance Sub-Committee.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee can challenge a 
decision that has been made by the Executive prior to it being implemented, to enable 
them to consider the decision and the context within which it was taken.  They have a 
remit, which allows them to assist the Council and the Cabinet in the development of its 
budget and policy framework. The Committee produce an annual report on its work. The 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee annual report for 2016/17 concluded that effective 
scrutiny was taking place.  
 
Audit Committee self assessment 
The Audit Committee annual report for 2016/17 concluded that it was working 
effectively, functioning in accordance with best practice and providing independent 
assurance of the Council’s governance arrangements. The Committee reviewed the 
AGS at their meeting on 20 April 2017. They were satisfied that the statement was a fair 
reflection of the authority with no significant governance issues to report. TBC Through 
review at April meeting. 
 
 

Page 235



          Appendix 2 
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

(H) THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17  
DRAFT 

 

 

 
Standards Committee self assessment 
The Standards Committee is currently made up of 7 District Councillors with the ability 
to  co-opt 2 non-voting Parish Members.  The Committee’s main functions are to: 

 Promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members 

 Assist and ensure Members observe the Codes of Conduct 

 Advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Code of Conduct 

 Monitor the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct 

 Deal with matters under the Council’s Standards Arrangements 

 Monitor the complaints procedure and ombudsman investigations 
The Council has appointed an Independent Person in accordance with the relevant 
provisions of the Localism Act 2011 and related Regulations. An Independent Person 
Protocol was adopted in July 2013 and revised in December 2016. The Standards 
Committee annual report for 2016/17 concluded that overall, ethical standards were 
sound.TBC April meeting. 
 
Internal Audit annual opinion 
Internal Audit is responsible for reviewing the quality and effectiveness of the system of 
governance, risk management and internal control. A risk-based Internal Audit Plan is 
produced each financial year for approval by the Audit Committee. The reporting 
process for Internal Audit requires all final reports to be submitted to the Audit 
Committee. The reports include recommendations for improvements forming an agreed 
Action Plan, which is monitored to ensure satisfactory action is taken. The effectiveness 
of the Internal Audit function is also subject to annual review through the Council’s Audit 
Committee (see above). 
 
The Internal Audit Annual Report contains a statement / judgment on overall levels of 
assurance (a view based on the relative significance of the systems reviewed during the 
year, in the context of the totality of the control environment). The annual report is due 
to be presented to Audit Committee during July 2017. Based on progress to date, it is 
anticipated that the opinion will be that the control environment was basically sound for 
the year ended 31 March 2017. 
 
External Audit reports 
The Audit Findings Report provides an overall summary of the External Auditor’s 
assessment of the Council and recommends any areas for improvement. No significant 
internal control weaknesses were highlighted for 2015/16. External Audit are due to 
present their 2016/17 audit findings at the July 2017 Audit committee. 
 
 
5. Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 

  
The 2015/16 AGS process did not produce any significant governance issues. However, 
an action plan was produced to capture areas where there may be scope for 
improvement. These included data governance, complaints handling, the framework for 
managing fraud risks and ensuring the financial skills of senior officers. Progress has 
been made in the year to address these actions. A key action for many of these is the 

Page 236



          Appendix 2 
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

(H) THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2016/17  
DRAFT 

 

 

Customer Connect project which is due to be fully implemented over the next 3 years. 
No new significant governance issues have been raised through the 2016/17 review but 
a number of other improvement opportunities have been idenfitied. These include 
ensuring social value is considered along side service delivery and procurement 
options, reviewing reporting lines and reviewing the local code provisions around 
partnership working to ensure these are relevant to the Council’s arrangements. These 
have been reported to Audit Committee who will monitor their implementation. 
 
6. Governance opinion 

 
There are no significant governance issues, the governance arrangements in place are 
considered fit for purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
         
Lawrence Conway     Date 
Chief Executive       
South Lakeland District Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Giles Archibald     Date   
Leader               
South Lakeland District Council 

Page 237



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 238



        APPENDIX 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
DRAFT  

 

1 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTIONS  

Local 
Code ref 

Local Code Measures Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

Existing Actions (references updated to revised Local Code) 
 

A13 Ensure that effective, transparent and 
accessible arrangements are in place for 
dealing with complaints. 
 

AD 
Performance 
and Innovation 

March 2017 March 2017 There is a clear mechanism for raising complaints 
through the website with monitoring through 
Standards committee.  

B9, B10, 
F17 

Overall, several Local Code provisions to 
ensure that the authority as a whole is open 
and accessible to the community, service 
users and its staff and ensure that it has a 
commitment to openness and transparency 
in all its dealings including partnerships 
subject only to the need to preserve 
confidentiality in those specific circumstances 
where it is proper and appropriate.  

AD 
Performance 
and Innovation 

CC 
commenced
, due to 
continue 
over next 2 
years. 

In progress Information governance, data quality and 
transparency will all feature as part of the 
Customer Connect Programme, particularly the 
implementation of the new digital platform. In 
addition, the new platform will also enhance 
communication with customers, ensure that it is 
easier to access services and gather feedback. 

A17a Complete fraud and corruption risk 
assessments including where the harm 
caused by fraud lies 

Corporate 
Anti-Fraud 
Officer 

December 
2016 

September 
2016 

Risk assessment process is complete and key 
risks are being addressed.  
 
The contents of the Council’s existing Anti-Fraud 
Policy will be considered alongside the 
preparation of a new Anti-Fraud Strategy. 
 

A17b Produce anti-fraud and corruption strategy as 
part of review of anti-fraud and corruption 
policy, to be considered by Audit 
Committee.  To include a specific goal of 
ensuring and maintaining its resilience to 
fraud and corruption and explore 
opportunities for financial savings from 
enhanced fraud detection and prevention. 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

September 
2017 

In progress 

P
age 239



        APPENDIX 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
DRAFT  

 

2 
 

Local 
Code ref 

Local Code Measures Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

E3.  Ensuring appropriate financial skills of 
Officers scored 3 out of 4 with some scope to 
make financial acumen requirements more 
explicit. 

AD Resources/ 
HR Manager 
 

CC 
commenced 
due to 
continue 
over next 2 
years. 

In progress There is a pay and reward review underway 
which will address issues around required 
competencies corporately. This is a medium term 
strategic project which also links in to Customer 
Connect. 

New actions 

G7 & 
CIPFA 
stmnt. on 
role of 
CFO 

Enable the Chief Finance Officer (Section 
151 Officer) to bring influence to bear on all 
material decisions and provide advice on the 
levels of reserves and balances to be 
retained. 

The governance requirement in the CIPFA 
Statement is that CFOs should be 
professionally qualified and report directly to 
the Chief Executive and be a member of the 
leadership team with status at least 
equivalent to other members. Any different 
arrangement should be explained publicly in 
the AGS. The difference, the reasons for it 
and how these arrangements deliver the 
same impact should be included in the AGS.  

Chief 
Executive 
/CFO 

By 31 
March 2018 

 The CFO has presented a view of the increased 
risks surrounding the current reporting line.  
The Chief Executive and the post holder will 
review the future challenges and opportunities 
that the Council will face and the Chief Executive 
will consider the existing reporting lines in the 
light of these.   
  

C7/F16 Link service plans to agreed measures and 
targets within the Council plan (incuding 
Social Value)  
 
Set out clear financial and contract procedure 
rules, kept under review as part of the overall 
Constitution of the Council. 

SMT In place for 
2018/19 
service 
plans 

 Embedding of procurement practices into service 
planning (eg identifying contracts in plans) along 
with wider consideration of social value around 
delivery options. 

P
age 240



        APPENDIX 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
DRAFT  

 

3 
 

Local 
Code ref 

Local Code Measure Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

B4 (and 

other 
provisions 
around 
working 
with 
partners) 

In pursuing partnerships, agree a set of 
values against which decision making and 
actions can be judged in line with and having 
referred to the Partnership Working 
Framework. 

SMT December 
2017 (next 
planned 
local code 
review) 

 The Local Code includes several provisions 
around partnership working. In terms of the 
potential to cause significant governance issues, 
the key ‘partnerships’ are larger strategic 
initiatives such as major out-sourcing, shared 
services, joint commissioning or devolved 
budgets. The Council has several large out-
sourced contracts and a shared service 
arrangement all of which are controlled through 
bespoke contractual arrangements. The Council 
also works with many other partner organisations 
which help shape policy and coordinate activity.  
The Local Code should be reviewed to ensure the 
provisions around partnership working are clear 
and appropriate for the different types and scales 
of partner working. 

 
 

P
age 241



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 242



   
 

Risk 12 
Health and Safety management of contracts 

 
Description of risk 
Health and safety management arrangements require a review for officer led 
contracts. A review may indicate new requirements and resources. Expert legal advice 
is required in order to achieve compliance and reasonable cost. 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

   x 

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Next Review Date 
Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  x  

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/17 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

1/ Contracts Management Health and Safety 
training is provided 

Completed Principle Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing Officer 

09/04/15 

2/ Officer leads carry out onsite H&S 
monitoring which is proportionate to the risk 

ongoing All staff managing contracts Ongoing requirement 

3/ Officer led contracts are subject to spot 
checks for onsite monitoring records. 

Q4 2015/16: Initial assessment 
indicates that evidence exists for 
H&S checks 

All managers with contracts. 
 

Ongoing requirement 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q1 2016/17 SMT Risk Register Review: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ - progress with mitigations has reduced this risk. Risk reviewed as Impact 
Critical and Likelihood Low. Early previous history has been archived. 
Q2 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Risk reviewed as Impact Critical and Likelihood Low. Early previous history has been archived. 
10/11/16: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review prior to Audit Committee indicates no change. 

Risk Owner Chief Executive Portfolio Finance Portfolio 

 
 

P
age 243

Item
 N

o.15



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 244



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

20 April 2017 

Annual Reporting of Operational Risks to Audit 
Committee 

 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Sue Sanderson – (Deputy Leader) Portfolio 
Holder Council Organisation and People 

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director Policy and Resources (Monitoring 
Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: John Davies – Performance and Risk Officer 

WARDS: Not Applicable 

KEY DECISION: Not Applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 Members are aware of the operational risks which are positioned above the line of 
risk tolerance. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee note the operational risks which are 
positioned above the line of tolerance as listed in appendix 1 of this report and 
the mitigations to manage them. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 During November 2016 Internal Audit made the following recommendation: ‘The 
operational risks, which are above the tolerance level, be reported to the Audit 
Committee on an annual basis, as a minimum, to ensure that Members are aware of 
the operational risks which have been identified and are being managed.’ 

3.2 The Performance and Risk Officer will report the operational risks that are above 
tolerance to Audit Committee on an annual basis. The Service Plans which contain 
these risks are updated for the start of each financial year and reporting will fit in with 
this schedule. 

3.3 The Strategic Risk Register is also reported to Audit Committee every 6 months. The 
Strategic Risk Register is currently reviewed by Senior Management Team prior to 
being reported each quarter as part of quarterly performance monitoring and 
reporting arrangements.  

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 The Performance and Risk Officer collates operational risks from within Operational 
Managers Service Plans. 

Page 245

Item No.16



2 
 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 No alternative options – Audit Committee must have sight of operational risks. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 The management of risks directly underpins Council Plan priorities. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 There are no financial implications associated with reporting operational risks. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 There are no staffing implications associated with reporting operational risks. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 There are no legal implications associated with reporting operational risks. 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 There are no Health, Social, Economic or Environmental implications associated with 
reporting operational risks. 

Have you completed and Health, Social, 
Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

There are no Health, Social, Economic or 
Environmental implications 

 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 There are no Equality and Diversity implications associated with reporting operational 
risks. 

Have you completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

There are no Equality and Diversity 
implications associated with reporting 
operational risks 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

There is a risk that 
Members are not aware of 
the Council’s Operational 
Risks. 

Members are not able to 
ensure that risks are 
managed effectively. 

Risks impact on services. 

Operational Risks are 
reviewed by Operational 
Managers and are 
reported to Audit 
Committee by the 
Performance and Risk 
Officer. 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – John Davies, Performance and Risk Officer, 01539 733333, 
rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Page 246

mailto:rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk


3 
 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

1 Operational Risks  

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

Risk Management Process. 

Performance Management 
Framework. 

Both documents can be seen here 

 

Audit Committee updates. Previous Audit Committee updates can be seen here 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio Holder Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

20/03/17 03/04/17 20/03/17 30/03/17  

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Audit 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

 20/04/17  20/03/17 20/03/17 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 

 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 

 

  

20/03/17     

 

 

Page 247

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-documents/council-plan/performance/
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=135


4 
 

Appendix 1 

 

The purpose of this appendix is to present the operational risks that are positioned above the line of risk appetite (risk tolerance.) 

The risks are listed by operational service area.  

 

Revenues and Benefits 

Risk 
005/14 

Negative impact of the Software Implementation 
 
 

Risk 
Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review 
annually 
Blue zone: manage 
quarterly 

Review Date 31-Dec-2017 

Description Changing Software always brings risks to both Collection Rates 
and service delivery, expected go live date selected to mitigate 
this risk.  
 
If the risk occurs there will be an impact upon processing of 
Council Tax, Housing Benefits and Business rates which could 
then subsequently impact upon payment of Housing Benefits 
and Collections of Council Tax and Business Rates. 
  
The impacts would be felt by members of the public who are 
dependent on payments. There would also be a negative effect 

Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

 X   

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review 
annually 
Blue zone: manage 
quarterly 

Target Date 31-Dec-2017 

P
age 248



5 
 

on reputation and income for the Council. 

Mitigations Implementation planned for late Quarter 3 to minimise any impact upon Collection Rates and Processing 
times.   
Escalate as potential Strategic Risk. 

Mitigation 
Due Date 

31-Dec-2017 

Risk Owner Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

 
 

Risk name 
 

Loss of Housing Benefit subsidy - due to audit 
detection of assessment errors or delays 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 
 

Next Review 
Date 

Monthly 

Description 
of risk 

There is risk because errors and delays occur in 
benefits processing. Where errors or delays 
exceed 0.5% the Council must meet the full 
costs of those errors – in terms of overpaid 
benefit. 

Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  x  

    

Impact 
 

Target Date 01/01/18 

Mitigations 1. Dedicated accuracy checking officer established 

2. Subsidy error report is monitored monthly 

3. Accuracy testing feedback informs staff training 

4. Accuracy testing feedback identifies performance issues  

Mitigation 
Due Date 

Mitigations 
in place and 
established 

Risk Owner Revenues and Benefits Manager 

 

P
age 249



6 
 

 

Environment and Housing 

 

Public Protection; Risk 1 – Taxi licensing  
Inadequate controls/ check of fit and proper person in relation to 
licensing of taxi drivers 
 
Description 
Recent safeguarding cases have highlighted in role of taxi licensing 
functions and measures to ensure the fit and proper person test as a way 
to safeguard the public.  

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
July 2017 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Target Date: 
TBC once moved from blue position 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

1.All drivers are required to have a 
valid DBS and medical on application/ 
renewal.   

Progress update Licensing team Continual  

2. Taxi licensing have recently 
undertaken an internal audit to review 
any areas of concern 

Awaiting report to undertake 
review of actions needed 

Public Protection manager/ 
PEHO (food and licensing) 

TBC – on review of audit report 

3. Scoping out new IT software which 
will reduce aspects of human error 

Ongoing Public Protection Manager TBC 

 

4. Training of members sitting on taxi 
subcommittee panels 

Number of members are 
trained on taxi licensing – only 
these will be called for a 
hearing 

Public Protection Manager, 
member services and legal 

Continual  

P
age 250



7 
 

History  
of Risk Improvement 

09/03/17: RISK IDENTIFIED = this risk is new, mitigations have been agreed and are listed above.  

Risk Owner Public Protection Manager Portfolio Organisation and People 

 

 

Public Protection; Risk 2 – Impact of the flood 
grant project on statutory functions  
Delivery of statutory functions with additional burden from the delivery 
of the flood grant project 
 
Description 
As above 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
July 2017 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Target Date: 
TBC once moved from blue position 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

1.Additonal staff recruited to backfill 
current staff who relocated to the 
flood grant team 

Number of staff on temp/ 
contract remit to backfill and 
budget provisions in place to 
support the project 

Public Protection Manager Continual  - till project end date 

2. Internal monthly meetings with SMT 
to report areas of concern 

Areas of concerns are 
discussed and addressed 

Director of People and Places and 
Public Protection Manager 

TBC – on review of audit report 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

 
09/03/17: RISK reviewed. Mitigation in place. Remains in blue due to speed of change in project and unknowns from external 
parties including central government.    

P
age 251



8 
 

Risk Owner Public Protection Manager Portfolio Organisation and People and Environment 

 

 

  

P
age 252



9 
 

Legal and Committee Services 

 

   

Risk name 

 

Windermere lake encroachment debt 
recovery does not significantly reduce 
the amounts outstanding. 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 
 

Next Review Date Quarterly 

Descriptio
n of risk 

Reputational risk to Legal Services. 
Historically there has been insufficient 
resource for recovery on Windermere. 
Numerous challenges to the current 
square metre methodology have been 
made. Debts require significant Legal, 
Finance and Lambert Smith Hampton 
work in every case. 

Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
 

Target Date Quarterly 

Mitigation
s 

1. Regular progress reports to senior officers and members 
2. Reports to Lake Admin Committee and Audit Committee 
3. Regular 1-1 item with Assistant Director Resources 
4. Recruitment needed of 1 full time solicitor/legal executive to work on encroachments. 

Mitigation Due 
Date 

On going - all 
mitigations are 
established 

Risk 
Owner 

Solicitor to the Council 

March 
2017 
Progress  

Action will continue to recruit the vacant FTE post. In the interim the use of outsourcing and temporary resources will continue. 

P
age 253



10 
 

Risk name 

 

Risk of not being able to deliver legal 
commercial property advice and deal 
with legal aspects of encroachments. 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
 

Next Review Date End of Q1 

Description 
of risk 

Reputational risk to Legal Services. 
Recruitment needed of 1 permanent full 
time commercial property solicitor.   

 

Risk of work not being completed due to 
annual leave/sickness arising out of a lack 
of service resilience within the team. 

Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 
 

Target Date End December 
2017 

Mitigations 1. Recruit 1 full time permanent commercial property solicitor/legal executive. 
2. Recognise and resolve strong and viable challenges early with respect to managing work 

before successful recruitment. 
3. Outsourcing of urgent legal commercial property matters to private practice to ensure 

continued delivery of effective legal service for Council.  
4. Identify options for increasing service resilience. 

Mitigation Due 
Date 

On going - all 
mitigations are 
established 

Risk Owner Solicitor to the Council for commercial property lawyers /HR for recruitment 

March 2017 
Progress  

Recruitment of solicitor/legal executive to continue   

Various legal files have been outsourced to firms within the North West Legal Consortium, (save Napthens a local firm). In the event 
that further outsourcing is required, a mini tendering exercise will be undertaken with local firms in order to utilise local private 
practice resources for legal work. 

 

 

P
age 254



11 
 

Risk name 

 

Insufficient time provided by the 
Government to prepare for new 
legislation. 

Risk Current 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
 

Next Review Date Quarterly 

Description 
of risk 

Team processes and the work of other 
officers across the Council has to change 
to accommodate new legislation.  ICT 
changes can also be required. 

Risk Target 
Position 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
 

Target Date Ongoing 

Mitigations 1. Regular monitoring for signs of new legislation. 
2. Accommodate within team processes. 
3. Share knowledge and thoughts through ADSO and with other organisations. 

   On going - all 
mitigations are 
established 

Risk Owner Solicitor to the Council/Senior Committee Services Officer/Senior Solicitor 

March 2017 
Progress  

The team is subscribed to a number of resources which provide advance notification of any proposed legislative changes that might 
impact upon the team’s work. 

 

 

 

  

P
age 255



12 
 

Corporate Assets Manager 

 

Risk 1 – Service Delivery from LSH/ Performance 
Management. 
 
Description of risk 
Property Service Contract does not deliver the standards of 
performance required within the contract fee agreed. 
 
Description 
Currently LSH are contracted to deliver the estate management and 
building management on behalf of South Lakeland District Council. 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  
    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
01.06.17 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 X   

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
01.10.17 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

2. KPI’s to be agreed as part of the 
contract and monitored on monthly/ 
quarterly basis. 

Draft KPI’s have been agreed 
between the CAM and LSH. 
Further works to take place to 
confirm the exact KPI’s to be 
used. 

Corporate Asset Manager 01.04.17 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

N/A 

Risk Owner Corporate Asset Manager Portfolio Finance Portfolio.  

 

P
age 256



13 
 

Risk 2 – Health and Safety management. 

 
Description of risk 
Health and safety management throughout the organisation. Ensure 
that Health and Safety is at the core of our actions and behaviours. 
 
 
Description 
Develop Health and Safety policy and strategy/ implementation plan. 
Ensure that the roles, responsibilities and actions required by all 
employees are clear and concise. 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     
  x  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
01.06.17 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
01.10.17 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

1.  Complete Health and Safety policy 
and Strategy for SLDC for April 2017.  

Draft Policy and Strategy 
complete, consultation is 
ongoing prior to Cabinet 
approval expected in April. 

Corporate Asset Manager On-going 

2. Present the Policy and Strategy to all 
SLDC employees.  

Chief Executive to brief all 
staff in June staff briefings. 

Corporate Asset Manager 01.06.17 

3. Audit staff perception of Health and 
Safety to help steer the 
implementation plan. 

On-going Corporate Asset Manager 01.08.17 

4. Improve communication on Health 
and Safety issues, simplify any Health 
and Safety procedures and give clear 
and concise  

On-going Corporate Asset Manager On-going and continuous. 

P
age 257



14 
 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

N/A 

Risk Owner Corporate Asset Manager Portfolio Council Organisation and People Portfolio 

 

 

Risk 3 – Strategic Property Review 

 
Description of risk 
Failure to meet targets set for the strategic review. 
 
 
Description 
SLDC are currently undertaking a strategic review of all assets. Failure to 
deliver on time and to a required standard will impact on future revenue 
streams such as future revenue potential from Braithwaite Fold Caravan 
park and Ulverston North Lonsdale Road Depot. This failure can impact 
on potential receipt or secure future revenue costs.  

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     
  x  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
01.06.17 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 x   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
01.10.17 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

1. List of buildings to be prioritised to 
be issued to LSH.   

On-going. Corporate Asset Manager On-going 

3. KPI’s to be agreed as part of the 
contract and monitored on monthly/ 
quarterly basis. 

Draft KPI’s have been agreed 
between the Corporate Asset 
Manager and LSH. Further 
works to take place to confirm 
the exact KPI’s to be used. 

Corporate Asset Manager 01.04.17 

P
age 258



15 
 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

N/A 

Risk Owner Corporate Asset Manager Portfolio Finance Portfolio 

 

 

Risk 4 – Capital Programme delivery 

 
Description of risk 
Failure to meet the financial spend profile of the Capital Programme. 
 
Description 
Failure to deliver the Capital Scheme may mean failure to achieve 
additional revenue streams, can lead to a deterioration in SLDC’s 
building portfolio which could be a potential Health and Safety risk. 
Failure to deliver on the Capital Programme can lead to a loss of 
reputation with external partners. 
 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     
  x  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
01.06.17 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 x   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
31.03.18 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

1. All capital projects are outsourced 
through NEPRO or through our 
property service provider.  

On-going. Corporate Asset Manager. On-going. 

2. Clear and concise brief provided for 
all projects providing clear objections 
with timescales. 

On-going. Corporate Asset Manager. On-going. 

3. Priority given to those projects in On-going. Corporate Asset Manager. On-going. 

P
age 259



16 
 

line with Health and Safety or service 
delivery objectives 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

N/A 

Risk Owner Corporate Asset Manager Portfolio Finance Portfolio 

 

  

P
age 260



17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Economic Development 

 

Risk 2. 
 
Wi-Fi Rollout – Non delivery  
 
Description 
 
The Council is currently trying to procure a provider of town centre Wi-
Fi for the key service centres.  To do this it will require use of CCC assets; 
SLDC and CCC legal team are currently negotiating the terms of this use.   
If the correct terms cannot be agreed it will not be possible to attract 
the Market to deliver the Town Centre Wi-Fi across South Lakeland. 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
June 2017   

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
June  2017   

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

1. Organise joint meeting between 
SLDC and CCC legal teams to ensure 
requirement properly communicated  

Underway  Gareth Candlin  30 April 2017 

2. Raise with relevant SLDC and CCC 
elected members to ensure officers are 
instructed of the importance of 
concluding the agreement. 

April 2017  Gareth Candlin 30 April 2017  

P
age 261



18 
 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

 
1/03/2017 – Risk Identified and entered into risk log  

Risk Owner Economic Development Programme Manager Portfolio Economy – Graham Vincent  

 

 

Risk 3. 
 
Kendal Town Centre  Master Plan – Non Delivery  
 
Description 
 
The town centre master plan will identify a number of opportunity sites 
for redevelopment in Kendal to add to the overall sustainability and 
vitality of the town.  These sites are predominantly in private ownership 
so there is a risk that few of the proposed regeneration schemes will 
come forward unless properly managed. 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
October 2017  

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
October 2017   

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

1. Ensure robust public and private 
sector consultation  

April 2017  Dan Hudson   April 2017 

2. Viability assessments of proposed 
sites undertaken  

April 2017  Dan Hudson  April 2017 
 

3. Masterplan Steering Group 
established  

June 2017  Gareth Candlin  June 2017  

P
age 262



19 
 

4. Early Private Sector Engagement  October 2017 Gareth Candlin  October 2017  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

1/03/2017 – Risk Identified and entered into risk log  

Risk Owner Economic Development Programme Manager / 
Development Strategy and Housing Manager 

Portfolio Economy – Graham Vincent  

 

 

 

  P
age 263



20 
 

Communications and Customer Relations 

 

Risk name 
 

Customer Connect project involves major 
changes and will affect the whole team. 

Risk current 
position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
     

   x 

    

    

Impact 
 

Next review date July 2017 

Description of 
risk 

Staff must adapt and learn new way of 
working which could lead to HR and IR 
issues. Slippage in IT changes. 

Risk target 
position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
     

    

  x  

    

Impact 
 

Target date Dec 2017 

Mitigations Training and transformational change programme Mitigation due 
date 

TBC 

Risk owner Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 

 

Risk name 
 

Lack of capacity in team because of 
pressures caused by Customer Connect 

Risk current 
position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
   x  

    

    

    

Impact 
 

Next 
review date 

July 2017 

Description of 
risk 

Failure to formalise team structure following 
the departure of the Comms Manager to 
ensure that comms remains on track. 
Interim arrangements in place for next four 
months 

Risk target 
Position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
   x  

    

    

    

Impact 
 

Target date June 2017 

Mitigations Monitor and review workloads on a regular basis Mitigation Due 
Date 

April 2017 

P
age 264



21 
 

Risk Owner Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 

 

Risk name 
 

Technical failure of telephony and software 
in Contact Centre 

Risk current 
position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
   x  

    

    

    

Impact 
 

Next 
review date 

Ongoing 2017 

Description of 
risk 

 Risk Target 
Position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
     

    

  x  

    

Impact 
 

Target Date To be confirmed 

Mitigations Despite improvements this remains an issue Mitigation due 
date 

To be confirmed 

Risk owner Assistant Director Performance and Innovation  
 

 

 

 

  

P
age 265



22 
 

Development Management 

 

Risk name 
 

Building regulations changes do not deliver 
sustainable houses. 

Risk Current 
Position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
     

  x  

    

    

Impact 
 

Next Review 
Date 

Quarterly 

Description of 
risk 

Housing will not be carbon neutral on the 
appointed date in 2016. This risk is outside 
the control of SLDC. 

Risk Target 
Position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
     

 x   

    

    

Impact 
 

Target Date 01/04/17 

Mitigations  Mitigation Due 
Date 

 

Risk Owner Assistant Directors meeting of 03/02/15 decided that this risk is outside of the Councils control and therefore can be monitored 
at an operational level by the Development Management Group Manager. 

 

  

P
age 266



23 
 

Shared ICT Service 

Risk name 
 

Lack of an Information Asset Register leads to 
confusion and lack of ownership regarding data 
classifications 
 

Risk Current 
Position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 

    

  X  

    

    

Impact 
 

Next Review 
Date 

 

Description of 
risk 

Staff are generally aware that loss of sensitive 
data can have a negative impact on individuals 
and the council 

Risk Target 
Position 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 

    

    

    

  X  

Impact 
 

Target Date  

Mitigations An information asset register needs to be collated showing data sets, who is the owner and what the 
classification should be. Update 21/03/14 - Part of the Information Management Project at SLDC. 
Noted by IT Board on 27 January 2016. 

Mitigation Due 
Date 

 

Risk Owner SLDC Business Development Manager 

 
 
 

Services not listed in this report 

The following Services are managing risks however there are currently no risks identified as above tolerance: 
 
Human Resources, Partnerships and Organisational Development, Development Strategy and Housing, Financial Services, Community & Leisure and Street 
Scene. 
 

P
age 267



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 268



1 
 

South Lakeland District Council 
Audit Committee 

20 April 2017 
Review of Performance Management Framework 

and Risk Management Process 
 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Sue Sanderson - Portfolio Holder Council 
Organisation and People 

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director Policy and Resources (Monitoring 
Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: John Davies – Performance and Risk Officer 

WARDS: Not applicable 

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 This report presents the update to the Performance Management Framework and the 
Risk Process. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:- 
(1) note the changes required for the Performance Management Framework 

April 2017 in appendix 1; and 
(2) note the updated Risk Management Process March 2017 in appendix 2 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The Council has an existing Performance Management Framework and Risk 
Management Process which are reviewed annually.  The 2017 update to the Council 
Plan for 2014 – 2019 has been taken into consideration as part of the annual review 
of these documents.  

3.2 The Performance Management Framework describes how the Council monitors its 
performance and reflects the performance monitoring structures and schedules. Full 
Council on 29 March 2017 considered changes to the constitution and agreed to 
discontinue the Performance Sub-Committee and for the quarterly performance 
reports to be reported to the main Overview and Scrutiny Committee - this has been 
reflected within the Performance Management Framework. 

3.5 The Risk Management Process has been improved by providing further clarification 
and detail on the management of operational risks. This improvement was a 
recommendation brought about by an external audit of Risk Management during 
2016.  

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Partnerships and Organisational Development staff were involved in the review of the 
Performance Management Framework and the Risk Management Process. 

Page 269

Item No.17



2 
 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The consequences of not approving updates to policies are to weaken corporate 
governance arrangements. 

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 Reviewing key policies is a key organisational control that supports good 
performance with the Council Plan and helps develop and embed a high 
performance culture. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1 No financial implications are associated with the proposals set out in this report.. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 No resource implications are associated with the proposals set out in this report. 

7.3 Legal 
7.3.1 There are no legal implications associated with the reviewed documents. 

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 
7.4.1 This report is expected to support and have a positive impact on Health, Social, 

Economic and Environmental needs. There are no changes required to the 
Performance Management Framework or the Risk Process for 2016 and therefore 
there is no requirement to carry out a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 
Assessment. 

Have you completed and Health, Social, 
Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

There are no negative impacts brought 
about by the Committee changes detailed 
within the Performance Management 
Framework or the clarified wording of the 
Risk Management Process. 

 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 There are no impacts predicted from the changes required to the Performance 
Management Framework or the Risk Management Process for 2017 and therefore 
there is no requirement to carry out an Equality Impact Assessment. This report is 
expected to support and have a positive impact on Equality and Diversity. 

Have you completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

There are no negative impacts brought 
about by the Committee changes detailed 
within the Performance Management 
Framework or the clarified wording of the 
Risk Management Process. 

Page 270



3 
 

7.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Not to update the policies The consequences of not 

updating policies are to 
weaken corporate 
governance arrangements 

Policies are updated and 
approvals sought prior to 
implementation 

 

CONTACT OFFICERS 

Report Author – John Davies, Performance and Risk Officer, 01539 733333, 
rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk  

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.  

1 Performance Management Framework 2017 

2 Risk Management Process 2017 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 

None 

 

TRACKING INFORMATION 

Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio Holder Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

20/03/17 03/04/17 20/03/17 30/03/17  

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Audit 
Committee 

Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

 20/04/17  20/03/17 20/03/17 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader 
 

Ward 
Councillor(s) 
 

  

20/03/17     

 

Page 271

mailto:rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 272



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
1 

 

 

 
 

[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the 
text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.] 

Version 10.0 

April 2017 

 Appendix 1 

Page 273



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
2 

 

Version Control 

  

Version By Date Comments 

0.06 Corporate Vision 18/08/2011 Meet needs of Localism Bill. 

1.0 Risk and Performance 
Officer 

05/03/2012 Reviewed with changes to process timescales 

2.0 Risk and Performance 
Officer 

01/06/2013 Additional performance diagrams and 
explanatory text 

3.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

18/11/2013 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

3.1 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

03/12/2013 Amendments following Consultation with Policy 
& Partnerships Manager 

4.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

09/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

5.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

13/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

6.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

14/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

7.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

16/01/2014 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 

8.0 Principal Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

01/03/2015 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 (Updated in February 2015) 

9.0 Performance and Risk 
Officer 

31/03/2016 Reviewed – no changes required. 

10.0 Performance and Risk 
Officer 

01/03/17 Refresh of framework in line with Council Plan 
2014-2019 (Updated in February 2017) and in 
line with changes in Committee structure. 

 

How we review this document 

 
Partnerships and Organisational Development will facilitate an annual review involving: 

 

1. Member Services for performance reporting requirements 

2. Human Resources for workforce and appraisal elements 

3. Finance for budgeting timescales 

4. Partnerships and Organisational Development for localism and consultation 

  

Page 274



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
3 

 

Performance - Introduction 
 
Performance management is about the delivery of the goals of an organisation and its 
community.  It needs much more than just back office systems, processes, plans and 
indicators.  Successful performance management needs leaders, managers and staff to see 
their purpose to continually improve what they do - and the services they provide to their 
communities.  
 
Performance management must add value.  In order to do this the processes employed must 
achieve the right balance between effort and results.  
 
Performance management is central to the political process – performance information is 
reported regularly to Scrutiny and Cabinet Committees.   
 
The Performance Management Framework recognises that improvement comes from people 
and process, and that the framework will not operate without staff awareness.   
 
It will be about positive endorsement, continuous improvement, innovation and creativity.   
 
In particular, the processes should emphasize the significance of performance management for 
enabling service improvement, and build links into other improvement processes - and into 
training and development. 
 
Effective performance management: 

1. Is being clear about the purpose of the Council 

2. Has a strong emphasis on achieving outcomes 

3. Has robust and effective planning systems which ensure the allocation of resources 
follow service demands 

4. Monitors delivery against clear targets and acts upon them 

5. Minimises the risk of serious error 

Additionally our political and administrative leadership makes performance a priority, and the 
clear vision motivates, enthuses and empowers staff – an organisation that has a culture that is 
enabling and empowering.  
 

  

Page 275



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
4 

 

Purpose and aim of the framework 
 
The purpose and aim of our Performance Management Framework is to make sure we deliver:  
 

 the right services  

 at the right time  

 in the right way  

 value for money  

 
Our Performance Management Framework sets out how we put this into practice.  
 

 providing an overview of the steps to be taken, followed by a brief explanation of each  

 summarising Member and Officer performance management roles and responsibilities 

 listing reporting arrangements for various Council and Partnership plans and strategies 

 
Our Performance Management Framework follows the sequence of: 
 

Plan    Do    Review 
 

Plan means being clear about what we are setting out to achieve and how we are going 
to achieve it  

Do means putting our plans into action in the most efficient and effective way  

Review means monitoring results to ensure that we:  

achieve what was planned and to the agreed standard  

can compare our performance with other service providers and with our own 
past achievements to show trends  

have relevant and timely information to feed back into the process  

can inform stakeholders accordingly  
 
  

Page 276



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
5 

 

Performance management is the responsibility of everyone in the Council.  A summary of the 
key roles and responsibilities of Officers and Councillors is set out below: 
 

 Plan Do Review 

 Vision 

Planning 

Commitment 

Action and Results Monitoring 

Review and Response 

Councillors Approve the Council Plan, 
key strategies and Budget 

Hold the Cabinet to account 

Scrutinise the Council’s 
performance 

Undertake specific reviews 
of any identified 
performance issues which 
can be undertaken through 
the Council’s arrangements 
for scrutiny 

Cabinet Formulate the Council’s 
priorities 

Monitor and respond  to 
performance data 

Challenge performance of 
all services 

Ensure strategic delivery of 
Council Plan  

Monitor performance with 
Portfolio Holder Priority 
Plans via monthly meeting 
with Assistant Directors 

Senior 
Management 

Oversee Performance 
Management Framework 

Commitment to Council’s 
priorities through the 
allocation of responsibilities 
and resources 

Strategic responsibility for 
delivery of Council’s 
priorities including 
monitoring performance 

Take a view on service 
underperformance and 
manage the Council Plan 

Ensure that Assistant 
Directors’ annual 
performance appraisals 
underpin the performance 
with the Council Plan 

Review the Council Plan 
Performance Report every 
quarter 

Assistant 
Directors 

Ensure that service area 
plans underpin 
performance with the 
Council Plan 

Sign off Service Plans 

Ensure that managers’ 
annual performance 
appraisals underpin 
performance with service 
area plans 

Hold 1-2-1’s with managers 
as required to manage 
performance with key 
activity – this may include 
projects as well as day to 
day work 

Monitor directorate 
performance at 
Departmental Management 
Team meetings on a 
quarterly basis 

Respond to service and 
organisational workflow and 
workload issues 

Operational 
Managers 

Produce Service Plans 

Contribute to the Council’s 
corporate priorities and 
objectives 

Manage projects applying 
project management 
techniques appropriately 

Deliver Service Plans 

Provide data in accordance 
with performance reporting 
requirements 

Maintain service budget 
and implement efficiencies 

Support staff to deliver their 
objectives and manage 
Staff performance 

Staff Responsible for personal 
development and 
performance 

Understand how work 
contributes to  vision, 
priorities and objectives 

Raise specific issues 
regarding performance with 
Operational Managers 

Ensure that activity listed 
within individual 
performance reviews are 
implemented on schedule 

Page 277



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
6 

 

Performance Reporting Process 

 

  

P
age 278



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
7 

 

 

 

The Council will make decisions on the priorities, risks, activities, ownership, targets and 
measures necessary to meet the needs of South Lakeland. 

 

1. Vision 

 

Performance management begins with a clear vision. The Council’s corporate vision is 
contained in our Council Plan for 2014-2019 (Updated February 2017): 

 
Making South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore 

 
This vision is underpinned by our agreed values, which influence the way we work. They lie at 
the heart of everything we do:  
 

Our Values 

Empowering People 

By listening to our customers and our employees, their ideas and comments will help us make 
improvements to customer services and workforce development 

 

Creative and Flexible 

Seeking continuous improvement in what we do, ensuring that our actions address the needs 
of South Lakeland 

 

Open and Transparent 

Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our dealings with the public 

  

Plan 

Page 279



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
8 

 

 
 
 

2. Planning 

 

The Council’s priorities are set out in the Council Plan and are informed by the Council’s mixed 
approach to service delivery 
 

 Innovation and 
Improvement 

More Local 
Engaging communities and empowering them to deliver on things that 
matter locally, whilst setting and delivering on strategic priorities for South 
Lakeland 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 

F
o

c
u

s
 a

re
a
s

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

M
e

a
s

u
re

s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

Partnership working and collaboration 
Continue to build on our successes to identify current and future 
opportunities for shared delivery of projects and a more collaborative 
approach to service provision 

Stewardship 
Continue to plan and manage our resources and responsibility for 
conserving and enhancing the environment in which our communities live 
and work. 

Entrepreneurship 
Look at where there are opportunities to reduce the burden of taxation, to 
help others and become more entrepreneurial in the way we do business 

Our Members, Our Workforce 
Members are advocates to ensure that the needs of local communities are 
identified, understood and supported by a workforce that is in the right 
place at the right time with the skills and motivation to deliver the highest 
quality services to our customers 

Key Regional and National Drivers 
Supported by the four priorities in the Council Plan 

 
The Council must focus must on how we and our partners can achieve positive outcomes for 
our communities - to improve their quality of life and the services we provide for them.  
 
When planning, the Council must ensure it understands South Lakeland, our communities and 
their needs based on a detailed knowledge of key demographic data, customer satisfaction and 
perceptions.  
 
  

Plan 

Page 280



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
9 

 

 

 
 
As a Community Leader, the Council should engage with and share information, where 
applicable, with partners particularly the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership, the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, Local Area Partnerships, Parish and Town Councils and Community Groups. 
 
We must also be aware of available resources, anticipated risks and levels of current 
performance when setting priorities and developing Plans.  
 
The Council’s services are delivered through plans and strategies at all levels, both 
independently and in partnership with other service providers and provide a link between our 
high-level Vision and strategic priorities and team and individual performance.  
 

Our Priorities  

The Council has agreed four priorities in its new Council Plan for 2014-2019 (updated February 
2017), which support the Council’s Vision. 
 
Our Economy 
Enabling and delivering opportunities for sustainable economic growth 
 
Our Housing Needs 
Providing homes to meet need 
 
Our Environment 
Protecting and enhancing our place 
 
Our Culture and Wellbeing 
Improving wellbeing, reducing inequality and supporting cultural activities 

 
  

Plan 

Page 281



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
10 

 

 
 
 
 

3. Commitment 

 
The priorities for South Lakeland are set at the highest level.  These priorities are not only 
supported by the Council’s strategic and operational plans but also individual staff appraisals.  
Managing employees’ performance is a continuous process.   
 
It involves making sure that the performance of employees contributes to the goals of their 
teams and the business as a whole. Performance monitoring which includes risk management 
activity ensures that the key priorities are met. 
 
Organisational commitment is demonstrated through the allocation of responsibilities and 
resources.  
 
Members’ responsibilities are set out in the Council’s Constitution.   
 
Officers’ responsibilities are contained in the Constitution, Job Descriptions and annual 
appraisals.  
 
Ownership of responsibility is further supported by:  

 The Personal Qualities Framework links organisational targets and actions with those of 
individual employees  

 Commitment to training and development through the Corporate Training Programme 
and Training Budget  

Financial resources are allocated to the Council’s Priorities through the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and annual Revenue and Capital Budgets.  Resources provided by other bodies are 
secured through external funding bids.  
 
Commitments towards achieving South Lakeland and Cumbria Strategy priorities are 
demonstrated through membership of Boards, Task Groups and Officer Working Groups. 
 
  

Plan 

Page 282



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
11 

 

 

 

4. Action and Results 

 

The Council will implement its plans at strategic, operational and individual levels. Services are 
delivered in accordance with our strategies and plans, having regard to the following: 

 strategic outcomes and our ambitions as set out by our four Council Plan priorities 
 

Priority Economy Housing Environment 
Culture & 
Wellbeing 

Ambitions The council will 
support the 
development of 
higher paid jobs in 
South Lakeland 

 

The council will 
help facilitate and 
enable the delivery 
of  new affordable 
and open market 
housing through 
private sector led 
developments 
across the district 

The quality and 
condition of private 
sector housing will 
be improved and 
the number of 
empty homes 
reduced 

The council and its 
partners will work 
together to 
significantly reduce 
the risk of 
homelessness 

 

The council will 
help our residents  
to reduce the  
amount of 
household waste by 
extending the range 
of recycled 
materials from the 
kerbside 

The council will 
make progress in 
reducing  carbon 
emissions and 
become more 
energy efficient 

The council and its 
communities will 
enhance and 
protect our heritage 
and  high quality 
environment 

Through our Public 
Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 
the council and its 
partners will 
support wellbeing  
improvements and 
reduce health 
inequalities 

We will develop 
South Lakelands  
reputation as the 
UKs leading rural 
cultural destination 
and as a  place for 
nationally and 
internationally 
recognised arts, 
events and festivals 

  

Do 

Page 283



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
12 

 

 

 

 Measures to monitor service-delivery in practice and to help focus attention on our 
continued programme of innovation and improvement 

Delivering our priorities 

Sustainable 
Budget 

Flexible and 
Skilled 
Workforce 

Community 
Leadership 

Improved 
Customer 
Engagement and 
Communication 

Management 
Information 
Systems 
(Operational) 

Financial 
Implications 

Savings, 
reductions, 
efficiencies to be 
found 

Total Service 
Expenditure 

Resource 
implications 

Days lost to 
sickness 

Staff engaged in 
training and 
development 

Legal Implications 

Elected Members 
engaged with 
training and 
development 

Promoting the 
Council and 
Council Services 

Key Performance 
Indicators 
submitted as part 
of requirements for 
regulatory services 

Risk Assessments 

Complaints 

Social, Economic 
and Environmental 
Impact 

Equality and 
Diversity Impact 

Privacy Impact 

Digital Innovation 

 

 

Measures 
 

Dedicated performance management scorecards provide consistency and better access to 
information regarding ownership, service activity and measures, and to improve monitoring and 
reporting procedures including the management of complaints received; service planning and 
projects. 
 

Every stage of the performance management process relies on evidence and data to allow the 
organisation to make judgments on what South Lakeland and the Council’s needs are; what its 
customers’ needs are; what it has achieved and how it compares.  It is vital that all this 
information is high quality, reliable, and timely data.  As part of a rolling programme of 
scorecard review, regular assurance checks will be carried out and reported to Members and 
Officers. 
 

Financial Management 
 

Financial Management covers all financial accountabilities in relation to the running of the 
Council, including the policy framework and budget.   
 

All Members and Officers have a duty to abide by the highest standards of probity in dealing 
with financial issues.  This is facilitated by ensuring everyone is clear about the standards to 
which they are working and the controls that are in place to ensure that these standards are 
met.  The Corporate Financial Monitoring Report is presented to advise Members of the 
financial position of the Council each quarter.  Explanations of variances are provided.   
The report is presented to Members.  The report summarises the General Fund revenue and 
capital positions with monitoring updates for large and volatile costs and income, approved 
savings, Treasury Management, Revenue Collection and Sundry and Long term debtors.  
 

The Corporate Financial Monitoring Report includes the following areas: 

1. Revenue Budget monitoring 

2. Budget Savings monitoring 

3. Capital Budget monitoring 

4. Treasury Management review    

Do 

Page 284



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
13 

 

 

 
Personal Qualities 

It is important to ensure that all staff are aware of how the performance appraisal ‘fits’ with the 
Performance Management Framework. In terms of the hierarchy of strategic and business 
planning the performance appraisal process sits as follows: 

 

 

 
The above plans are aspirational i.e. they are the statement of either new objectives or an 
intention to improve service/performance on existing objectives.  Therefore individual 
performance appraisals will reflect this i.e. the performance objectives will be about 
implementing new services, improving existing services, reducing cost etc.  
 
They fundamentally represent change.  However, the Performance Appraisal Scheme also 
includes two other factors, Personal Qualities and Development.   
 
Personal Qualities reflects the way in which employees conduct themselves and the manner in 
which business is undertaken.  Adherence to these qualities will support the successful pursuit 
of objectives.  Development acknowledges that for staff at all levels there will be gaps between 
current performance and target performance which cannot be addressed by additional 
resources or new technology but by enhancing the skills, knowledge and confidence of the 
post-holder.  
  

Council Plan 

Group/Service 
Plan 

Performance 
Appraisal 

Do 

Page 285



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
14 

 

 
 
Performance Appraisals are not the only corporately supported performance/communication 
mechanisms available.  For line managers performance appraisals form part of a tripartite staff 
management portfolio. 

 

 

 
 
Managers and staff need to be able to differentiate between the aims and content of the various 
meetings. 
 
1-2-1’s between managers and staff should be conducted on a regular basis and are an 
opportunity to: 

 Manage tasks and prioritise work 

 Tackle day to day supervision and resource issues 

 Monitor and evaluate incoming and outgoing work 

They can also be used to visit the performance objectives and individual development needs 
and, where appropriate, amend/update the performance review and developmental review 
sections of the performance appraisal documentation. 

 
Managers should brief their teams once a month as a minimum and should be the opportunity 
to: 

 Communicate corporate information  

 Discuss service issues 

 Raise awareness of topical issues facing the Council 

 Listen to ideas and discuss innovative solutions on issues facing the team, service and 
Council 

The aim of the Performance Appraisal Policy is to ensure the performance appraisal process is 
embedded within organisational culture and practice rather than be a stand-alone, once a year 
activity.   

 
  

Performance 
Appraisal 

1-2-1s 
Team 

Meetings 

Do 

Page 286



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
15 

 

 

 

Performance data will be collected and areas for concern identified.  Areas that are not on track 
will be commented on by staff with ownership at weekly meetings. 

 

5. Monitoring 

 

Feedback and other information generated in delivering services enables us to actively 
monitor performance and report as necessary to Committees, management and  
operational teams, individuals, members of the public and external agencies.  This is 
undertaken in accordance with the following: 
 

Quarter 1  

April 

Complete a review of and update the policies and strategies integral to the 
Performance Management Framework. 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 4’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Staff appraisal process is started. 

May Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 4’ performance data which details progress with action 
towards priorities, progress towards targets, management of risks and capital & 
revenue figures. 

Target for completion of Council’s Annual Financial Accounts and Annual Governance 
Statement. 

June Statutory deadline for completion of Council’s Annual Financial Accounts and Annual 
Governance Statement. 

Quarter 2  

July 

Council approves performance framework related policies and strategies. Update the 
Council Plan. The draft budget is prepared. 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 1’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Publish the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan 

August  Consultation on the draft Council Plan. 

Consultation on the draft budget.  

Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 1’ performance data. 

September Staff mid-year Job Appraisals are completed 

Statutory deadline for completion of external audit of Council’s Annual Financial 
Accounts and Annual Governance Statement. 

Quarter 3  

October 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 2’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

November Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 2’ performance data. 

December Budget options are aligned to priorities 

Publish the Council’s Council Plan 

Quarter 4  

January 

Report the Council’s ‘Quarter 3’ performance data to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Review 

Page 287



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
16 

 

February Publish the Council Budget and Capital Programme. 

Publish the Council’s ‘Quarter 3’ performance data. 

March Publish the Council’s operational plans including the workforce element. 

  

Page 288



Performance Management Framework 
Version: 10.0 

April 2017 
17 

 

 
 
 
Detailed information regarding costs, performance and benchmarking of services will be 
reported along with a value for money calculation. This will bring essential business information 
to decision makers – for more detail see the diagram below: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Results of service performance are published internally and externally in the Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee reports.  
 
In addition, the Council provides employees, Members and the public with feedback on the 
Council’s performance in a number of digestible formats.  This includes the annual report of our 
performance over a 12 month period.  
 
 

6. Review and Response 

 

Reviewing and taking corrective action are essential steps as they distinguish performance 
management from performance monitoring.  Action taken is recorded to provide an audit trail 
and evidence of improvement, and could include any or all of the following:  
 

 Reassessing the need for a particular service  

 Re-designing standards, measures and targets  

 Reviewing systems and processes  

 Re-evaluating resource requirements  

 
Customer feedback is used to support the review process, while benchmarking helps to set 
Council performance into context by comparing processes and measure results, for example 
when carrying out service reviews or value-for-money exercises.  
 
Implementation of this Framework is overseen by the Senior Management Team. 
 

Costs 

 

Costs of individual 
services 

Benefits 

 

Measures that show 
performance 

 

Benchmarking for 
comparing with 
other authorities 

Value for Money 

 

Cost per head of 
population for each 

service 

Review 

Page 289



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 290



1 
Version: 7 

Date: April 2017 
 

  

Version 7 

March 2017 

Appendix 2 

Page 291



2 
Version: 7 

Date: April 2017 
 

Contents 

 

Risk Management Process ................................................................................................. 3 
Roles and Responsibilities .................................................................................................. 4 
Risk Management – Five practical steps ............................................................................. 5 
Risk Prioritisation Matrix ...................................................................................................... 6 
 

 

 

Version Control 

Version By Date Comments 

v1 

Jun 2011 

Risk and 
Performance Officer 

13/07/2011 Risk process simplified, shortened and Internal 
Audit Recommendations included. 

Cabinet approval. 

v2 

Mar 2012 

Risk and 
Performance Officer 

05/03/2012 Reviewed - no changes required 

 

v3 

Jun 2013 

Risk and 
Performance Officer 

01/06/2013 Reviewed – minor changes required 

 

v4 

Mar 2014 

Principal 
Performance and 
Intelligence Officer 

20/03/2014 Reviewed – minor changes required and Risk 
Prioritisation Matrix simplified 

V5 

Mar 2015 

Risk and 
Performance Officer 

January 2015 Reviewed – management of partnership risks better 
defined 

V6 

April 2016 

Risk and 
Performance Officer 

March 2016 Reviewed - no significant changes required 
Reference to fraud and corruption risks added as 
required by audit. 

V7 

Mar 2017 

Risk and 
Performance Officer 

March 2017 Reviewed – management and escalation of 
operational risks clarified on page 4 

 

How we review this document 

Partnerships and Organisational Development will facilitate a periodic review in line with 

government guidance. 

  

Page 292



3 
Version: 7 

Date: April 2017 
 

Risk Management Process 

 

Introduction 
This document outlines how South Lakeland District Council is taking on its responsibility to 
manage risks and opportunities using a structured and focused approach. 
 

This process will enable the Council to identify: 
1. Partnership risks 
2. Strategic risks 
3. Operational risks 
4. assess the risks for likelihood and impact 
5. identify mitigating controls  
6. allocate responsibility for both risks and controls. 

 

What is Risk? 
A risk is an event which has a negative or positive effect on the achievement of the Council’s 
objectives. 
 

What is Risk Management? 
Risk management is both the awareness of risks and the management processes that are 
directed towards effective reduction or mitigation of risks. Identifying and dealing with the 
principal risks facing an authority enables it to identify key actions it must take to deliver its 
objectives. 
 

Corporate processes and risk 
These corporate processes require the consideration of risk.   

 Council Planning Process 

 Project Management 

 Financial Planning 

 Partnerships 

 Cabinet/Council reports 

 Business Continuity 

 Health and safety 

 Fraud and corruption 

 Insurance 
 

Why do we need a Risk Management Process? 
Risk management will strengthen the ability of South Lakeland District Council to achieve its 
objectives and enhance the value of services provided, to make the area a place where 
people want to live and work, where they are able to enjoy a high quality of life.  
 
Risk management is also an essential part of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy/ framework on Corporate Governance that has been adopted by SLDC. 
Alongside Corporate Governance the Council is required to publish an annual assurance 
statement in respect of internal controls. This determines that the Council is responsible for 
ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective 
exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes arrangements for the management of 
risk. 
 

Page 293



4 
Version: 7 

Date: April 2017 
 

Roles and Responsibilities 
The Innovation and Improvement Portfolio Holder and the Chief Executive jointly have 
overall responsibility for risk management throughout the Council.  
 
Strategic Risks: 
Senior Management Team is pivotal in the management of the Council’s high level risks by 
identifying and reviewing existing risks and ensuring mitigation. These decisions will 
determine which risks are included on the Strategic Risk Register. Senior Management 
Team reviews the risks along with corporate plan performance on a quarterly basis. 
The Performance and Risk Officer is located within Partnerships and Organisational 
Development and maintains the strategic risks and mitigating controls each quarter on behalf 
of the Senior Management Team. The officer also organises appropriate training for staff 
and members and reviews the risk process. The officer prepares quarterly monitoring reports 
covering risks and performance with the Council Plan for 
 

1. Senior Management Team 
2. Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
3. Cabinet 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee will monitor the mitigation of the Strategic Risks via 
quarterly performance reporting. This ensures that all senior elected members understand 
the Strategic Risks and their mitigating controls. 
 
Operational Risks: 
Directorates will identify, manage and monitor their operational risks. Operational Managers 
will list their operational risks within their Service Plans. They will review these operational 
risks and record their review history for each risk on a quarterly basis. Operational Managers 
and Assistant Directors can escalate an operational risk to Senior Management Team if they 
feel that the risk is more strategic in nature or that they need help with mitigation. In this way 
operational risks are identified and managed - and where necessary escalated for further 
control. The management of operational risks is facilitated by guidance provided on the front 
page of the staff intranet – the five step risk management cycle, templates and training slides 
are available. The Performance and Risk Officer provides training and assistance. 
Operational Risks above tolerance are reported to Audit Committee in Quarter 1 each year. 
 
Partnership Risks: 
There are two kinds of risks involved in partnership working. The first are the risks that the 
Council faces because it is a partner. These risks will be identified by the key partnership 
lead and managed via service plans and if necessary escalated as a potential strategic risk. 
The Second risks are the risks that the partnership faces as a whole. Where a key 
partnership is significant enough to warrant risk management arrangements these risks will 
be reviewed and managed by the partnership itself. The risks will be communicated back to 
the Council via the Council’s representative on that Partnership. These risks may then bring 
about new strategic risks which would then be subject to the Council’s performance 
management arrangements. 
 
Links with Audit findings: 
Internal audit is responsible for undertaking periodic assessment of the Council’s risk 
management processes as part of reviewing of corporate governance arrangements. 
Internal Audit will also as a result of their risk assessments in other areas of the Councils 
operations highlight to Senior Management Team further risks for their consideration and 
possible inclusion on the Strategic Risk Register.  These risks are then performance 
managed as part of the quarterly performance monitoring process 
 

Page 294



5 
Version: 7 

Date: April 2017 
 

Risk Management – Five practical steps 
Managing risks involves adopting a systematic and robust process. The following risk 
management cycle describes the processes that should be followed.  

 
Step 1 - Identifying the risks 
When identifying risks it is suggested that as a minimum the following categories of risk be 
used. They will act as a prompt and as a trigger for officers involved in the identification 
process. These categories are Financial (including Fraud and Corruption), Environmental, 
Customer (including Equalities), Reputational and Legislative.  
 
Risks can also be positive rather than just negative - in that there may be positive 
opportunities brought about by the impact of a risk.  These opportunities should be identified 
so that they can be maximised if the risk occurs. A project can also be thought of as positive 
risk taking as it is something that will bring benefits - but there will be risks to manage along 
the way.  
 
Risks can also be strategic or operational in nature and it is important that both types of risk 
are managed effectively. If risks identified at an operational level are considered to be 
strategic in nature they should be brought to the attention of Senior Management Team by 
Operational Managers and Assistant Directors. 
 
Step 2 - Analysing the risks 
It will help understanding of each risk if analysis of the vulnerabilities, triggers and 
consequences are completed. This better understanding will aid the next step in the process 
- prioritisation of risks. There may be Equalities considerations when completing this analysis 
work. 
 
Step 3 - Risk Profiling and prioritisation 
A standard prioritisation matrix is used across the Council to plot the risks in terms of 
likelihood and impact. Once completed this risk profile clearly illustrates the risks which are 
priorities for management. The Council’s line of risk tolerance or appetite is set on the 
matrix. This line determines which risks cannot be tolerated and must be managed down, 
transferred or avoided.  
 
Step 4 - Action Planning 
Most risks are capable of being managed – either by managing down the likelihood or 
impact or both.  Action plans will also identify the resources required to deliver the 
improvements, key dates and deadlines and critical success factors. There may be 
Equalities issues when agreeing risk actions 
 
Step 5 - Risk management monitoring and reporting framework 
Quarterly monitoring of the effective management of risks through Overview and Scrutiny 
including regular reporting on council plan performance. 

Page 295



6 
Version: 7 

Date: April 2017 
 

Risk Prioritisation Matrix  
 

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

A 

high 

    

B 

medium 

    

C 

low 

    

D 

very low 

    

 4 

negligible 

 

3 

marginal 

2 

serious 

1 

critical 

 Impact 

 

 

 

Priority risks which 

require mitigating 

controls and quarterly 

review 

Low priority risks 

which require annual 

review 

Page 296


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Audit Committee 2016/17 Work Programme
	6 Audit Committee 2017/18 Work Programme
	7 Chair of the Audit Committee's Annual Report 2016/17
	Chair of the Audit Committee s Annual Report 2017-17 - Appendix 1

	8 Certification Work for South Lakeland District Council for Year ended 31 March 2016
	9 The Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council Year ended 31 March 2017
	10 Planned Audit Fee for 2017/18
	11 South Lakeland District Council Audit Committee Progress Report and Update Year ended 31 March 2017
	12 Internal Audit Progress Report 2016/17
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2016-17 - Appendix 1
	PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2016/17 ANNUAL PLAN
	AUDITS COMPLETED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO COMMITTEE
	CHANGES TO THE ANNUAL PLAN 2016/17
	FRAUDS/IRREGULARITIES
	PROGRESS ACTIONING PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS
	RESPONSIBILITY/DISCLAIMER
	Appendix B

	Internal Audit Progress Report 2016-17 - Appendix 2a Car Parking Cash Collection-f-summary
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2016-17 - Appendix 2b Debtors-f (002)-summary
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2016-17 - Appendix 2c ICT Data Assurance-f-summary
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2016-17 - Appendix 2d ICT Network Security and Cybercrime-f-summary
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2016-17 - Appendix 2e Main Accounting Systems-f-summary
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2016-17 - Appendix 2f Risk Management-f-summary
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2016-17 - Appendix 2g Taxi Licensing-f(r) (002)-summary
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2016-17 - Appendix 2h Transparency Code-f-summary
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2016-17 - Appendix 3
	Untitled


	13 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017-18
	Internal Audit Annual Plan 2017-18 - Appendix 1
	Annex A
	Annex B
	Annex D


	14 Annual Governance Statement and Review of Effectiveness of the Local Code of Governance
	Annual Governance Statement and Review of Effectiveness of Local Code of Governance - Appendix 1
	Annual Governance Statement and Review of Effectiveness of Local Code of Governance - Appendix 2
	Annual Governance Statement and Review of Effectiveness of Local Code of Governance - Appendix 3

	15 Strategic Risk 12 - Health and Safety Management of Contracts
	16 Annual Reporting of Operational Risks to Audit Committee
	17 Review of Performance Management Framework and Risk Management Process
	Review of Performance Management Framework and Risk Management Process - Appendix 1 COLOUR
	Review of Performance Management Framework and Risk Management Process - Appendix 2 COLOUR




